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FOUNDER

Venkatachala Chakrapani Redla, is the Managing Director and one of the Promoters of our
Company. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Technology and a Master’s Degree in Science, both
from Indian Institute of Technology, Madras. He is a member peer review committee of
department of civil engineering of Indian Institute of Technology, Madras. He has been associated
with our Company since its incorporation. He founded Aarvee Associates in 1989 as a proprietary
concern which was focussed on providing building design services. The proprietary concern was
acquired by our Company in 2007.

Under his leadership and vision, our operations (including the proprietorship firm acquired by our
Company in 2007) have grown from a one-person operation to an organisation offering multi-
disciplinary consultancy services across various sectors and in different geographies with 3,505
employees (as of June 30, 2025). As the founding Promoter and Managing Director of our Company
he has been instrumental in driving our Company’s expansion and also continues to oversee the
day to day management and growth of our Company. He has around 36 years of experience in the
infrastructure consulting industry.




ABOUT THE COMPANY

Aarvee Associates Architects Engineers & Consultants Private Limited was incorporated as a
private company limited by shares under the Companies Act, 1956 on 28.02.2005, having the
jurisdiction of the Registrar of Companies, Andhra Pradesh, Hyderabad. The CIN of the Company
was U74200AP2005PTC045491.

The name of the Company was changed to Aarvee Engineering Consultants Private Limited on
08.01.2025. The CIN of the Company was U74200TG2005PTC045491.

The Company was converted from Private Company to Public Company and the name was
changed to Aarvee Engineering Consultants Limited on 06.02.2025. The CIN of the Company is
U74200TG2005PLC045491.

Aarvee as a global leader in infrastructure consultancy, with a proven track record of delivering
world-class solutions across multiple sectors and established with a commitment to technical
excellence, simplicity in engineering and innovation has consistently delivered many complex and
transformative projects across the globe providing its services to more than 20 countries.

Aarvee offers comprehensive infrastructure consultancy services across all major sectors,
including Transportation, Water Supply & Sanitation, Mine Infrastructure, Urban Infrastructure and

Power.

Global Presence

UK Australia Middle East
Africa Sri Lanka Bangladesh
Rwanda Papua New Guinea Kazakhstan
Congo Nigeria Kenya
Mozambique Zambia Tanzania
Uganda Guinea Ethiopia
Nepal UAE Oman

Abu Dhabi Dubai




Accreditations

Aarves is an ISO 9001, ISO 14001, ISO 45001, ISO/SEC 2700 certified organization and National
Accreditation Board for Education and Training (NABET) & Capability Maturity Model Integration
(CMMI) Appraised.

Awards and Recognitions

Fiscal

Particulars

2007

Received the Certificate of Merit from Consultancy Development Centre for Excellence in
Consultancy Service, 2007 for preparation of water supply Conceptual Design Report
(CDR) for twelve surrounding municipalities of Greater Hyderabad Municipal
Corporation,

2009

Received National 4 Award for E_melleReTr1 Wé?erﬁanager@rt 2009 by Confederation of
Indian Industry for Innovative Water Saving Product. B

2013

Received Second Prize for excellence in engineeﬁng_c:(;néultancy?ef\%e? for |
Sripadasagar Project at Consulting Engineers Association of India - National Award,
2013.

2015

Received CIDC Vishwakarma Award, 2015 for Best Construction Projects for Rapid Metro
Rail Project (Phase 1) under Category Best Construction Projects. N
Received Scroll of Commendation at CIDC Vishwakarma Award, 2015 for Hyderabad
Outer Ring Road - 3 S (Smart, Sustainable, Splendid / Splendorous) Project under
Category Best Construction Projects.

2018

_Guna and Guna-Biaora, NH - 46 (old NH-3) Projects well before the scheduled time.

Received Certificate of Appreciation from National Highways Authority— of India for
recognition of our valuable contribution towards the successful completion of Shivpuri-

2023 |

Received the certificate of accreditation issued by the National Accreditation Board for
Education and Training to be accredited as category-A under the QCI-NABET Scheme for
Accreditation of EIA Consultant Organization, Version-3 for preparing EIA/ EMP reports.

Received the Certificate of Recognition for commendable performance in the group
Engineering Services and Consultancy by The Institution of Engineers (India).

15" CIDC Vishwakarma Awards.

Received Medal and Scroll of Commendation for Best Professionally Managed Company_
from
Construction, Materials Supply Handling & Services (Turnover Rs.100 Cr to Rs.1 000 Cr) at

Received the Urban Infra Consultancy Business Leader of the Year award for e_xééilgc_e"
and innovation in the field of project management consultancy in rail & metro sectors at
the Urbaninfra Group - Urban Infra Awards 2024.

Received the Urban Rail Business Leader of the Year (B-I?’R_i PM Consultancy) 2024 for
excellence and innovation in the field of DPR consultancy in rail & metro sectors at the
Urbaninfra Group - Urban Infra Awards 2024.

Received Gold Winner award in Industry Large Category at Confederation of Indian |
Industry (Cll) Academia Partnership Awards, 2024.

2025

| Received Trophy and Scroll of Commendation Er_t_hg Project- Okha-Beyt Dwarka




Fiscal

Particulars

Signature Bridge, Dwarka, under the Best Construction Projects category at 16" CIDC
Vishwakarma Awards.

Received Medal and Scroll of Commendation for the Project - Chanaka Korata Barrage._

Adilabad, under the Best Construction Projects category at 16™ CIDC Vishwakarma
Awards.

Received Certificate of Appreciation from National Highway Authority of India for

recognition of valuable contribution towards the successful completion of Vadodara Kim
Expressway Project.

Received [IN-Platinum Award in the category of best professionally managed Company'

_atISDA Infracon National Awards 2025

| Infracon National Awards 2025.

Major events and milestones of our Company:

Fiscal

Particulars

1988*

M/s Aarvee Associates, a sole proprietorship was established and began operations as
architectural and engineering consultancy service provider.

1998*

Bagged A.P. First Referral Health System Project, our first project which was funded by
World Bank Funded for ¥ 3.60 million.

Entered the Highway Sector with our first project for preparing a Detailed Project Report
(DPR) for 321.4 km of State Highways and Major District Roads (MDRs) in
Visakhapatnam, Vizianagaram, and Srikakulam. This project, under the Andhra Pradesh
Economic Restructuring Project (APERP).j_s_\QlEed at 3.0 million

2000*

Bagged our first Project from National Highways Authority of india worth ¥ 32 million, for
preparing the DPR for the Eluru-Rajahmundry stretch (Km 80 to Km 200) on the
Vijayawada-Visakhapatnam section of NH-5,

2001*

170.62 million. The project involves construction supervision for the 4-laning of the
Eluru-Rajahmundry section (Km 80 to Km 200) on NH-5, covering Packages AP-17, AP-
18, AP-19, and AP-20,

Awarded our First Highway Project Management Consultancy (PMC) Project worth ¥ |

2003*

_pipeline.

Forayed into the Irrigation and Water Supply sectors with a project worth ¥ 6.40 million.
The project involved preparing a Detailed Project Report for the construction of
Kumaradhara and Pasupudhara dams, including the laying of a drinking water supply

Entered the Railway sector with our first project worth ¥ 0.78 million. The project involved
Preliminary Engineering Design, Traffic Survey, and Feasibility Study for a new BG rail line
covering 129 km between Hastavaram/Rajampet and Krishnapatnam, and between
Jaggayyapet and Vishnupuram.

. 2004*

Awarded First Urban Planning Project of ¥ 0.85 million (preparation of Master Ptan for Srj |
Satya Sai Urban Development Authority, Puttaparthy)

| 2005*

Incorporation of our Company in the name and style of Aarvee Associates Architects
Engineers & Consultants Private Limited

Awarded the First Project Management Consultancy (PMC) projedt in Railway sector for ¥
10.00 million

Received IIN-Gold Award in the category of outstanding corporate legefship at ISDA |

J




Fiscal

Particulars

2006*

First Ports project worth ¥ 5.10 million, providing lender engineer services for the
construction of a Greenfield Deep Water Port at Krishnapatnam, Andhra Pradesh

2007

Pursuant to the takeover agreement executed on April 1, 2007 by and between our
Company and Venkatachala Chakrapani Redla, proprietor of M/s Aarvee Associates
assigned, transferred and conveyed all of its assets (other than land & buildings) and
liabilities to our Company, on and from the closing date i.e., April 1, 2007 for an
_ aggregate consideration of ¥ 59.20 million.

Completed design of India's First 8-lane Access Controlled Expressway with a Design
Speed of 120 Kmph with High-Capacity Interchanges

2009

2010

Entered the international market with our first project in Djibouti, Africa. The project
involved a Feasibility Study and Preliminary Design in the Highways sector and is valued
at¥146milion. | )
Secured our first Metro Rail consultancy project for RAPID Metro Rail Gurgaon, valued at
¥ 16.20 million

Associated with the construction supervision of the first 8-lane access-controlled
expressway, developed as part of the Outer Ring Road around Hyderabad. This project
covered the stretch from Shamirpet to Pedda Amberpet under the Phase-I| program, with
loan assistance from JICA. B

2011

2013

Expanded operations into the power sector with the award of a consultancy project
valued at X 0.25 million. The project involved Lender’s Engineer services for a 15 MW (3x5
_ MW) Small Hydro Electric Plant on the River Kolab in Odisha.

Incorporated our first overseas Subsidiary viz. Aarvee Engineering Consultants

| Associates Pty Ltd in Australia

Awarded First Exim Bank Project (Consultancy Services for Design and Construction
Supervision of Rehabilitation of Road N280/N281Between Tica Buzi and Nova Sofala in
sofala province) g —
Set up international branch offices in Tanzania and Ethiopia

2015

2018

Executed our first Railway Tunnel Design & Supervision project having a tunnel length of
| 6.398 km in Assam with Geodata SPA Italy as a JV partner

Set up our 3" international branch office in Kenya _

Received certification of appreciation from the National Highways Authority of India for
completing the project - Shivpuri - Guna NH 46 - ahead of the scheduled time

2019

Set up our 4™ international branch office in Rwanda |
Awarded our largest project in revenue to date (CMRL-Phase-2 General Consultancy
Services for JICA portion) N
Executed the preparation of Smart Integrated Infrastructure Master Plan & DPR of
Amaravati -India‘s Largest Green Field Capital City for ¥ 290.90 million

2020

Set up 2 additional international branch offices in Kazakhstan and Mozambique
expanding our international branch offices count to 6 - -
Bagged DPR Project for DFCCIL, Detailed Project Report (DPR) including Preliminary
alignment development, optimization of Alignment, Final Location Survey (FLS) for New
Dedicated Freight Corridor: i) East-Corridor - (Package-1); ii) East-West Corridor
(Package-2); and iii) North-South Corridor (Package-3)

| 2021

Purchased Teledyne Aerial LIDAR Scanner for surveying activiii_gi




L Fiscal

Particulars

Awarded first bullet train project management consultancy project in the country as
consortium partner (Project Management Consultancy Services for construction of Civil
works packages for MAHSR Project)

2022

Completion of our first project management consultancy assignment for the Smart City
initiative - the Urban Infrastructure Development projectin Prayagraj, Uttar Pradesh.

Incorporated our second overseas Subsidiary viz. Aarvee Associates Limited in United
Kingdom

2023

Carried out detailed dﬁn of foundation, substructure & superstructure of a 276.2 m
long Major Bridge over river Alakananda for a value of ¥ 5.70 million

2025

Change of Company name from Aarvee Associates Architects Engineers and
Consultants Private Limited to Aarvee Engineering Consultants Limited pursuant to
conversion of our Company into a public company.




BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Venkatachala Chakrapani Redla DIN: 00576037 Managing Director
Mr. Venkateshwar Reddy Banda DIN: 01623401 Whole-time Director
Mr. Kishore Kumar Mekala DIN: 00175494 Whole-time Director
Mr. Malladi Murthy DIN: 02635227 Whole-time Director
Ms. Sneha Redla DIN: 09592284 Director

Mr. Nagarjun Redla DIN: 10773396 Director

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Ms. Sugandha Khandelwal - Company Secretary
Mr. Venkata Subrahmanyam Valavala - Chief Financial Officer




Mr. Venkatachala Chakrapani Redla, is the Managing Director and one of the Promoters of our
Company. He holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Technology and a Master’s Degree in Science, both
from Indian Institute of Technology, Madras. He is a member peer review committee of
department of civil engineering of Indian Institute of Technology, Madras. He has been associated
with our Company since its incorporation. He founded Aarvee Associates in 1989 as a proprietary
concern which was focused on providing building design services. The proprietary concern was
acquired by our Company in 2007. Under his leadership and vision, our operations (including the
proprietorship firm acquired by our Company in 2007) have grown from a one-person operation to
an organisation offering multi-disciplinary consultancy services across various sectors and in )
different geographies with 3,505 employees (as of June 30, 2025). As the fou nding Promoter and
Managing Director of our Company he has been instrumental in driving our Company’s expansion
and also continues to oversee the day to day management and growth of our Company. He has
around 36 years of experience in the infrastructure consulting industry.




Mr. Venkateshwar Reddy Banda, is one of the Whole-time Directors of our Company. He holds a
Bachelor's Degree in Technology and a Master’s Degree in Technology, both from Jawaharlal
Nehru Technological University, Hyderabad. He also holds a Diploma from the State Board of
Technical Education and Training, Andhra Pradesh. He has received the title of Senior Professional
Engineer in Civil Engineering with specialisation in Structural Engineering from Engineering
Council of India.

He was an individual annual member of Committee for International Commission on Large Dams,
India in 2023. He is a life member of Indian Concrete Institute. He has been associated with our
Company since its incorporation. In the past, he was associated with Aarvee Associates. He
oversees the BIGUPS division of our Company which encompasses Buildings, Irrigation,
Geospatial, Urban Planning and Power sub-divisions. He has around 36 years of experience in the
infrastructure consulting.




Mr. Mekala Kishore Kumar, is one of the Whole-time Directors of our Company. He holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Engineering from Nagpur University, Nagpur. He has been associated with
our Company since 2009. He oversees the highway division in our Company in handling design,
supervision and O&M Projects across the country and abroad. Prior to joining our Company, he
was associated with Asia Foundation and Constructions Limited and Nag Infrastructure
Consulting Engineers Private Limited. He is a guest faculty at Indian Academy of Highway
Engineers (Ministry of Road Transport and Highways, Government of India) in relation to EPC
Agreement documents for highway projects. He has also been part of the G-1 Committee for
Project Preparation, Contract Management, Quality Assurance and Public- Private Partnership
Committee, Indian Roads Congress. He has around 38 years of experience in infrastructure
consulting,




Mr. Malladi Murthy, is one of the Whole-time Directors of our Company. He holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Technology from College of Engineering, Kakinada. He also holds a Master’s Degree in
Technology from Indian Institute of Technology, Madras. He holds a Diploma in Alternative
Dispute Resolution from NALSAR University of Law, Hyderabad and a Diploma in Computer
Application from National Institute for Training in Industrial Engineering. He was elected as a
member of the Institution of Engineers (India). He is a member of Consulting Engineers
Association of India. He has been associated with our Company since 2005. He oversees the
railways division in our Company. Prior to joining our Company, he was associated with RITES
Limited and with Srisailam Left Bank Canal Scheme of Government of Andhra Pradesh. He has
around 39 years of experience in the infrastructure consulting




Ms. Sneha Redla, is the Executive Director and one of the Promoters of our Company. She holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Engineering from Osmania University, Hyderabad. She also holds a Master’s
Degree in Science from the University of Illinois. She has been associated with our Company since
2011. She is currently the Chief Executive Officer of Hyve Global Engineering Private Limited. She
heads the global operations division of our Company and oversees our global design team. She
also leads our international Subsidiaries in Australia and the UK, and is also responsible for
expanding our presence, branding and reputation. In addition, she works closely on business
strategy and project execution for our raitlways and metro rail projects. She has around 14 years of
experience in driving business strategy, project operations and business development




Mr. Redla Nagarjun, is a Non-Executive Director of our Company. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
Engineering from Osmania University, Hyderabad. He also holds a Master’s Degree in Engineering
from University of Illinois. He has been associated with our Company since September 30, 2024.
Prior to joining our Company, he was associated with Aiara Inc., Mateon Therapeutics Inc and
Invecas, Inc. He has around 4 years of work experience in the field of architecture and engineering.




KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Ms. Sugandha Khandelwal (Company Secretary)

She is the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of our Company. She has completed her
Bachelor's Degree in Commerce and Master's Degree in Commerce, both from Rohilkhand
University, Bareilly. She is an associate member of ‘The Institute of Company Secretaries of India’.
Prior to joining our Company, she was associated with Saurabh Agrawal & Associates, Greatvalue
Industries Limited, Shantnu Investments (India) Limited, Bharat Ekansh Limited, NSL Wind Power
Company (Satara) Private Limited and Medicover Hospitals. She oversees secretarial and
regulatory compliance of our Company. She has around 7 years of experience.




Mr. VV Subrahmanyam (CFO)

Venkata Subrahmanyam Valavala is the Chief Financial Officer of our Company. He holds
provisional Bachelor’s Degree in commerce from Andhra University. He is a fellow member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Prior to joining our Company, he was a practicing
Chartered Accountant since 1987 and has around 38 years of experience and he was associated
with V V S & Co. He is responsible for overseeing the financial strategy, planning, reporting,
compliance, and related functions, in our Company. Since he was appointed in our Company with
effect from July 1, 2025.




REGISTERED OFFICE

CIN: U74200TG2005PLC045491

8-2-5, Ravula Residency, Srinagar Colony Main Road,
Hyderabad - 500 082, Telangana, India.

Email: cs@aarvee.net

Website: www,aarvee.com

Phone: +91-40-48483456

Fax: +91-40-23736277

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. P.R. Datla & Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 006067S,

D Hub, Plot No. 1335, Road No. 45, Jubliee Hills,
Hyderabad - 500 033, Telangana, India.

INTERNAL AUDITORS

Rahul Anne & Associates,

Chartered Accountants

Ambe Sadan, H. no: 8-7-93/NE/68/9,
Hastinapuram Colony North Extension,
Sagar Road, LB Nagar,

Hyderabad - 500 074, Telangana, India
Ph no:+381 98661 62392

REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT

CIL Securities Limited

214, Raghav Ratna Towers, Chirag Ali Lane,
Abids, Hyderabad - 500 001, Telangana, India
Email: ta@cilsecurities.com

RTA Website: https://www.cilsecurities.com
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Notice of 20" Annual General Meeting

SHORTER NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 20™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF
M/s. AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED (FORMERLY AARVEE
ASSOCIATES ARCHITECTS ENGINEERS AND CONSULTANTS PRIVATE LIMITED)
WILL BE HELD ON TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 30, 2025 AT 12.00 NOON (IST) AT4TH

FLOOR, TRENDSET TOWERS, ROAD NO. 2, BANJARA HILLS, HYDERABAD-500034,
TELANGANA, INDIA TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS.
ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. TO CONSIDER AND ADOPT THE AUDITED STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE COMPANY TOGETHER WITH THE REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDITORS THEREON FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution: .

2. TO CONSIDER AND ADOPT THE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE COMPANY TOGETHER WITH THE AUDITORS’ REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025,

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

3. TO APPOINT A DIRECTOR IN PLACE OF MR. VENKATESHWAR REDDY BANDA (DIN:
01623401) wHO RETIRES BY ROTATION AT THIS ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND
BEING ELIGIBLE, HAS OFFERED HIMSELF FOR RE-APPOINTMENT

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

aarvee engineering consultants hmrtec_i .
(Formerly Aarvee Associates Architects Engirw.ersf:1 Cor;suaigan*:i;g::ézcl;i?égom ———
i i : 8-2- ula Residency, Srinagar Colony Main Ro d, . SN o
i e ‘:cégie;; ‘23{2?35%:;; Fax: +91-40-23736277; email: aarvee(@aarvee.net; web: www.aarvee.c
el e o " CIN: UT4200TG2005PLCO45491
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of the applicable laws, the Articles
of Association and upon recommendation of the Board of Directors, Mr.
Venkateshwar Reddy Banda (DIN: 01623401), Whole-Time Director of the
Company, who retires by rotation and being eligible has offered himself for
re-appointment, be and is hereby reappointed as director of the Company.”

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all acts
and take all such steps as may be necessary proper or expedient to give effect to
this resolution.”

4. TO APPOINT A DIRECTOR IN PLACE OF MR. MALLADI MURTHY (DIN:
02635227), WHO RETIRES BY ROTATION AT THIS ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
AND BEING ELIGIBLE, HAS OFFERED HIMSELF FOR RE-APPOINTMENT

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of the applicable laws, the Articles
of Association and upon recommendation of the Board of Directors, Mr. Malladi
Murthy (DIN: 02635227), Whole-Time Director of the Company, who retires by
rotation and being eligible has offered himself for re-appointment, be and is
hereby reappointed as director of the Company.”

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all acts
and take all such steps as may be necessary proper or expedient to give effect to
this resolution.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5. TO CONSIDER AND APPROVE THE RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR.
VENKATACHALA CHAKRAPANI REDLA (DIN: 00576037) AS MANAGING
DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203 read
with Schedule V and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for
the time being in force) Mr. Venkatachala Chakrapani Redla (DIN: 00576037) be
and is hereby reappointed as Managing Director of the Company, for a period of
Five (5) years with effect from 30 September 2025 as per terms & conditions set
outin explanatory statement annexed to the notice convening this meeting with

aarvee engineering consultants limited
(Formerly Aarvee Associates Architects Engineers & Consultants Private Limited)
Registered Office Address: 8-2-5, Ravula Residency, Srinagar Colony Main Road, Hyderabad-500082, Telangana, India.
Tel: +91-40-48483456, 23737633; Fax: +91-40-23736277; email; aarvee(@aarvee.net; web: www.aarvee.com
CIN: U74200TG2005PLC045491
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liberty to the Board of Directors to alter and vary the terms & conditions of the
said appointment in such a manner as may be agreed between the Board of
Directors and Mr. Venkatachala Chakrapani Redla.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all acts
and take all such steps as may be necessary proper or expedient to give effect to
this resolution.”

By order of the Board

For AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED

(formerly Aarvee Associates Architects Engineers and Consultants Private
Limited)

Venkatachala Chakrapani Redla
Managing Director

DIN: 00576037

Date: 29/09/2025

Place: Hyderabad

aarvee engineering consultants limited

(Formerly Aarvee Associates Architects Engineers & Consultants Private Limited)
Registered Office Address: 8-2-5, Ravula Residency, Srinagar Colony Main Road, Hyderabad-500082, Telangana, India
Tel: +91-40-48483456, 23737633; Fax: +91-40-23736277; email: aarvee@aarvee.net; web: www.aarvee.com
CIN: U74200TG2005PLC045491




NOTES:

1.

In view of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs ("MCA’) vide its General Circular No. 14/2020 dated 8th April, 2020,
General Circular No. 17/2020 dated 13th April, 2020, General Circular No.
22/2020 dated 15th June, 2020, General Circular No. 33/2020 dated 28th
September, 2020, General Circular No. 39/2020 dated 31st December,
2020, General Circular No. 10/2021 dated 23rd June, 2021, General Circular
No. 20/2021 dated 8th December, 2021 and General Circular No. 03/2022
dated 5th May, 2022 (collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars’) has
permitted the holding of the Annual General Meetings (“AGM”) through
Video Conferencing (‘'VC’)/ Other Audio Visual means (‘OAVM’), without the
physical presence of the members at a common venue. In compliance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and MCA Circulars, the
EGM of the Company can also be attended through VC/ OAVM. The
procedure for participating in the meeting through VC/OAVM is detailed
below.

Members may also attend the meeting through Other Audio Visual Means
(OAVM) Please find below the link and meeting details for joining via
Microsoft Teams:

https://teams.microsoft.com/dlU/launcher/launcher.html2url=%2F %23%2F
meet%2F4924635_83:_3075"‘.-'3..3Fp‘?-‘(-.-3DHl8hx8TmYHSYUOKURd%szanon%BDtr
ue&type=meet&deeplinkid=f16051f3-e8f¢c-468d-a0ch-3973374fa6c3&direc

tDI=true&ms Launch=true&enableM0bilePage=true&suppressPrompt=true

Join the meeting now
Meeting I1D: 492 463 583 307 5
Passcode: 59nk6SR3

The helpline number regarding any query/assistance for participation in the
AGM through VC/OAVM is +(91) 91542 59400.

AGM is scheduled at registered office of the company. However the
members have option to join the meeting through VC/OAVM.

Members can login and join 15 (Fifteen) minutes prior to the scheduled time
of the meeting and the facility for joining the meeting shall be kept open till
expiry of 15 (Fifteen) minutes after the scheduled time.

Members may raise questions during the meeting or one day prior to the
scheduled date of the meeting by sending across their question to
cs@aarvee.net



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

An explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act,
2013 relating to the Special Business to be transacted at the AGM is
annexed hereto.

The notice of AGM and other relevant documents are being sent in electronic
mode to Members whose e-mail address is registered with the Company.
Members, who have not registered their email address with the Company,
can get the same registered with the company by requesting in member
updation form by sending an email to cs@aarvee.net. The Company has
contacted such members over telephone and requested them to register
their email addresses with the Company by submitting duly filled and signed
member updation form to the above-mentioned email.

The details of the process and manner for participating in AGM through
two-way VC/OAVM through Microsoft teams Application are explained
herein below:

Member will be provided with a facility to attend the Meeting through
VC/OAVM through Microsoft teams Application. Member may access the
same after downloading Microsoft teams application, by joining a meeting
through user id and password mailed separately.

Members can participate in AGM through smart phone/taptop. However, for
better experience and smooth participation it is advisable to join the Meeting
through Laptop connected through broadband.

Further, Members will be required to allow Camera and use internet with a
good speed 1o avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or
through laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video
loss due to fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore
recommended to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of
aforesaid glitches.

A Member entitled to attend physically and vote at the meeting is entitled to
appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself and such proxy need
not be a member of the Company. A blank attendance slip to attend the
meeting is enclosed.

Proxies, in order to be effective, must be deposited at the venue of the
meeting before the scheduled time of the commencement of the meeting. A
blank proxy form is enclosed.



16.

17Z:

18.

19.

The relative Explanatory Statement pursuant to Sections 102 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in regard to the business set out in ltem No. 5 is
annexed hereto forming part of this notice.

All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory
Statement are open for inspection during normal working hours at the
registered office of the Company up to the date of the Meeting.

Al members are requested to notify any change in their contact numbers,
e-mail address, present and permanent addresses.

The Company has the option of sending notices in electronic mode pursuant
to Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 18 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, so it is
requested to all the members to provide their e-mail addresses to the
Company for sending notices in electronic mode.



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with
section 110 of the Companies Act, 2013

Item No. 5:

The Members of the Company, at the Annual General Meeting held on October
01, 2020, had approved the reappointment of Mr. Redla Venkatachala
Chakrapani as Managing Director of the Company for a period of five (5) years.
As his current tenure is due to expire at the conclusion of this Annual General
Meeting.

The Board of Directors, at its meeting held on 29" September 2025, on the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, has
approved the proposal to reappoint Mr. R.V. Chakrapani as Managing Director of
the Company for a further period of five (5) consecutive years, effective from the
conclusion of this AGM.

Mr. Redla Venkatachala Chakrapani has provided his consent for reappointment
and confirmed that he continues to satisfy the conditions prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Details of Mr. Chakrapani, proposed to be reappointed, as required to be
provided pursuant to the provisions of Secretarial Standard on General Meetings
("8S-2"), issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and approved
by the Central Government are provided herein below:

Name Mr. Redla_Venkatachala Chakrapéhi

Age ' | 83 years

o - B.Tech in Civil Engineering - IIT Madras
Qualification - M.S. in Structural Engineering - IIT Madras




Experience (including
| expertise in specific
| functional area)/Brief
| Resume

Terms and Conditions of
' Re-appointment

Remuneration last drawn

' Date of first appointr_ri_e}nt _

on the Board

Shareholding in  the
Company

Relationship with other
| Directors / Key

| Managerial Personnel

Number of maétihgs of
the Board attended during
the financial period

i 87.74%

| Mr. R.V. Chakrapani is a highly accomplished civil
and structural engineer with an outstanding career
‘spanning over 35 years in the infrastructure
consulting and engineering sector. He is the
Founder and Managing Director of Aarvee
Associates Architects Engineers & Consultants Pvt.
Ltd., a leading multidisciplinary infrastructure
| consultancy established in 1989.

| Starting his professional journey as a designer of
| buildings, Mr. Chakrapani founded Aarvee
‘ Associates with a strong technical vision and

entrepreneurial spirit. Over the years, he has built
‘ the company from a modest engineering outfit into a
| globally recognized consultancy with a workforce of
| over 3,000 professionals and an active presence in

more than 20 countries across Asia, Africa,
| Australia, and Europe.

He has also played a pivotal role in expanding
| Aarvee's operations to several government
agencies, multilateral development banks (like the
World Bank, ADB, and JICA), and private
infrastructure developers, earning a reputation for
. integrity, reliability, and technical excellence.

As mutually agreed and in accordance with the

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

| Rs. 4,20,00,000/- (Per Annum)

28/02/2005

Mr. R.V. Chakrapani is the father of Ms. Sneha Redla
and Mr. Nagarjun Redla, who are also part of the
Company’s Board of Directors.

| 12

|



Directorship  of other | [S | Name of the
Boards . | Companies/Bodies Deslgnsiion
J N | Corporate/firms/association
o | of individual I
1 | Aarveeg Engineering Managing
Consultants Limited Director

; 2 | Aarvee Software Technologies | Director
' Private Limited

3 | SRA 0SS India Private Limited | Director
4 | Operations Research Group Nominee
Private Limited Director

5 | Onapakshi LLP Partner
. 6 | Durgam Cheruvu Collective Partner
: LLP
‘Membership /| Nil - o
' Chairmanship of '
| Committee  of  other

| Boards
| I— - S I . - - P iy T — — _l

Your Directors recommend the resolution set out in the accompanying Notice
for the approval of the members by way of a Special Resolution.

Except Mr. R.V. Chakrapani and his relatives, none of the other Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel, or their relatives are in any way concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in the proposed resolution.

//By Order of the Board//

For Aarvee Engineering Consultants Limited
(Formerly Aarvee Associates Architects Engineers and Consultants Private Limited)

-

"4

Venkatachala Chakrapani Redla Venkateshwar Reddy Banda
Managing Director Whole time Director
DiIN: 00576037 DIN: 01623401

Date: 29/09/2025
Place: Hyderabad




Form No. MGT-11

PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

Name of the member(s):
Registered address:
E-mail Id:

Folio No / Client ID:
DPID:

I / We, being the member(s) holding shares of the above named
company, hereby appoint

1. Name: Address:
E-mail Id: ___Signature: , or failing
him

2; Name: Address:
E-mail Id: Signature:

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at
the 20™ Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Tuesday,
September 30, 2025 at 12:00 Noon (IST) at its 4th Floor, Trendset Towers, Road
No. 2, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad-500034, Telangana, India, and at any
adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated above:

Signed this day of 2025. Please affix

Signature of Shareholder(s)

Revenue Stamp

Signature of Proxy holder(s)



Attendance Slip

To be handed over at the entrance of the meeting hatl

Name of the Member

__Name of the proxy (To be filled if the proxy attends instead of the member) |

| Registered Folio No.
ClientID
No. of shares held:

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 20" Annual General Meeting to be
held at, M/s. Aarvee Engineering Consultants Limited (Formerly Aarvee
Associates Architects Engineers and Consultants Private Limited) held at its 4t
Floor, Trendset Towers, Road No. 2, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad-500034,
Telangana, India, on Tuesday, 30 September 2025 at 12:00 Noon (IST).

Hyderabad, __/_ /2025 (Member’s/Proxy’s
Signature)

(To be signed at the time of handing over the slip)

Member/Proxy holder are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report at
the Annual General Meeting. Copies will not be distributed at the Meeting.
Member/Proxy holder should also bring a valid photo identity (i.e. PAN/AADHAR
etc.) for identification purpose.



DETAILS OF VENUE OF THE 20TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Day, Date, Time & Address: Tuesday, 30th September 2025 at 12:00 Noon (IST)
at 4" Floor, Trendset Towers, Road No.2, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad-500034,

Telangana, India

Route Map
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To

The Members,

M/s. Aarvee Engineering Consultants Limited

(Formerly Aarvee Associates Architects Engineers and Consultants Private Limited)

Your Directors’ are pleased to present the 20™ Annual Report of the Company for the year ended
31 March, 2025.

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY/HIGHLIGHTS
{(Pursuant to Section 134(3)(q) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(5)(i) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

As on 31 March 2025, the Financials of the Company are as under;
(Rs in Millions)

f Standalone Consolidated
Particulars 2024- 2023- 2024- 2023-
2025 2024 2025 2024
Revenue from Operations 5,545.39 5,068.28 5,671.32 | 5,170.01
Other Income 71.68 42,76 71.75 42.94
TotalIncome 5,617.07 5,111.04 5,743.08 5,212.95
Finance Cost 141.92 104.52 142.59 104.55
Depreciation  and amortization 133.58 132.39 136.37 132.31
expense
Employee Benefit Expenses 2,679.60 2,298.32 2,760.42 | 2,346.31
Consultancy and technical Charges 1,485.97 1,5620.12 1,545.33 1,5675.24
Other Expenses 392.30 499.66 421.23 520.89
Total Expenses 4,833.37 4,5654.93 5,005.94 4,679.32
Profit before Exceptional item and tax 788.70 556.11 737.14 533.63
Exceptional Item - - - -
Profit/{Loss) before tax 783.70 556.11 737.14 533.63
Current Tax 209.52 150.98 210.72 142.52
Deferred Tax 5.35 (17.17) 5.29 (17.17)
:::nt! (Lpas) Tor the: pered (Afue 568.84 422.31 515.95 408.55




Total Ccomprehensive income for
the vyear attributable to equity {9.39) 13.55 (9.83) 13.55
shareholders
Earnings per equity share (Basic) 13.54 10.05 12.28 9.73
Earnings per share (Diluted) 13.54 10.05 12.28 9.73

2. MATERIAL EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Pursuant to Section 134(3)(1) of the Companies Act, 2013)

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have
occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate and the
date of this Directors’ Report.

3. STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

During the year under review, the Company has recorded Total Income of 5,617.07 Millions
against 5,111.04 Millions in the previous year and Profit after Tax (“PAT”) of 568.84 Millions against
422.31 Millions in the previous year. The Directors continue to strive towards improving the
performance of the company and ensure a better performance in the upcoming years.

On consolidated basis, the Total Income has also marked an increase to 5 ,743.08 Millions from
5,212.95 Millions. Further, Profit after Tax (“PAT”) have also been increased to 515.95 Millions
from 408.55 Millions.

4. REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE AND STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

The Directors are pleased to report that the Company delivered a strong performance during the
year, despite challenging global and domestic conditions. While many sectors saw slowdowns,
we remained resilient, agile, and focused—achieving growth through engineering excellence and
customer-centric innovation.

We strengthened our position as a global engineering and technology solutions provider, helping
clients design, build, and operate next-generation systems with high standards of safety,
reliability, and sustainability. Our deep technical expertise and advanced digital capabilities
enabled us to consistently create value, even in a volatile market.

Looking ahead, the Company remains focused on accelerating innovation, strengthening global
partnerships, and pursuing strategic opportunities aligned with our long-term vision of enabling a
digital, autonomous, and sustainable future. With a strong foundation in place, we are confident




that the momentum built during this extraordinary year will drive continued growth and create
lasting value for all stakeholders.

5. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY
(Pursuant to Section 134(3)(q) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(5)(ii) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

During the year, there were no changes in the nature of the business, and the Company continued
with its existing operations and line of business.

6. RESERVES

(Pursuant to Section 134(3)(j) of Companies Act, 2013)

The Company has transferred 208.82 Million to the reserves during the financial year.

7. EXTRACTS OF ANNUAL RETURN
(pursuant to section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013)

As the Company have website, the amended provisions of section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act,
2013 regarding placing of Annual Return, the Annual Return of the Company is placed on the
website of the Company at https://aarvee,com .

8. CHANGE IN THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY

During the year under review, there was no change in the Registered Office of the Company.

9. COMPOSITION OF BOARD

The Company has four Executive Directors. The composition of the Board of directors as on 31
March 2025 is as below:

S. No. NAME OF THE DIRECTORS DESIGNATION
1. Venkatachala Chakrapani Redla Managing Director
2, Venkateshwar Reddy Banda Whole Time Director
3. Kishore Kumar Mekala Whole Time Director
4, Malladi Murthy Whole Time Director
5. *Sneha Redla Director
6. *Nagarjuﬁ Redla Director




* Ms. Sneha Redla and Mr. Nagarjun Redla were appointed as Directors of the Company with
effect from 30-09-2024 in the 19" Annual General Meeting held on 30 September 2024.

10. ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT BOARD MEETINGS AND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
AND COMMITTEE MEETING

(Pursuant to section 134(3)(b) of companies Act, 2013 and Secretarial Standard-1 )]

The Company has held 23 (Twenty-Three) Board Meeting during the Financial Year under review.

Total number of SRTIRELEEES
S. No. Date of Meeting Directors as on the Number of % of
datsof mesting directora attendance
attended
1. 01-04-2024 4 4 100%
2. 22-04-2024 4 4 100%
3. 24-05-2024 4 4 100%
4. 15-06-2024 4 4 100%
5. 24-06-2024 4 4 100%
6. 06-07-2024 4 4 100%
7. 21-08-2024 4 4 100%
8. 29-08-2024 4 4 100%
9, 05-09-2024 4 4 100%
10. 13-09-2024 4 4 100%
11. 21-09-2024 4 4 100%
12 16-10-2024 6 5 83%
13. 08-11-2024 6 5 83%
14. 05-12-2024 6 5 83%
15. 30-12-2024 6 6 100%
16. 02-01-2025 6 6 100%
17. 09-01-2025 6 6 100%
18. 10-01-2025 6 6 100%
19. 17-01-2025 6 6 100%
20. 04-02-2025 6 6 100%




21. 13-03-2025 6 5 83%
22, 28-03-2025 6 5 83%
23. 29-03-2025 6 5 83%

Attendance of Directors

Board Meetings
No of
S.No. Name of the Director Mf’eti"gs No..of Attendance
Whl(.:h were Meetings at last AGM
entitled to attended
attend
1. Venkatachala Chakrapani Redla 23 23 Yes
2. | Venkateshwar Reddy Banda 23 23 Yes
3. | Kishore Kumar'Mekala 23 23 Yes
4. Malladi Murthy 23 23 Yes
5. Sneha Redla 12 12 Yes
6. Nagarjun Redla 12 6 Yes
COMMITTEE MEETINGS

CORPORATE SQCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Company has held 2 (Two) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR) Meetings during
the financial year under review.

Attendance
Total number of
S.No. | Date of Meeting Members as on the Number of % of
date of meeting Members attendance
attended
. 24-05-2024 3 3 100%
2. 05-09-2024 3 3 100%
GENERAL MEETINGS
Total No. Attendance
Date
of of No. of % of
Type of meeting aei Merrjbers Memb total
g entitled ers shar
to attend Attend ehol




meeting ed ding
Annual General Meeting 30/09/2024 10 3 95.01
Extra- Ordinary  General 17/12/2024 10 3 95.01
Meeting
Extra. Ordinary  General 10/01/2025 10 4 97.81
Meeting
Extra' Ordinary  General 20/01/2025 10 4 97.81
Meeting
Extra. Ordinary General 28/03/2025 10 4 97.81
Meeting

11. DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
In pursuance of section 134(3)(c) & section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors

hereby confirm that:

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of
the company for that period;

¢) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of
the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e} The directors, in the case of a listed company, had laid down internal financial controls to be
followed by the company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were
operating effectively - NOT APPLICABLE

f) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

12. FRAUD REPORTING
(pursuant to section 134(3)(ca) of the Companies Act, 2013)

in the terms of provision of the Companies Act 2013, during the year under review, there was no
case of offense of fraud detected by the Auditors under sub section 12 of section 143.




13. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
(pursuant to section 134(3)(d) of the Companies Act, 2013)

The Company has converted its status from a Private Limited Company to a Public Limited
Company with effect from 06 February, 2025. Pursuant to this change, the Company is now
categorized as a public company in terms of the Companies Act, 2013.

As per the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 March, 2024, the turnover
of the Company exceeds 3100 crore. Accordingly, in compliance with the provisions of Section
149(4) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the Company is required to appoint Independent
Directors.

The Company is currently in the process of evaluating and shortlisting suitable candidates for the
position of Independent Director. Upon finalization of a suitable profile, the appointment shall be
made in compliance with the applicable statutory provisions.

14. COMPANY’S POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION INCLUDING
CRITERIA FOR DETERMINING QUALIFICATIONS, POSITIVE ATTRIBUTES, INDEPENDENCE OF A
DIRECTOR AND OTHER MATTERS PROVIDED UNDER SUB-SECTION (3) OF SECTION 178
(pursuant to section 134(3)(e) of the Companies Act, 2013)

The Company is in the process of constituting the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(NRC), which wilt include the requisite Independent Directors as mandated under applicable laws.
Simultaneously, the Remuneration Policy is being drafted and will be adopted upon the formal
constitution of the NRC.

15. LOANS, GUARANTEES & INVESTMENTS
(Pursuant to section 134(3)(g) read with 186 of companies Act, 2013)

Details of loans, Guarantees & Investments covered under section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 are given in the notes to the financial statement.

16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Pursuant to section 134(3)(h) read with 188(1) of Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made

thereunder)

The related party transactions entered into in accordance with Section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 are ongoing and were in existence prior to the commencement of the Act.

All such transactions are conducted on an arm's length basis.




The details of the transaction with Related Party are covered in Form AOC 2 attached as
Annexure Il and provided in the accompanying financial statements which may be treated as part
of Directors’ Report.

17. DIVIDEND
(Pursuant to Section 134(3)(k) of the Companies Act, 2013)

The Directors did not recommend any dividend for this Financial Year.

18. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION
FUND

The provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable, as no dividend
was declared in the previous financial year.

19. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
OuTGO

(Disclosure as required U/s.134 (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules relevant there
under)

A. Conservation of Energy:

The Company does not use energy-intensive equipment for its operations. However, due to
significant awareness Campaigns within the Company the employees are very averse to the
wastage of power and consequently the consumption is one of the lowest per employee. The
computers, air-conditioners and other equipment being used by the company are energy efficient
and environment-friendly.

B. Research and Development (R & D):

The Company does not have a Research and Development unit, or any activity related to R&D in
india. The company does not incur any revenue or capital expenditure on R&D.

The company also focuses on Automation systems / software, which helps in increased
productivity & reduced manual intervention. These automation systems would not only lead to
cost savings, but also ensure error-free consistent output.

C. Technology Absorption, Adaptation and Innovation:

a. Technology imported Nil
b. Year of import NA




¢. Has technology has been fully absorbed  NA
d. Technical collaborator NA

The Company always focuses on adoption of the latest Technology & Equipment.
D. Foreign exchange earnings and outgo:

Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows and the Foreign Exchange outgo in terms of
actual outflows during the year is as under:

y 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Particulars L I
(Rs. In Millions) (Rs. In Millions)
Earned during the year 583.17 284.01
Used during the year 281.06 197.07

E. Particulars of Employees:

Except for the Directors whose remuneration exceeds the prescribed limits and for whom a
special resolution has been passed in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, no other employee of the Company has drawn remuneration in excess of the limits
specified under Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, during the Financial Year 2024-25. Recognizing that employees play a
vital role in achieving the Company’s objectives, regular training programs are conducted to equip
them to meet evolving challenges and ensure the highest level of client satisfaction.

NUMBER OF THE EMPLOYEES AS ON THE CLOSURE OF FINANCIAL YEAR

Number of employees as on the closure of financial year:

Female: 211
Male : 2974
Transgender: 0

20. DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING VIGIL
MECHANISM

Pursuant to the conversion of the Company from a Private Limited Company to a Public Limited
Company, effective February 6, 2025, the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013
became applicable to the Company. In accordance with Rules 6 and 7 of the Companies
(Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013, the Company is now required to constitute an
Audit Committee comprising of Independent Directors. The Company is currently in the process of




finalizing the appointment of Independent Directors. Upon such appointment, the Audit
Committee will be duly constituted in compliance with the applicable provisions.

21. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
(Pursuant to Section 134(3)(n) of the Companies Act, 2013)

The Company has adequate internal control systems in place, commensurate with its size and the
nature of its business, to ensure effective oversight of the purchase of fixed assets and the sale of
goods and services. The Board of Directors reviews the Company’s risk management procedures
on a regular basis during its meetings.

Furthermore, the Company is in the process of drafting a comprehensive Risk Management Policy.
Once finalized, the policy will be placed before the Board of Directors for approval and formal
adoption.

22. DETAILS OF CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY (CSR)
(Pursuant to section 134(3)(0) and Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
thereunder)

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR Committee) of the Company has formulated
and recommended to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy) indicating
the activities to be undertaken by the Company, which has been approved by the Board.

The Annual Report on CSR activities is enclosed as per prescribed format Annexure-Ill and forms
part of this report.

23. INFORMATION ABOUT THE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE / FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
SUBSIDIARIES / ASSOCIATES/ IV
(Pursuant to Section 134(3)(q) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder)

As on 31 March 2025, the Company has two Foreign Wholly Owned Subsidiaries:

1) M/s. Aarvee Engineering Consultants Pty Ltd., Austratia® and
2) M/s. Aarvee Associates Limited, UK

*The name of M/s. Aarvee Associates Pty Ltd was changed to M/s. Aarvee Engineering
Consultants Pty Ltd with effect from 16 May, 2025.

The following are three Indian Wholly Owned Subsidiaries
1) Nag Infrastructure Consulting Engineers Private Limited
2) SRA OSS India Private Limited




3) Hyve Global Engineering Private Limited

The details of subsidiaries of the Company are given in Form AOC 1 attached as Annexure [ and
provided in the accompanying financial statements which may be treated as part of directors’
report.

24. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANANGERIAL PERSONNEL
(Pursuant to Section 134(3)(q) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder)

During the financial year, the following are the changes that took place in the Composition of
Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP):

S.No. Name of the Director/KMP Designation olif:\:::::::tia::t
g Ms. Sneha Redla (DIN: 09592284) Director 30/09/2024
2. Mr. Nagarjun Redla (DN: 10773396) Director 30/09/2024
3. Ms. Sugandha Khandelwal Company Secretary 01/11/2024

Since no Director resigned during the year, the disclosure in your Director's Report as required
U/S. 168(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not required.

Further, Mr. Venkata Subrahmanyam Valavala was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer (CFQ)
of the Company vide its Board Meeting held on 30 June, 2025.

25. DEPOSITS
(Pursuant to Section 134(3)(q) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder)

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits from public within the meaning of
Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rutes,
2014 during the year under review.

26. SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS
(Pursuant to Section 134(3)(q) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder)

No significant material orders have been passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which
would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

27. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
(Pursuant to Section 134(qg) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder)

The Company’s internal audit systems are geared towards ensuring adequate internal controls
commensurate with the size and needs of the business, with the objective of efficient conduct of




operations through adherence to the Company’s policies, identifying areas of improvement,
evaluating the reliability of Financial Statements, ensuring compliances with applicable laws and
regulations and safeguarding assets from unauthorized use.

28. POLICY ON PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT
WORKPLACE

During the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the Company remained firmly committed to
fostering a safe, respectful, and inclusive work environment for all employees. To this end, the
Company has implemented comprehensive policies and procedures aimed at preventing and
addressing incidents of sexual harassment in the workplace. These measures are in strict
compliance with the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013.

The Company has established an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) to effectively consider and
resolve complaints of sexual harassment reported by women employees. The ICC is constituted in
accordance with the requirements of the Act and includes external members from NGOs or
individuals with relevant expertise. Each committee is chaired by a senior woman employee, and
women constitute the majority of the committee members. This structure ensures impartial
investigations and fair resolution of all complaints. The Company maintains a zero-tolerance
stance towards sexual harassment and is committed to upholding the highest standards of
workplace safety and dignity for all employees.

Details of complaints received during the year under review under Sexual Harassment of Women
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 are as under:

a. Number of complaints of sexual harassment received in the year:
The Company has not received any complaints of sexual harassment during the year under
review.

b. Number of complaints disposed off during the year:
Since the company has not received any complaints during the year, there was no

requirement of disposing off complaints.

c. Number of cases pending for more than ninety days:
There are no cases pending for more than ninety days.

29. COMPLAINCE WITH MATERNITY BENEFIT

The Company affirms that it has duly complied with all provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act,
1961, and has extended all statutory benefits to eligible women employees during the year.




30. PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016
(Pursuant to Section 134(3)(q) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder)

During the year under review, there were no applications made or proceedings pending in the
name of the Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

31. ANY VALUATION DONE EITHER AT OTS OR WHILE TAKING ANY LOAN FROM BANK OR
FINANCIAL INSTITUTION

(Pursuant to Section 134(3)(q) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder)

During the year there was no necessity arose for the Company to obtain the valuation either as
part of “One Time Settlement” or while taking any loan from any Banks or Financials institutions,
since no such transactions happened in the company and accordingly disclosing

the difference between the amounts did not arise.

32. ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES WITH DIFFERENTIAL RIGHTS, SWEAT EQUITY, ESOS, BONUS
SHARE ETC

EVENT BASED DISCLOSURES:
1. [ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES ON RIGHT BASIS:

The Company has not issued any Equity Shares during the year under review.
2. |ISSUE OF SWEAT EQUITY SHARES:

The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review.

3. ISSUE OF SHARES WITH DIFFERENTIAL RIGHTS:

The Company has not issued any Shares with Differential Rights during the year under review.
4. ISSUE OF SHARES UNDER EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEME:

The Company has not issued any Shares under Employee Stock Option Scheme during the year
under review.

5. ISSUE OF BONUS SHARES:

During the financial year, the Company has issued 3,60,00,000 (Three Crore Sixty Lakhs) equity
shares of ¥10/- (Rupees Ten only) each, amounting to ¥36,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty-Six Crores




only), by way of a Bonus Issue in the ratio of 6:1, i.e., six fully paid-up equity shares of ¥10/- each
for every one existing equity share of ¥10/- each, by capitalizing the free reserves of the Company.
The Bonus Issue was duly approved by the Board of Directors and the Members of the Company at
their respective meetings held on 28 March, 2025.

6. BUY BACK OF SECURITIES:
The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review.
33. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

None of the employees of the company draw remuneration in excess of the limits prescribed
under the provision of Rule 5(2) of the companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel), Rule 2014, during the Financial Year 2024-25.

34. STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. P.R. Datla & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 006067S), had been re-appointed as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company for a second term of five consecutive years, commencing from
the conclusion of the 19" Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 24" Annual General
Meeting to be held in the year 2029, pursuant to the recommendation of the Board of Directors at
their meeting held on 5 September, 2024 and the approval of the members at the said Annual
General Meeting.

35. QUALIFICATIONS IN AUDIT REPORTS

The Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements are accompanied by the Statutory
Auditors’ Report, which does not contain any qualifications or observations. The Auditors’ Report,
when read together with the Notes and Schedules forming part of the financial statements, is self-
explanatory and requires no further clarification.

36. FRAUDS REPORTED BY THE AUDITORS

There are no frauds reported by auditors under sub-section (12) of section 143 other than those
which are reportable to the Central Government, and accordingly, the information pursuant to
Section 134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, may be treated as nil.

37. COST AUDITORS

The provisions of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 related to Cost Auditors are not applicable to the company.




38. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the requirement for
Secretarial Audit became applicable to the Company following its conversion on 6 February 2025.
Accordingly, the Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2024-25 was conducted, and the report in
Form MR-3 is attached as an Annexure - IV to this Report.

39. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub section
(1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the products/services of the company.

40. COMPLIANCE TO SECRETARIAL STANDARD

The Directors state that applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and $S-2 as amended from
time to time, relating to ‘Meetings of the Board of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’, respectively,
have been duly followed by the Company.

41. ACQUISITION OF SHARES AND CONTROL IN ANY BODY CORPORATE

During the financial year, the Company acquired 100% equity shareholding in the following
companies through the execution of respective Share Purchase Agreements, thereby making
them wholly owned subsidiaries with effect from 31 December, 2024. The acquisitions were
completed by purchasing all shares from their existing shareholders:

a. Nag Infrastructure Consulting Engineers Private Limited

b. SRA OSS India Private Limited

c. Hyve Global Engineering Private Limited

42. VIGIL MECHANISM

The company has adopted a Whistle blower policy, to provide formal mechanism to the directors
and employees to report their concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or
violation of the company’s code of conduct or ethics policy. The Board of directors has nominated
Mr. Mekala Kishore Kumar for the purpose of Whistle blower policy to which other directors and
employees may report their concerns. The policy provides for adequate safeguards against
victimization of employees and directors who avail of Whistle blower policy and provide for direct
access to the Mr. Mekala Kishore Kumar nominated by the Board of Directors.




43. CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL DURING THE YEAR

During the financial year, the Company increased its Authorized Share Capital from £9,00,00,000
(Rupees Nine Crores only), divided into 90,00,000 (Ninety Lakhs) equity shares of ¥10/- each, to
X75,00,00,000 (Rupees Seventy-Five Crores only), divided into 7,50,00,000 (Seven Crores Fifty
Lakhs) equity shares of $10/- each.

This increase in Authorized Share Capital was approved by the shareholders at the Extraordinary
General Meeting (EGM) held on 10 January, 2025, and the Company has accordingly altered
Clause 5 of its Memorandum of Association (MOA) to reflect the revised capital structure. The
newly authorized shares shall rank pari passu in all respects with the existing equity shares of the
Company.

44. AMENDMENTS TO COMPANY NAME AND LEGAL STATUS DURING THE YEAR
A) Change in name of the Company

During the financial year, the Company changed its name from “Aarvee Associates Architects
Engineers and Consultants Private Limited” to “Aarvee Engineering Consultants Limited”.

The change was duly approved by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 05* December,
2024, and subsequently by the Members of the Company at their meeting held on 17" December,
2024. Following the necessary approvals, the Registrar of Companies issued a fresh Certificate of
Incorporation reflecting the new name on 08 January, 2025.

B) Conversion of status of the Company

The Company applied for conversion of its status from a Private Limited Company to a Public
Limited Company, which was duly approved by the Board of Directors and the Members at their
respective meetings held on 17 January, 2025, and 20January, 2025. Following the necessary
approvals and completion of statutory formalities, the Registrar of Companies issued a fresh
Certificate of Incorporation reflecting the new name on 06 February, 2025.

45. CHANGES SUBSEQUENT TO THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR UP TO THE DATE OF THIS
REPORT

Appointment of Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company

The Company has appointed Mr. Venkata Subrahmanyam Valavala as the Chief Financial Officer
(CFO) of the Company vide its Board Meeting held on 30 June, 2025.
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For Aarvee Engineering Consultants Limited
(Formerly Aarvee Associates Architects Engineers and Consultants Private Limited)

Venkateséwar Re'ddy Banda

Venkatachala Chakrapani Redls
Whole time Director

Managing Director
DIN: 00576037 DIN: 01623401

Date: 04 August, 2025
Place: Hyderabad




ANNEXURE -1
Form ACC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-saection (3} of section 128 read with rule 5 of Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of
subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

infarmation in respect of each subsidiary 10 be presented as at 31 March, 2025:

g Particulars Details
Na.
Nag
infrastructu
Aarvee- e . SRA C_)SS Hyw‘e Glo!)al
Name of the Engineering ; . India Engineering
1. i Assoaciate Consulting . i
subsidiary Consultants Limited Engineers Private Private
Pty Ltd ¢ Limited Limited
Private
Limited
The datg since
2. } whensubsidiary | 21.08.2011 [15.11.2022|31.12.2024 |31.12.2024 31.12.2024
was acquired
Reporting period
for the
subsidiary
q concerned, if April to Aprilto Aprilto Aprilto Aprilto
) different from March March March March March
the holding
company’s
reporting period
Reporting
currency and
Exchange rate as AUD
on the last date (Australian GBP {Paund INR INR INR
4, of the relevant Sterling) {Indian {Indian {Indian
. . . Doilar)
financial yearin Rupee) Rupee} Rupee)
the case of
foreign
subsidiaries
. INR INR INR
h. Share capital AUD 100 £100 48.03 lakhs| 1 Lakh 1 Lakh
Reserves & AUD 203.65 (21.02) 17.01
& surplus h50,833 Elaai28) Lakhs Lakhs Lakhs
7. Total assets AUD £ 80,023 1,203.78 131.52 37.23




1,247,195 Lakhs Lakhs Lakhs
e AUD 1,203.78 131.52 37.23
3. Total Liabilities 696.262 f 828,656 Lakhs Lakhs Lakhs
9. Investments 4 0 0 Q 0
167.54
AlUID 132.31 114.76
10. Turnover 22,32 955 ¥11,658 Lakhs Lakhs Lakhs
Profit/Loss AUD (140.65) 38.55 27.62
1. bafore taxation 97,436 = (537,595) Lakhs Lakhs Lakhs
1. Provrspn for 0 0 0 0 o
taxation
Profit/Loss after AUD (150.05) 31.35 20.67
13. taxation ga198 |37 ) khs Lakhs Lakhs
Praposed
. ot 15 NIL
14 Dividend NIL NIL NEL N
Extent of
15. | shareholding(in 100 % 100 % 100 % 100 % 100 %
percentage)

Notes: The following infarmation shall be furnished at tha and of the statement:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yei to commence gparations-NA

2. Names of subsidiarias which have been liguidated or scld during the year -NA




Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate
Companies and Joint Ventures

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date
2. Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was associated or acquired
3. Shares of Associate/loint Ventures held by the company on the year end
i. No.ofShares
ii. Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture
iii. Extend of Holding (In Percentage)
e e - Not
4. Description of how there is significant influence
: — : 7 Applicable
5. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated
6. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance
Sheet
7. Profit/Loss for the year
i. Consideredin Consolidation
ii. NotConsidered in Consolidation

* The Company has entered into the following unincorporated joint ventures. As these
arrangements do not constitute incorporated entities, disclosure under this section is not
applicable:
e Aarvee KPPA
e Aarvee TCPL
Aarvee AYESA
Aarvee —Vax
AGG - {NFR) Tunnel
Aarvee EINTL-EI
Rites Ltd. India

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations. NA
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year-NA

For Aarvee Engineering Consultants Limited
(Formerly Aarvee Associates Architects Engineers and Consultants Private Limited)

Venkatachala Chakrapani Redla // Venkateshwar Reddy Banda
Managing Director Whole time Director
DIN: 00576037 DIN: 01623401
Date: 04 August, 2025
Place: Hyderabad




Annexure -1l
Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-saction (3) of section 124 of the Act and Rule 8(2} of the Companies [Accounts)} Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangemants entered into by the Company with related parties referred 1o in
sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transacttons under third proviso

thereto:

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s (ength basis:

The Company has not entared into any contract, arrangement, or transaction with its related parties, which is not at Arm’'s
Lsngth, during the financial year 2024-25.

Details of matsrial contracts or arrangement or transacticns at arm’s length basis-

Salient terms of

Duration of the Date{s) of | Amount
Nature of contracts or contracts or .
Name(s) of the Relatad Party contracts or approval by | paid as
arrangements ar arrangements or
& Nature of Relationship arrangements . the Board, | advances,
transactions transactions including | . A
or transactions ] if any ifany
the valua, if any
: . g Consuitancy .
Limited : On- . i
wu”%_mﬂﬂﬂw aﬂm“wﬁ n_wﬂ__m Receipts szmnwwwm Receipt of Services 01-04-2024 -
Y P Rs.100.4 (I Lakhs)
Nag Infrastructure Consulting Consultancy On-gain
Engineers Private Limited Recseipts oc_.mqmnm Recseipt of Services 01-04-2024 -
(Wholly-Owned Subsidiary] Re. 181.6 {In Lakhs)
Nag Infrastructure Consuiting .
" . |5 R -
Engineers Private Limited mM:Mmem_. (In Lakhs) Mw:m%m_.ﬂm Leasing of property 01-04-2024 -
Wholly-Owned Subsidiary) o=
mi— I S e —— e M




R.V. Ghakrapani- [Managing

Managing Director Rent On-going . L

{Key Managerial Persanal) Rs. 26.66 (In lakhs) Contract Leasing of property GO

K Nirmala Rent On-going .

(Reiative of diractor) Rs. 27.76 (In Lakhs} Contract Leasing of property QiRDaz2023 i

Date: 04 August, 2025
Place: Hyderabad

For Aarvee Engineering Cansultants Limited
{Formerly Aarvea Associates Architects Engj
7

e
g
&
-
-
B,

<

Venkatachala Chakrapani Redla Venkateshwar Reddy Banda
Managing Director Whole time Director
DIN: 00576037 DIN: 01623401




ANNEXURE-II

Annual Report on CSR Activities for financial year 2024-25

1. Brief outline on CSR policy of the Company:

Aarvee Engineering Consultants Limited has aimed at serving the needs for the community and is a socially responsible

corparate to give back to society towards sustainabla care and development.

The policy includes all the programs as per Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder. The

Company has formed a CSR policy to regulate working of GSR activities,

2. Composition of the CSR Committee:

Designation f Number of meetings of Number of meetings of
8.Na. | Name of the Director Nature of CSR Committee held CSR Committee attended
Directorship during the year during the year
1. Redla Venkatachala Chakrapani | Chairman 2 2
Chairman and Managing
Diractor
2. Meakala Kishore Kumar Member 2 2
Whole-Time Director
3. Murthy Malladi Member 2 2
Whole-Time Director




Web-link where Compaosition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Prajects approved by the beard are disclosed on the
websita of the company: www.aarvee.com
Executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3)
of rule 8, if applicaible: Not Applicable
(a) Average Net Profit of the company as per sub-section (5} of section 135: Rs, 46,59,12,187/-
(b} Two per cent of average net profit of the Company as per sub-section {5) of section 135; Rs. 93,18,244/-
(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previaus financial years: Nit
{d) Amount reguired to be set-off for the financial year, if any: Nil
a. Total CSR obligation for the financialyear [{b)+(c)-(d}]: Rs. Rs. 93,18,244/-
{a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project): Rs. 33,80,247/- (Spent from CC
A/c) + Rs. 34,42,545/- (Spent from Unspent CSR A/c) =Total Amount Spent was Rs, 68,22,792/-
(b} Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
(¢) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable; Nil

{d) Total amount spent for the Financial Yaar [(a)}+(b}+{c)]: Rs. 68,22,792/-




{e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Spent

for the Financial

Amount Unspent {in Rs.}

Total Amount transferred to Unspent

Amount transferred to any fund specified under

Year. CSR Account as per sub-section (6) of | Scheduls VIl as per second provisoe to sub-section (6) of
{in Rs.) section 135. section 135.
Amount Date of transfer | Name of the Fund Amount Date of
transfer
Rs. 33,80,247/- - - - - =
(f) Excass amount for set-off, if any: Nil
7. Details of Unspent Corporate Sccial Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years:
S.No. | Preceeding Amaotnt Balance Amount Amaoaunt transferred to a Amount Deficlency,
Financial transferred Amountin | spentinthe | fund as specified under | remaining to if any
Year(s) toUnspent | Unspent CSR | Financial Schedule VIl as per be spentin
CSR Account Account Year second proviso to sub- | succeeding
under under sub- {in Rs.) section {B) of section Financial
saction 135 | section(8)of 135, if any Years
(6} section 135 Amount Date of {inRs.}
(in Rs.} {in Rs.} {in Rs.) transfer
1. 2021-22 -
53,06,103 18,17,708.95 | 18,17,709 - - 0




2. 2022-23 -
56,05,275 7,438,784 3,03,254 - - 4,45,530

3. 2023-24 -
25,92,6356 25,92,635 13,21,682 - - 12,711,053

8. Whether any capital assets have baen created or acquired through Corporate Secial Respensibility amaount spent in the

Financial Year: No

8. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failad to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per subsection (5) of
gection 135:
The Company is executing certain multiyear ongoing projects.

in respect of Unspent CSR funds, the Company has deposited the budgeted amounts in Separate Bank Accounts.

For Aarvee Engineering Consultants Limited
{Formerly Aarvee Associates Architects Engineers and Consultants Private Limited)

K Guaducocfrans

Venkatachala Chakrapani Redla
Managing Director
DIN: 00576037

Venkateshwar Reddy Banda
Whole time Director
DIN: 01623401

Date: 04 August, 2025
Place: Hyderabad




ﬂs C.N.Kranthi Kumar
Company Secretary in Practice

Form No. MR -3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2025
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Aarvee Engineering Consultants Limited,

(Formerly Aarvee Associates Architects Engineers and Consultants Private Limited),
CIN: U74200TG2005PLC045491,

8-2-5, Ravula Residency, Srinagar Colony Main Road,

Hyderabad — 500082, Telangana, India.

| have conducted the Secretarial Audit for compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Aarvee Engineering Consultants
Limited (herein after called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts /
statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance of the applicable laws and
maintenance of records based on audit. | have conducted the audit in accordance with
the applicable Auditing Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of
India (herein after called the “ICSI”). The Auditing Standards require that the Auditor
shall comply with statutory and regulatory reqdirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about compliance with applicable laws and maintenance
of records.

Due to the inherent limitations of an audit including internal, financial and operating
controls, there is an unavoidable risk that some misstatements or material non-
complianées may not be detected, even though the audit is properly planned and
performed in accordance with the Auditing Standards.
gC.N.KRANTHI KUMAR
TNy Company Secretary V

ALl

A

) |

7675001122
kranthisarkar369@gmail.com

H.No0.80/67-5, Krishna Nagar, Opp ITC, Kurnool, Andhra Pradesh, 518002.



Report

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31-03-2025, complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject
to the reporting made hereinafter :

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31-03-2025,
according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) and the rules made there under;
(ii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iii) ~ Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(iv)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and
Sweat Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities Debt Securities) Regulations, 2021; g

C.N.KRANTHI KUMAR

Vi Company Secretary
Ny in Practice
O[Regd. 2014 |




(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
Client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations 2021;

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
2018;

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

| further report, that the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws such as
direct tax, indirect tax and accounting standards for maintenance of financial records
and books of accounts have not been reviewed in this Audit, since the same have been
reviewed and verified by the Statutory Auditors, hence | would not be able to express
my opinion on the same.

I further report, that the Company, as on date of signing of this report, being an unlisted
company, the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder and the regulations and guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) are not applicable to the Company.

| further report that having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company,
and on examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, the
Company has complied with the other laws specifically and to the extent applicable to
the Company.

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India as
notified from time to time;

(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s)
[Not applicable as the Company has not entered into any listing agreements as on
date of signing of this report]

!

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, Bye-laws, etc. mentioned above subject.

wC.N.KRANTHI KUMAR

Company Secretary
%' % in Practice
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| further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with 5 directors in executive
and 1 director in non-executive category. There were changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors that took place during the period under review, and were in
compliance with the provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance (except meetings
convened at a shorter notice), and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through, and the same are captured and recorded as part of
the minutes, and.there were no dissenting members’ views.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

| further report that during the audit period, the Company has the following specific
event / action having a major bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the
above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc, which are as follows:

1) The name of the Company was changed from AARVEE ASSOCIATES ARCHITECTS
ENGINEERS AND CONSULTANTS PRIVATE LIMITED to AARVEE ENGINEERING
CONSULTANTS PRIVATE LIMITED in the Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on
17/12/2024.

2) Alteration of Memorandum of Association of the Company and Articles of
Association of the Company in the Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on
17/12/2024.

3) The Company acquired 10,000 (Ten Thousand) equity shares of Rs.10/- each
(100% of the total paid up share capital) in HYVE GLOBAL ENGINEERING PRIVATE
LIMITED (HGEPL) with which HGEPL has become wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company on 31/12/2024.

4) The Company acquired 10,000 (Ten Thousand) equity shares of Rs.10/- each
(100% of the total paid up share capital) SRA 0SS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (SOIPL)
with which SOIPL has become wholly owned subsidiary of the Company on
31/12/2024.

g C.N.KRANTHI KUMAR

Company Secretary

% in Practice
Regd. 2014 |
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5) The Company acquired 4,80,288 (Four Lakhs Eight Thousand Two Hundred and
Eighty Eight) equity shares of Rs.10/- each in NAG INFRASTRUCTURE
CONSULTING ENGINEERS PRIVATE LIMITED (NICEPL) with which NICEPL has
become wholly owned subsidiary of the Company on 31/12/2024.

6) The Authorised Share Capital of the Company was increased from
Rs.9,00,00,000/- (Rupees Nine Crores only) divided into 90,00,000 (Ninety Lakhs)
equity shares of Rs.10/- each to Rs.75,00,00,000/- (Rupees Seventy Five Crores
only) divided into 7,50,00,000 (Seven Crores Fifty Lakhs) equity shares of Rs.10/-
each, ranking pari passu in all respects with the existing shares of the Company in
the Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on 10/01/2025.

7) Conversion of AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS PRIVATE LIMITED, a
“PRIVATE COMPANY” into AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED, a
“PUBLIC COMPANY” in the Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on 20/01/2025.

8) Alteration of Memorandum of Association of the Company and Articles of
Association of the Company in the Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on
20/01/2025.

9) Allotment of Bonus Shares of 3,60,00,000 (Three Crores Sixty Lakhs) equity shares
of Rs.10/- each in the ratio of 6:1 to the existing shareholders in the Board
Meeting held on 29/03/2025.

Note: This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as
Annexure — ‘A’ forming an integral part of this report.

’\ o.‘ e sl
C.N.Kranthi Kumar
Company Secretary in Practice

M.No.F9255 CP No.13889
UC-12014AP1227000

Place: Hyderabad - PR -6218/2024
Date: 30/07/2025 UDIN: FO09255G000891708
4
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ANNEXURE - 'A’

To
The Members

Aarvee Engineering Consultants Limited
(Formerly Aarvee Associates Architects Engineers and Consultants Private Limited)

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of
Aarvee Engineering Consultants Limited (the “Company”). My responsibility is to
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. | have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial
records. The 'verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in secretarial records. | believe that the processes and practices, | followed
provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. | have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
books of accounts of the Company.

4. Where ever required, | have obtained the management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and happening of events, etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

[ ) CE
L? = Ne—

C.N.Kranthi Kumar

Company Secretary in Practice
M.No.F9255 CP No.13889
UC-12014AP1227000

Place: Hyderabad PR -6218/2024
Date: 30/07/2025 UDIN: FO09255G000891708
C.N.KRANTHI KUMAR%
‘Company Secretary V]
> in Practice W

“ O[rega. 2014 |&
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of
AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED

{formerly known as Aarvee Assaciates Architects Engineers & Consultants Private Limmited)
Report on the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the Standalone financial statements of AARVEE ENGINEERING
CONSULTANTS LIMITED (formerly known as Aarvee Asscciates Architects
Engineers & Consuitants Private Limited} ("the Company”), which comprise the
Ralance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date, and notes to
the financial statements, including material accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, and based on the consideration of reports of the other
auditors on separate financial statements of foreign branches referred to in the
‘Other Matters’ section below, the aforesaid standalone financial statements
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) In the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS™)
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its profit, total comprehensive
income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financia! statements in accordance
with the Standards on Auditing ("SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
*Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements”
secticn of pur report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
{(“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl’s Code of Ethics. We
helieve that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained
by other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the ‘Other Matters’
section below is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion an the standalone financial statements.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thercon, and we do not provide a separate opinicn on these matters. We have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be

communicated in ouyr report.

S | Key Audit Matter Auditor’'s Response

no.

1. | Accuracy of recognition, | Qur audit approach consisted testing of the
measurement, presentation and | design and operating effectiveness of the

disclosures of revenues and other
related balances in respect of Ind AS
115 “Revenue from Contracts with

Customers” (revenue accounting
standard).
The application of the revenue

accounting standard involves certain key
judgements relating to identification of
distinct performance obligations,
determination of transaction price of the
identified performance obligations, the
appropriateness of the basis used to
measure revenue recognized at a pointin
time or over time. Additionally, revenue
accounting standard contains disclosures
which involves collation of information in
respect of disaggregated revenue and
periods over which the remaining
performance obligations will be satisfied
subsequent to the balance sheet date.
Refer clause V of note 2 and note 47
to the Standalone Financial
Statements.

internal controls and substantive testing as
follows:

Evaluated the design of internal
controls relating to implementation of
the revenue accounting standard.

Selected a sample of contracts, and
tested the operating effectiveness of

the internal control, relating to
identification of the distinct
performance obligations and

determination of transaction price. We

carried out a combination of
procedures involving enquiry and
ohservation and  inspection  of

evidence in respect of operation of

these controis.

Selected a sample of contracts and

performed the following procedures:

a. Read, analysed and identified the
distinct performance obligations in
these contracts .

b. Compared these performance |
cbligations with that identified and
recorded by the Company.

c. Considered the terms of the
contracts to determine the
transaction price including any
variable consideration to verify the
transaction price used to compute
revenue and to test the basis of
estimation  of  the _variable | |
consideration.
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d. Performed analytical procedures
for reascnableness of revenues
disclosed by type and service
offerings.

Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor's
Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Management Discussicn and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to
Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and
Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the Ind AS financial statements
and our auditor's repaort thereon.

Qur opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the cther
infarmation and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
ctherwise appears to be materially misstated.

if, based on the work we have perfarmed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for
the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the
preparation of these Standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial positian, financial performance, changesin equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Standalone financial statement that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of directors are
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as & going CONCErprgaTL
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the gofeg
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concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directars are also responsible for oversecing the Company's
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to cbtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but it is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we excrcise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
nrocedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to pravide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resuiting fram error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
ko design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
Under secticn 143(3)(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
respansible for expressing cur cpinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the aperating
effectiveness of such contrals.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

management,

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going
cancern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast signiticant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. Tf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures azehTing

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are hased on the ay&j "“\c»'\\\
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evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report., However, future
events ar conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going cencern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
statements of the Company and its foreign branches to express an
opinion on the standalone financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such entities included in the standalone financial
statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other
entities included in the standalone financial statements, which have been
audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by
them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial
statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes il probable that the
aconomic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality
and qualitative factors in (1) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the cffect of any
identifled misstatements in the standalone financial staternents.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit. '

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
Standalone Financial Statemenis of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s repoit unless law
or regulation precludes public disciosure about the maiter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of S

cemmunication.
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Other Matters

The Standalone Financial Statements includes total assets of 227.96 Millions as
at March 31, 2025 and total revenue of 256.49 Millions and net profit after tax
of 56.08 Millions for the year ended March 31, 2025, in respect of Five (5)
forelgn branches, whose financial statements have not been audited by us.
These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports
have been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the
Standalone Financia! Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of these foreign branches, are based solely on
the reports of such branch auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Crder, 2020 {*the Order”),
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of Section sub-
section{11) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the
‘Annexure A here to a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. (A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and exptanations
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the

purposes of our audit.

b) in our opinicn, praper books of account as required by law have been
kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of

those books.

c) The reports on the actounts of the branch offices of the Company
audited under Section 143 (8} of the Act by branch auditors have
been sent to us and have been properly dealt with by us in preparing
this report.

d} The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Cther Comprehensive Income}, Standalone
Statement of Cash Flows and and the Statement of Changes in Equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the hooks of account.

e) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements comply
with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

f) On the basis of the written representations received frem the
directars as on 01-04-2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors,
none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being_
appointed as a director in terms of Saction 164 (2) of the Act. /A
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g} With respect to the adequacy of the Internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B”.

(B} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report
in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

i. The company does not have any pending litigations which would impact
its financial position except those disclosed in financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable lgsses;

iii. The provisions of the Investor Education and Protection Fund are not
applicable to the Company.

(a)

(b)

()

The Management has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to cr in any other
person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”}, with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatscever by or c¢n behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™ or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Uitimate Beneficiaries;

The Management has represented, that, to the best of its
knrowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity
("Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or an behalf of the Funding Party
("Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Based cn the audit procedures that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has
come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and {ii) of Rule 11(e), as

Xrab

Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad, Telangana $00033
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provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatemeant.

v. Based on our examination which Included test checks, the company has
used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which
has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated with effect from 21-05-2024 for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did
not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.
Further, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the
statutory reguirements for record retention.

Further, for the period under review, the management has represented,
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, that they did not come
across any instance of the fraud or material misstatements, where audit
trail {edit log) facility was not enabled and operated for one period from
01-04-2024 to 20-05-2024throughout the year for the respective
accounting software,

(C) With respect to the matter toc be included in the Auditors’ Report under
Section 197(16):

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditer’s Report
in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as
amended, in our apinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the remunecration paid by the Company
to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V of the Act and the rules
thersunder.

For P.R. Datla and Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 0060675

V.L. Narasimha Rao
Partner
Membership No: 214251

UDIN: 2823925 BT T 6ol

Place: Hyderabad
Date:26-07-2025



PR Datla&Co E: info@prdatla.com D Huk, Plot Ne. 1335, Road Nop. 45,

Chartered Accountants F: 0402340 2065 Jubilee Hills, Hyderakad, Telangzna 500033

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

With reference to Annexure 'A' referred to In Independent Auditors’ Report of
even date to the members of AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED
(formerly known as Aarvee Associates Architects Engineers & Consultants
Private Limited) (“the Company”) on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2025, we report that:

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the
Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal
course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i) In respeét of the Company’s property, plant and equipment and intangible

(@)

(b)

(c)

{d)

(e)

(i1}

assets:

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars including quantitative details and situation of Property,
Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars of Intangible assets.

The management has physically verified the Property, Plant and
Equipment during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of physical
verification of Property, Plant and Equipment Is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of the assets.

With respect to the title deeds of zll the immovable properties {other
than properties where, the company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the
financial statements arc held in the name of the Company.

|
The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or [
intangible assets or both during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the
company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made
thereunder.

In respect of the Company’s inventories:

(a) The company is engaged in providing Project Management ‘
Consultancy (PMC) and Detailed Project Report (DPR) services.
The waork-in-progress primarily includes ongoing service ‘
centracts under execution, which are recognized based on the
percentage of completion method. The company has a system
of maintaining appropriate records of such work-in-progress,
and in our opinion, the same is adequate considering the natur (E.?E\

2
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(iii}

(a)

(b)

(c}

(d)

of its operations. Physical verification of such work-in-progress
is not applicable in the traditional sense, but appropriate
pragress reports, certifications, and milestones are used to
substantiate the stage of completion. No material discrepancies
were noticed on review of such records.

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of 5 crore, in aggregate, at any points of time during
the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns
filed by the Company with such banks or financial institutions
are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the
Company of the respective quarters and no material
discrepancies have been observed.

The Company has made investments in, provided guarantee and
granted unsecured loans and advances, to companies during the year,
in respect of which:

The Company has provided loans during the year and details of which
are given below:

(Rs.in Millions)
Particulars ~ |Loans |
A. | Aggregate amount granted/ provided |
during the vear: |

Subsidiaries * 27.19 |
Associate - |
Others . 10.00

B. Bealance autstanding as at balance sheet [
date in respect of above cases:

Subsidiaries ‘ 77.29 |
Associate - |
Others 51.27

The investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of
all the above mentioned loans are in our opinion, prima facie, not
prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

In respect of loans granted by the Company, there is no overdue
amount remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date.

Accarding to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not granted any L.oans and Advances in the nature of
loans which are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms

or period of repayment. BTLA
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(¢) No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the
year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle
the overdue of existing loans given to the same parties except the
following:

Amaunts in Million

Name cf the | Aggregate amount | Aggregate overdue Percentage of the
Party of loans or | amount settled by aggregate to the
advances in the | renewal or total loans or
nature of loans |extension or by advances in the
granted during the | fresh loans granted nature of loans
year tc same parties granted during the
year
RCI Logistics 10.00 60.00 100
Private
Limited
Aarvee 27.19 11.57 42.56
Associates
| Limited (UK) |
(iv) The Company has complied with the provisions of the sections 185

and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of lcans granted,
investments made, guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are
deemed to be deposits during the year. Hence, the provisions of
Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies
Act and the rules made there under are not applicable to the Company.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the
Central Government under sub-section (1} of section 148 of the
Companies Act. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is not
applicable to the company.

{vil) In respect of statutory dues:

a) The Company has generally been reguiar in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund,
ESI, Income tax, and other statutory dues with the appropriate
authorities.

b) There were no undisputed amounts pavable in respect of Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service
Tax, Sales Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax,
cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31,
2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they
becarmne payable.
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¢) Details of statutcry dues referred to in sub-clause {a) above which
have not been deposited as on March 31, 2025 on account of
disputes are given below:

In Millions
Name of | Nature of Dues Forum where Period to | Amount | Amount
Statute Dispute is  which Involved | Unpaid
Pending amount
relates
Turnover variation | Assistant FY 2021- i.63 1.63
between GSTR-3B and | Commissioner 22
GSTR-7
Excess claim of ITC Deputy FY 2022- 1.79 1.79
Commissioner ; 23
of State Tax
Goods | Excess claim of [TC Joint FY 2018- 0.34 0.34
and Commissioner | 19
Services | L of State Tax
Tax Act, | Not filing of GSTR-38 | Joint FYy 2019- 2.65 2.65
2017 | return Commissioner | 20 (Dec
of CT & GST | 2019 Tax
Period)
Under Declaration of Assistant FY 2019- 3.26 3.26
Ineligible ITC and Commissioner | 20
Turnocver variation
between GSTR-1 and
GSTR-9.
Turnover variations | Deputy FYy 2020- 5.70 5.70
between GSTR-9, | Commissioner | 21
GSTR-9C, GSTR-7 and
GSTR-3B, Under
declaration of RCM
liability, Difference
between receipts as per
26AS and turnover as
per GSTR-3B and cther
matters.
Interest on belated filed | Assistant FYy 2019- 0.12 0.12
returns related to | Commissioner 20
| Subsidary Company

(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that
have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.
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(ix) In respect of borrowings:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(F)

In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of
loans or cther borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to
any lender during the year.

The company has not been declared willful ¢efaulter by any bank
or financial institution cor any other lender.

The loans availed by the company were applied by the company
during the year for the purposes for which the loans were obtained.

on an overall examination of the financial statement of the
company, funds raised on short term basis have, prima facie, not
been used during the year for long term purposes by the company.

on an overall examination of the financial statement of the
company, the company has not taken any funds from any entity or
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries
or associates or joint ventures.

The company has nct raised |loans during the vear and pledge of
securities held in its subsidiaries or associates or joint ventures.

{x}) In respect of issue of securities:

a) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial publiic offer ar
further public offer (including debt instruments) during the vear.
Accardingly, paragraph 3(x){a) of the Order is not applicable.

b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partiaily or
opticnally convertible) during the year. Hence, reporting under clause
(b) of Paragraph 3(x) of the Order is not applicable.

(xi) In respect of fraud:

a)

b)

No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

We have not come across of any instance of material fraud by the
company or an the Company during the course of audit of the
standatone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025,
accordingly the provisions stated in paragraph {xi)(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

As represented to us by the management, there were no whistle-
blower cemplaints received by the company during the year
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Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph (xi)(c) of the Order
is not applicabie to company

(xii) The Company is not a nidhi company and hence reporting under clause
(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiif) In our opinion and according to the information provided to us, the
Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties
and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards

(xiv) In respect of internal audit:

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit
system commensurate with the size and the nature of its
business. '

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year
under audit, issued to the Company during the year and till date,
in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures.

{(xv) In our opinion, during the year, the Company has not entered into any
nen-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its
directors. hence provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable.
Accardingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicabie.

(xvi} a) The company is not required to be registered under section 451A of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause
(xvi){a), (b} and (c) of the Crder is not applicable.

b) The Group does not have any Core Investment Company (CIC) as part
of the group and accordingly reparting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the
QOrder is not applicable.

{xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year
covered by our audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviil) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company
during the vear.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of
realisation of financiai assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, the auditor's
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing
has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material

uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating tg%%;?
%
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(xX)

company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this s not an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
duc within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent
amounts that are required to be transferred to a Fund specified in
Schedule VII to the Companies Act, in compliance with second proviso to
sub-section (5) cof section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xx}(a) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and
based cn aur examination of the records of the company, the following
amount remained unspent under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013, pursuant to ongoing CSR projects. The details of
the amount required to be transferred to the Unspent CSR Account under
sub-section (6) of section 135 are as under:

Amount unspent | Amount Amount not
for ongoing CSR | transferred to | transferred
Financial Year | projects (¥ in Unspent CSR | within prescribed
Millions) Account  within | time g in
30 days (¥ in Millions)
- Millions)
2024-25 5.89 - 5.89 |
2023-24 _ 1.09 1.09 -
2022-23 0.96 0.46 | -
(xxi) The reporting under clause 3{xxi) cf the Order is ncot applicable in

respect of audit of standalone financial statements. Accordingly, no
comment in respect of the said clause has been included in the report.

For P.R. Datla and Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.: 0060675

V.L. Narasimha Rao
Partner

(/.

Membership No: 214251
UDIN: 252149 S % TTepus

Place: Hyderabad

Date:

26-07-2025
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED (formerly known as Aarvee
Associates Architects Engineers & Consultants Private Limited) (Mthe
Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based an the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Ceontrols over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate Internal financial controls that were cperating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companics Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting based cn our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controfs Over
Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(1Q) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was estabflished and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Cur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adeguacy of the internal financial contirols system over financial reporting and
their operating effectiveness.
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Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls " over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend cn the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal
financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reparting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispasitions cf the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonabie
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unautharised acquisition,
use, or dispasition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or impraoper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections ¢f any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that
the internal financial controi over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies cr procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31,
2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For P.R. Datla and Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.; 0060675

V.L. Narasimha Rao
Partner
Membership Na: 214251

UDIN: 259\%2.9) By tiv Ty bl g

Flace: Hyderabad
Date: 26-0/-2025




AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED

(formerly known us Aarvee Associates Architects Engineers & Consolrants Private Limised)
Standalonc Balance Sheet

(Al amwunts in 2 millns, except share datd aod where otherwise stated)

CIN: U74200T G2005PLCD45491
MNotes 31 March 2025 3 Macch 2024 1 April 2023
Assers
Non-cutrent asscts
Property and cguipment 3 428.70 373.57 AGnKT
[ntangible assets 4. 20.43 20,24 2007
Right-tr-use asset 5. 154.11 183.89 18036
Mooncial asscts
[rve=stmenis 0 127.23 L2 (2
1.0nns 7. 7732 48,44 556
{hwer financial assers 8 343,720 AR TR A71.38
Dufirrid s assens (o) [+ 10.66 1%81.85 161.23
Other non-curtaail ity i, 169.42 148,69 2935660
Total non-cuticnt A58ces 160067 1,39L.50 14180
Current asselz
Financal assuts
"I'rade reecivables 1. 1,656.52 1,354.43 137570
(lash and cash cquivalents 12, 53.64 0L 173.13
L.ans 12 5127 6h15 e
Other tinaocdial assets 14. 661.45 LTS IULH)
Other curneni assvts 15. 260.83 HINT3 Hk12
Total current aseets 2,083.72 3IM5.77 1,459.73
Toial assets 4,284.38 BART.ZT 3377
Edquity and liabilities
Equiry -
liquity share capital 16 420,00 Goam GLECHD
Other cquity 17, 2,013.32 1,842.12 1LANLUG
Total equity %,433.82 10712 1,466 04
Eiabilities
Nop-current Labilitice
Financial habilities
Borrowings 1% 77.82 13680 175810
Laase Jialalines 19 123,69 135,03 124,51
IMrowistons 20, 177.77 141.57 134,92
Taral non-current Habilitics 179.28 404,08 430,23
Current liabilitics
Fmancial lialshities
Bumrowiogs o1, 461.04 238Us uh (17
Lease liabiligies 19, 57.28 ALl 7371
Trade payables due e
Miceo and small earerperacs 23, 3577 AT 5150
{hee than miere and small enteepudses 206.75 13041 124 87
Cichers finanenl liabsdionw 23, 41202 480,11 61612
Uhthet current Balsilinic s 24. 218.83 12447 /372
Provisions 25, 75.60 (SR S8.50
Total current liabilities L,371.2% 118107 147244
Total equity and liabilities 4,284.38 3AR87.27 337777
The accompanying totes e a0 Wnrcgeal pant of the finanaal sutoments
As pur our feport of cven date
For PR Thaila and Co., P and e behalf of the Board of Direezees of
Chureeree] \ecouneans AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSLILTANTS LIMITED

Firm’s Registeation MNos (000675

W

fformerly knomn as Aarves Associates Aechitets Enplocers &
Cosulifnts Pavae [imined) ®

' W”—
¥.L. Narasimha Rao K.V, Ehﬁhﬂ% B.Y. Reddy
Partner Momaging Director Whobe Tmg Diecetor
Memlwrstyp No: 214251 LI 70 L 121 01623401
Plage: 1ydeeal:nd Place: aderabad Taces [lydeeabad

Laate: 36-07-2025

/

1Dt 26-07-2025 Date: 200721025

UDIN 259 149 <) BUIKTT boyy

V. Subrabmanyam SeFandha Khandchwal
Chiefl |dmancial Odficer Compam Seorefan
MoNE 026936 A8 e WR323
iMace II!'durJh.ld Thaci: | !}‘duubzad

12t 26-07- 20325 Dz 201172025



AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED

(formerly known ae Aarvee Associates Architecte Bngincers & Consultanits Private Limited)
Standalone Statement of profit and loss

(A anaguars in T millions, exceprt share data 20d where otherwise stawed)

CIN: UZ4200TG2005PLCO4 5491

Por year ended
MNotes  51March 2028 31 March 2024

Income
Revenue from cperations 26 5545.30 5,0458.25
Other ncomes 27 7168 4276
Total incomes 5,617.07 3,111.04
Expenaes
Employes benefits expense 28 2,679.50 220832
Finance cose 29 141.92 104.52
Depﬂ',::imiun and amartisation expense an 133.58 132.32
Consultency and technical Charpes k! +,485.97 1,520.12
(nbey cxpenses 32 302,30 499 66
Toral expenses 1,833.37 4,554.93
Frofil before tax 783.70 556.11
Tax expense 1s
L urent tax 209.52 150.98
Deferred tax expense/(beactit) 535 17
Baslier year taxes - -
Total tax expense 214.87 133,81
Profit afier tax 568 84 42231

Other camprehensive income

Item that will not be reclassified subsequenily lo the statement of profit and loss

Remeasurements of post«employment benefit obligation 35. (12.55) 18.11

Income taz effect on the above 316 (4,56}
Total other compreheneive income for the year, net of tax (9.39) 13.55
Total comprehengive income for the year atributable w0 ¢quity shareholders 559.45 435.86

Eamings per equity shave [EPS] (i absolute T terms)

Basic EPS 38 13.54 10,05
Dilnted EPS 1354 10.05
Par vaiue per share 10.00 10.00

The sccompanying notes are an intepral part of the fnancial staterents
As per our report of even date

For P.R. Datia and Co, For and oo behalf of the Baard of Directoss of
Chartered Aceountants AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED
Fitn7's Registranon MNo.: 060673 (formerly known a3 Aarvee Associates Architecrs Engineers 8

Consultants Private Limired)

L. Wu&/[ k :
¥.L. Natagimba Rao RV, Chakrapani B.V. Keddy
Paztner Managing Direcme Whale Time Director
Membership MNo: 214251 DINDO176110 DIN: 01623401
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Dace: 26-407-2025 Dane: 26-07-2025 Dake: 26-07-2025
UDINZS2W9 €| By KTTéo 44
L]

V.V. 8 anyam Sugantha Khandelwal

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

. Na: 026346 ACS No: A48323

Flace: Hydernbad Place; Hydembad

Date: 26-07-2025 Drate: 26-07-2025



AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED

(formetly known as Aarvee Assoriates Archirects Engineers & Consultauss Private Limited)
StandaloneStascment of Cashilow

(AN amounts in T millions, exeopt dhace dana and whoeze stheesisg saaced)

CIN: U74200T G2005FL.CO45451

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Cashflow from operating activitics

Profit before fas 783.70 556.11
Adjustment fon:

Inccecse on otheres {27.09) (23.32)
Deprccianon on magible and intangble assers 73.76 70.27
Depreciadon on ROLT agsers 59.53 6205
Operating profit before warking capital changes 815 665,11
Working capital adjustoacars :

{Tncreas) i vther noa-current assers 92.68 62.58
{Increas) m loans {14.95) 98.07)
‘Increasd)/Jdeerease in other financial asscts (342.10) (80.50)
1ecrease/{increase) in ather assets {60.10) {11D.60)
Deerease/ ncrease) in trade reachvables {3DZ.09) 21.33
Dicorrase in trade pavables §2.95 13.20
Dicerease in hinaneal habilioes (77.09) (127.00)
Dicercase/ fincerase) in other liahilines 90.36 (B5.24)
Deercase/ (Inceease) in lease hubilites (24.80) 1.54
lncreasd) in provisions 4158 26.53
Cash pencrated from operations 346,58 32087
1irect faxcs paid {net) (285.00) {102.04)
Net cash gencrared from opetating activittes (A) 60,50 21883
Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property and equiptacnt, including inwangible assus (123.05) (83.17)
Rigtat of use assets {30.05) {36.57)
Trvegtiment in subsidinny (127.83) -
Mavement i forsign correngy translation soserve {(27.78) 0.21
Tterest teduived on fxed Jdepostes 27.00 23.32
Net cash vsed in investing actvivics (B) (281.58) (116,22)
Cash flow from financing activitics activitics

Bererinwings- Current 235.50 {12322)
Berrowings- Nom- Current (Nete 18] {62.47) (50.51)
Ner cash nged in financing activities (G) 174.03 (174.03)
Metinerease in cash and cash equivalents (A)+(B)Y+(C) (48.06) (711.42)
Cash and ¢ash eyeivalenits a1 the beginning of the year i0L71 173.13
Cash and cash equivalents ai the end of the year (Note 1) 53.65 101.71
MNote 1

Cash and cash equivalents as abeve comprizes of following

Cash and cash equivalents {refer notc 12)

Balances with bank 55.43 101.71
(ash m hand 0.22 _
Cash and cash eguivalenss at the end of the year 53.05 101.711

“Ihe aecompanying pofs are an iﬂiq:ml mart of the fimanclal statements
As per our report of even date
For P.R. Datla and Co., Fae anul om bebalf of the Boacd ot BEYirectors of

Chartered Aecountants
Firm’s Registeatios Naow UDGG67S

WL

V.L. Narasimha Rao
Parinee
Membership Mo 21423

1mted

DIMITETED

Place: Mvdurabad Tace: Hyderabad
e 26440720035 1o 260-177-N155

UDIN: 252 WS Y BT KT 6oL,

AL Riw D3EMG

Place: Helerabad
Date: 20-117-2025

Choel Finaneiad O Tfeer

AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED

{Eormetly knewn 2s Sarvee Ass setates SArehitects Faginvens & Consultanis Privale

L
E. V. Chakdipani
Managiay Lircerer

{

B.V. dy
Whole Lome 1heector
110 0230

Place; | hderalsad
Plate: 20-07-2025,

andha Khandehvai
Coanmpany Secrotary

ACS New AgR32Y

Place: 1yderabad

e 36-17-2005



AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED

{foemerly known as Aacvee Associates Architects Engineers & Consultanes Private Limited)

Standalnne Staeement of changes in equity

LAl amenants in T mibliome, cxcept share data amd shere othenwise stated)

CIMN: UZ4200T G205 L C045451

A, Equity sharc capital

Faquiry Shares of £10 each ismied, auhseribed and fully paid op

As at 1st April 2023
(fhm\gc dl,u-{ug the year
Issue of Binus Shares
Asat 31 March 2024

U hange dury thee year
Tssww oof Bonus Shass
Agat 31 March 2023

B. Other equny

Srandalone Balance az ar 1st Aprilk 3033

Faifit for the year

letchen everency reansaladon reserve

C)ther comprehensive meome MM for the year®
StandaloncBalance 28 at 31 March 2034

Peeshr Tear the penod

Iswuc F Thonuz Shacys

liectpn coereney tranaalaneon sence

COhther compeehiensevye mooemge (MG (or the vear®

Sinedalone Balance as at 31 March 2025

¥ arising from remcasurcnacnt of defined beocfit plans

The accomypaay g ortes ane an integral part of the Goancial statemuents

Y5 pr our mepeoct of even date

For P.R. Datla and Co.,
hastered S\ceruatanis
Virm's Regstrathon Not (060678

¥.L. Narastmba Rao
Pastner
Menberships Men 214251

Maee: [y derabad
1w 26-407-2025

2522813 M er 1o

Mumber of shares Amount

60,00,000 [Lti]

40,060,000 G000

SRR SN

2,20,00.600 420,00

Retained eamings Uikior Cnliprehentiye Total
Income

135674 21.64 140604
422,31 422,31
0.21

- 13.55 13,53
1,809,014 3521 1,842.12
548.84 568,84
(DA (360.00)
(27.75)
111.58) (.38}

201788 25.83 201382

Foor and e behalf of tle Boaed o Dhrectos of
AARVEE ENGINEERING COMNSULTANTS LIMITED

ifer

"

R. ¥, Chekrapani
AManaging irecror
DNARITZGLI

Places uderbad
204072125

Ve
\ Choel Fnaneia) Ofcer
S AL New 026040

. Subrahmanyam

= 7 Blaewe ] Ivalerabad
[oate: 264072025

-

B.V -Ruddy
Wk iy Diccctes
DN U623

Phace: Nyderabad
Drane: 26-07.2025

nndha Khandelwal
Company Recretary
NS Nos 4932

Pliecer Fhaderabad
Date: 20072025
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AABVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED

(formerly known as Aarvee Assaciaes Architeots Engineers & Consultants Privace Limited)
Summary af signifieanc acocurting pelicies and odher explanatory information

(Al gmounts in T millions, excepe shore data and where otherwise stated)

CIN: U74200TG2005PLCO45491

L

2.

Corporate information

AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED (fommedy keown as Aarves Associatés Archireers Engineess & Conanitants Private
Limited) (The Comgany) is 4 global leader in infenstruerure conmirancy, defivering world-class slutions across multiple sectors, Eseablished with 2
commitment to techaical excellence, simpliticy a cagineetlng and inaovirion Asrvee has conmstently delivered many complex and transtormative
projects across the glube. The Company is & public Emited domicled in India snd is incomporated under the provisions of Companies Act,
apphicable in Indin, The registered office of the Company is loraeed at §-2-5, Ravuls Residency, Seinagar Colony Mai: Road, Funjsgutta,
Hyderabad-500082, Telangmaa, India

Rasla of preparaticn

i} Purposs of Financial Staterments and Frarmewoark

iy

These financial statemenes (“the Financis! Slatcments™) bave been prepaced in accondanes with the provizsicns of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
ludiza Accownting Standards (Tnd AS') as norified by Ministry of Corporate Affaies (MCA') usder Seedon 133 of the Compenies Act, 2013 (Acr)
tead with the Compraies (Indinn Aeeouncing Standards) Rules, 2015, as smeaded and other relevant provisions of the Act

‘The Emsncials for the year ended Macch 31, 2025 of the eompany arz the first financial sratements prepared i complizace with Iod AS, The date
of transition © Ind AS is Apdl 1, 2025, The Company prepassd its fnanckl stements up o the year ended 31 March 2024, in sccoxdance with
the requirements of previous Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (Todian GAAPY, which included Accounting Smmdards (AS) specified
under Secfion 123 of the Companiss Act, 2013 sead with rales made thecenndor. The Corapany folowed the prowisians of Ind A5 101 Firsc Tine
Adoprion of Indian Accounting Stmdards’ in preparing 15 opening Ind AS Balance Shett as of the date of vansitinn 2nd adjustments were made
ta regtats the opening balances as per Ind AS. The impact of tansition has been accounted for ia the opeuing teserves a3 at 1st April 2023, The
compacative Sgures for the balance sheer and related nows have been peesenied for 31 March 24, in accordance with the mme aceounting
principles that ase used in preparation of the Company’s st Tnd AS Arancis] statements for like to like comgacison. The figures for the previows
pexiod have beem restated, cegeouped aad ceclassified whesever teauired  comply with the requiserment of [nd AS and Scheduls TIT. (refec asite
46 for the explanation of transition to Tad AS)

The Standalone faancia statements wers authorized and approved for issue by the Board of Directots oa 26 th July 2025.
These fnanciat stacmeers have been prepared for che Company as 2 gring concem on the basis of elevant Tod AS thar are cffectier 25 a3
March 2025,

The financial statements kave bece prepareé 0n 2 histodcal eogr conventinn and accrual basis, sxoept f0c the certain flaancial assets and liabilides
that are measured ot fair value. The Compaay bas uniformly applicd the 2ecounting policiey during the periods presented.

Manetary acaqunts aze expressed in Indizn Rnpee () millions and are romnded off w two decimals , except for shars data sad earning pec shaee
Due ta wounding off, the numbess preseatad theoighoue the document may not wdd up precisely to the totals and perceatiges way not praciscly
reflect the absolute fguces,

All assets and lisbiliies have been clasified 13 eutrene or non-cureent s per the Compeey’s sormal opezating epcle and othes dreria sex our in
Schedule 11T of Companies Act, 2013

The fnancial satements cozrespond w rhe clessification prvisions contained o Ind AS 1, ‘Presentabion of Financiak Sestements™. For clasiy,
varicus ifems aré aggeegated in the smement of profit and loss and balance sheer. These items are dmapprepated sepasately in the notes o the
financial sintements, where zpplicable.

Current versus non-cusrent clagsification:

The Company preseats assers and lishilities in the balance sheet based on cumrenty non-curcent classification. fin 23set i tieared a3 cuvrent when it
is:

« Expected to be redlized or intsoded to be sold or consumed in normal opesating opele

* Held pemarily foz che pucpose of eading

+ Expectsd to be realized in normal aperating cpele o withia ewelve months after the separting pedod

* Cash or cash equivalents unlens restricoed fom being exchanged of used to settle a lisbility for at Jease vwelve months after the reporting perind

M othes aesens are classified a3 aon-current

A liabilify s quorent when:

* Itis expecced 1 be semled in mommal cperating cycle or due © be settled within tweive months after the zepocting pedod

® b ix held primvazily for the purpose of trading

» Thene is no unconditional dght to defic the setdemeat of the liability for ar least rwelve months after the reporting period

Al other liatwlites are classified s nom-cunrent,

D ferred e saters and lisbiliden are classifed 25 mon-current ossets and lighilities.

The aperating cyde is the tise berween the soquisition of assers for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Company
has identified period of twelve wonths as its opecating ¢pels.

Boreigh cucrency wraniacdons

1. Functional cumency

The financial stacements are presentsd in Indian Rupees (%), which is the functioaal cuccency of the Company and rhe currency of the pamary
L)

2conore eavisonment in which the Company opestes.
2 Transactions W
-
W&Lﬂ/)ﬁ“ﬂ‘ ‘
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T'ransactions in forcim cureadies are Initially reconded by the Company ar i3 functinnal careoney spot mates at the date the mansacton first quakifies for
recopnition. Moovtary assets and Labilitics dracminaled in foreipn currencies are translated at the functional curreney spot raes of ¢xchaage at the rporting
dare. lischange differences agsing om seudement or translafion of monctary items are recogaized in profit or loss with the exception of the Follewving
Exchange Jiffctences ariging on monemry iems that forms part of o reporting eadiy’s oot investment in o foreign opetation are secognised in profit or liss in
the financial stvcments of the reporting enngy.

Non-moncary irems that are measuted o tetms of historical cost @ a foeeipn currency are conslated using the exchange emtes av the dases of the iniral
tnsactoons. Non-manetary trems medsated at ie value in a foreipn currency are maaslated wsing e exchange mws ar the dawe whea e fair value is
determined. The gato ar Joss ansing on transhdon of aen-monctay mems mensured ar fue vahie s treated in bne with the recogeition of the paia or loss on
the change in fair value of the item (., taoslatdon differences on frems whose fae valee gain oe loss is recognized m OCT ot profit or loss are also recogmzed
m (] or pruﬁ{ or loss, Tc&pucﬁvu‘y:.

Usze of estimares and judgements

Tl preparadon of fimancial smements in conformity with fod AS requices the management to make judpracnts, ostimates and as:umptions thar atfecr the
reporwed amwunts of revenoes, expenses, assets and linbilides and the accompanying dsclosures, and the disclosute of contingent liabllitics, at the end of the
reporang pesod. The key assumptions ¢onceming the fumre and oiher key souroes of crtimation unccltﬁ.‘lnty at the r&:purting date, that have a sippificant tsk
of cansing 2 matcral adjuzzment o the curr:.'iug amonnts of assers and habilides wirbin the acxt foancial rear, are described below, The l".lm'lp{ll‘.l} bascd its
asgsunpdons and estimates on patametees availlable when the finandal starem,
developments, however, may change dee to market changes or drcumseances ansing that are beyond the contn il of the Company. Such changes are reflected

5 oWere 'FT-L"FEII[‘L]‘ [':Ni“ﬁﬂg fi'[(l]mhlﬂﬂcﬂﬂ ﬂﬂl] ﬂsﬁu'ﬁnpﬁ.mﬁ ﬂbl"ll fllhlri.‘
in the assumpiioas when they ocour.

The areas involrmg siguficant judgement anad estimates are as follows:

o Iapmagion of asefol life of properry nd ¢ |‘ipmu1|t aned iniangﬂ)lu asset

= Impairmeny of non-financial assets

* Lstimanon of defined benefit obligation

+ Faxes on Income

+ Estimation of useful life of propecty and equipment and intangihle asset

T'he chatpe in tespeet of potiodic depreciation is derved afier determining an cstimate of an asset's expected useful life and the expected residual valoe at the
end of its ife. Management at the tine the asset 1% acquired and reviewsed petiodically, including at cach financial year end, duterminey the usefil lves and
residval values of Company’s assets. The lives are based so historieal expericnce with simular asscts 13 well as anacipanon of furare ceenrs, which may affeor
shoie bfe, such as chmlgw 1 mchunlug_.’. The extimated useful fe is geviewed at least annuall}‘.

* Impairment of non-finaneial assets

]':'H)]'\L‘E[} and tejuipmene and m(ﬂngihlu assets are tested for impairaeat whenever evenis uccur or th’:mgrs in circumstances imdicate that the fecoverable
amovat 18 less than s carrving value, The calculation of eshe n ose and fair value tovalves use of sigrificant estimates and assumptions, which includes
tucnovet, prowth rares and net marggne veed o calaslate projected futuze cash flows, risk sdjested diseount rate, fumire ceonomic and market conditions,

» Estimation of defined benefii obhgaiion

The cost of the defined benefit plans, compensated sbsences and the prescut value of the defined benefit obligatons are based on actuatial valuatoa wsing the
projected unit credit method, Yo acrarial valustion involves moking various assumphons that may differ from actual developrents in the future. These
inchule the deteemimation of the discount rare, furaee salare increases and mormline rares, Dae @ the complesiges involved in the valoanon and iss Tong-term
nature, a defined besefit obligation is highly sensifive to chaogs i these asempoons, Al assumpdons are pevaened at each meportingr date.

* Taxes on Income
The carreing amount of deferred fax assets i govicwed at cach reporsing date and reduced to the extens thae it is no Jonger probable thae sufficient taxable
profit will be available ta allew all ur past of the deferred tax asser to be wilised, Unrecopmised deforred rax assets ave re-assessed ar each seporing daee sod are
recogniied 10 the exient thar i¢ has become probable thar future taxable profits will allew the deferred fax asser b be reeoverod

- Explanlm:l credit losses o financial assets

The mpaitment provisions of financial axsers are based co assumptions aboue risk of defalt and eopeeted dming of eolleerion, The Company uses pdgment
i moking these assumptons and sclecting the npurs to the cepeeted eredit loss caleulinor bazed on the Company’s history of colleerions, cestomer’s
creditw orthiness, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of cacl reporting period.

Revenune recognilion

Revenue 14 ruct)gni.md to ihe extent that it 15 ]'lrub:lb]r that the coonomue bencfits wilk Bow to the company and the revenue can be t-.'linbl}‘ rcasured,
f:_‘i_‘r:lj_'\]]d_‘s:-' ol when the PAY MU 6 Iwillg made. T derermane whether the (:[Jmp:m_v shootd n‘fllgﬂli'ﬂ' revenoes, tha f:lm'l]'l:lll).' follows 5—5!1.'[1 ]‘:{:lcrss:

) adenrifving e contace, of coneacts, with a costomer

|ii idunrif_\ 'm!* the |wrﬁrrmnnﬂ' lll‘:ligﬂﬂnl!h in vach contract
{ifh dereemining e rransacron price

fiv) alloeating the mnsacdan price to the performance oblipateoms in cach contace

{v) recogmirmys rovenue when, or a5, we satsfy performanec obligacions by rrsferning the promsed goods or servives
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a)

Revenue 18 recopnised when o promise in a customer contract {:purfnm'l:ma‘ llb]ignti()n) has been satisficd by transferang conmol over the poomised goods and
services to the customcr, Control over 8 promised good or service refers to the ability @ direet the wse of, and obadn substantially all of the temainng benefice
from those poods or services, Conerol 15 wsually ransfereed upon eeansfer of legl title or the poods or as services are rendered, {o aecuedance with the terme
agreed with the costomers. The amount of sakes o be recognised (transacnan price] is baved on the ennsideradon the Company expects to reevive in exchange
for its goods and seevices. excluding amounts collected on behalf of third partics such as goods and services mx or cther wmyes directly linked to sales If
CONTIACT coatains mote than one performance obligadan, the transaction price is allocated wr each performanee obligation based oo their eelative seand-alone

selling prces,

Income from services
Income ffom evees 1 n_-cugniycd nver the T\L'I'f[)l’m:]‘[l{[‘ [:L'riul_l in prupnrﬁun to the vverall guaatam of cfforms o be expended b}- the Company Fap
completion of the wlared scrvices or milestones as tuipulzmd |:|§' the coottacts with custesmers.

Reveaus is measused based on the rransachion price, which is the consideration, adjusted for vasable considerations, if any, a3 specified in the cuntener with
the cugremer.

Revenue inchides only the pross inflisvs of economie benefits recerved and peecivable by the Company, on its own accouat.

Revenue is measueed ar che faie value of the coosideranon received or recoivable, tﬂkiug into account conttaceally defiaed wtms of payment and exclding

taxes or dutivs colloeted on behalt of the government.

Ydvance payments received fram custnmers for which no services have been sendored arc presented as “Mabilisabion Asdvances °

Ulabilled revenue teprosents the value to the exeent of services zendered © the cusiomerns oo the balance sheet date and s oot billed a: at the halance shaet
date.

Diber incame

Cther income includes gain on cachange flucmartion, Liabilines/” proy
heen written hack.

ms oo lunger required written back vte, and is recpnised dn the pesiod inowhich it has

{irterest iacomre:
Invterest fncome cu deposits with banks i recognized 10 ome propordon basis taking 1ot acoount the amount outstanding anad the rate applicable.

Tnterest un income 1% tofund is ccounted for upon receipt of such ineerest

Contract balances

Cromiract assel

v contrace aswet - wabilled revenue 15 (e aight o congderdon i escange for goods o services sansfereed e the customer. T the Company pezforms by
tramsfeerng; poods or serviees o a customer before the oustomer pags consideration or before pavmont is due, a conrtact asset & recopnised for the caraed
consideradiom that is conditional.

% contract asscr - wok under Prrogreas s the porecnage of work ['nmph-‘md for which the seveooe will be aceounted onee the work reaches ic's mileseone, The
cost of such projects has been deferred as die wevenue is not recogmised in the respective fmancial year,

Trade receivahles

% recetvably tepresenes the Company’s mght o an amouant of consideraten that is unconditionat (1.c., oale the passage of ome 15 reywred before pavmeny of
the co

wideeanon ix duep

Contract Habilities

% codnracr ]i_:d';iliq- 1 the Uhﬁj_‘r:lrilm 1 fransfor gu::di ur services (0 @ customer Bar which the Compam has received consideration fir an amaount of
consideration is due) fom the customer. 1 a castomer pays consideration before the Company sansfoes goods or services oo the eagiomut, a conract habaliy
is reeopnised when the payment is made or she prymen is doe (whichever is easlivyy. Contract Babilities are recopgized a8 revenue when the Compaoy

Twrfun'mi uneler the contract

Financial instrument
A finaneial insrrament is any coarract fhal gives nse fo s fonocid assct of one entiey and a financtal labiliey or equiny inscument of another envity.

Financial assers

Initial recognition and measurement

Al finaneial assens are recegnized ninally ar fair valae phs, in the case of financial assets oot recorded - Bair value taouph prafic and loss, mrnsserion eosts
that arc armAburable o the acqu‘i:.i[iun of the financial assct.

Subsequent measurement

Iar PUETHIALS uf'z;uh::cquunt MCASUTSmen, finarecial assets are clagsitiod in three Leoad CACEOtiCs:

v financial agscty at amortized cost

» fingneial asser at fair volue through other comprchensive ineome (V0]

« financial asser at farr value through profit and loss (FY7TP1)

Finsncial asset st amartized cost
| finangial assor is messured 11 amondeed cost (oot of any write dows for impaitment) fhe avder 15 held 1o colleer the conrractusl cash s (earber than eo sell
the istimenc prim: e iy conrracmal munlrit‘v 1 wwabre 1es fair value dl'mgus 'Ind the contrachaal tr.'rm- uf the financial asser gi\'t‘ R .n‘pt.‘(‘lﬁk‘d datws o
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Such financial asscts arc subscyuently meased at amorized cost nsing the offective interese rare (FTR) method. Amortized cost is calrulatad by aking inte
sccaunt any discount ur premivm on acquisition and fees or costs that age an dngepzal pare of the BIR. ‘The 1112 amordzaton is included in finance income in
the profit and loss. The losses arising from mpafrment are wooymized statcenent of profic and loss. This caregory generally applies 1© made and edier
receivabloes,

Financial asset at fair value through otker comprehensive income (FVQCI)
A fmancial asser that meets the fellowing two conditions & measured at faic value thotgt GOT unless thw assee 15 desiguaecd at faie valae throngh prodic and
Itus under fair value opton.

= I financial ssaet is hebd both o eolleat contractual cagh flows and @ sell.

« T cantractual terms of the Boancial assct pive nsc oo specified dares to cash Bows thae are solely payments of principal asd fterest on the priodpal
amount Guistaralin I

Tastruments included within the 187100 catepory are measoted nitially as well as at cach reporting datc at fair vabue, Fair valoe movements aec ezcopnized in
L Dhowever, the [fump:m:.' t-ucugni.:ws HECEesT Income, impﬂirmrnt lewses and reversals and ﬁ)tc'lgn L‘:\l:hangc ;_g:lin ot lusy in the statement of pmﬁr and

logs. O derccognition of the asset, comulaive gain or loss previoush recogmized in OCT is seclassified feom the equity to statement of profit and loss, Interes:
catncd whilst holding 1VT0C] debr insmument is reported as interest meome using the BIR method.

Firancial asset at fair value through profit and lass (FYTPL)
F4IPLL s a tesidual carepory and any financial asset which docs nor meer the critena for categorzation s 4t amortived cosc o as FVOCT 3s classified as at
(AR I PR

Al cyuiry inviesemenrs included within the BV TPL category are muasured at fair value with all changes reeopmized in the statement of profirand loss,

[ addition, the Company may cleet to designate an inaoument, which otherwise meers amortueed cost or FVOCT critenia; as at FVTPL. [Towever, suclh
cleetion is allowel [ml_v if duing su reduces or clminates a measutement of rmup;nitiqm ln(nmmstcnc_v (fcfi.‘rl:cd T a8 ‘a.ccc:uming mismutch’].

Investment in subsidiarics, Associates and Joint Ventures

The Company has accounted for its investments subsidianies, assocmtes and joint venturcs at cost less mpairment Joss (if any). The investment in
prufercace shaves with the fght of surples 2sses which are in the nature of wquity in acenrdance wish Tnd A8 32 are meated as separate category of favestment
and mcasured at FY O],

Derecagnition
When the Company hos transferred it rghts o reccive cash Aows from the 2sset or has asemed 2o obliganon o pay i recetved eash flows in full wichout
marerial dula}‘ te: 2 third pary under a L[v;l::s—[hnlugh* arcangenent; it evahluates 1 and to what extent it bas tctained the nsks and rewards of ownezhip.

A fmancinl asset (or, where npplir:lh]r, apart of 2 Boancial as et or pant of a Commany cf similar financial nsse i primanky derecognived shen:

= The righm 1o receive cash flvas from the asset have t'J;‘pide, or
* Bawed on above eesluagon, cither (a; she Compony has transfeeted substantiathe all the dsks and tewards of the assce, o () che Company has neithe:
rransferred nor seeained substannially all the misks and reweards of the asset, but has fansferred control of the asset

When it has neither transforred oot remined substantiaily all of the risks and rewards of the asser, nor teonsfersed conerol of the asset, the (:[)mp:m_\' confinnes
o recegmize the mansfored asset v the extent of the Companys continudng invelvement, Inthar case, the Company alse reeoguires an assocated Babiliee.

‘e eransfuoreed asser and the associaied liability are measured om o hases that reflect she rghts and oblipations that the Company has ectaned.

Continuing involement that mkes the fonm of 3 puasantee oeer the tansfeeed asser s menssrel af the lwer of the onnal carvingg amoume of the asset amd
the maximum amount of consideraton that the Company ¢ould be requized 1o repay.

Tmpairment of financial assets

[ aceordance with Ind A5 109, the Company applics expected ceedit loss (“HOLY) mode for measurement and rocopnition of impairenene losg an finaneal
Ausets measarced ar amorbsed coss,

';1

Vor Trade recemables, The Company n_pplir::a rime vahue of money bay which means the compae considers the present vahe of trade receivables that are
autstandiog For more than one vear and a0 on conadenng the offective 1t of interest which the company uses for its workmg cipital borcowieps. The
Company also coosidurs historical defaults oF 11 customers 0 deeermine imparment loss on Ow portfolio of e recavables. A every seportingg die dwse

hustodeal default and warking capital rates arc reviewed aod amalyscd.

Jiur all axher financial assers, 1901 are measured at oo amount equal to the 12-memth BCT unless there has been asigmfieant tacecase b erediemisk, from

{nitial reeognition i whicl eaze those are mesured an hfemme 1203

Loss ellowanee for financial assets measured at amortised costare deducted from gross cariag amount of dwe assers, -
Financial liabilitics
Initizl recognition and measurement

Financial ialshnes are classified, at il '[‘l.'::ﬂ}_:'!iﬂ at fanr value thmugh pnlﬁt and o6k o1 ar amertred oost, as nppr\lpri:ltc.

Ail Bnancial hialnlities are recopnived nitiall ae faiv f luasis and Lrvowings, tetfbE dircetly ameibualsle ransacrion cosrs.
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The Company’s financial liabilioes include made payables, and other payables.

Suebsequent measurement

kl‘h'L' WL ASUTCTIe e []r ﬁﬂﬂﬂfiﬂl 1;:!1}%“{;35 LIL'FL'TILIH 1L Hll‘T‘r (lﬂﬂﬁiﬁ‘::’lﬁﬂﬂ, s Li['ﬁl:ribl.'l_l bElF]“'}

Financial liabilities ot amortized cost

After inigal rccugniri:m, inl{-m:;tfheﬂring loans and h{:rr{nriﬂgﬁ and ocher PE[_\':!'JI[‘H A :;ubr;m.]uu:t]_v measured at amortzed cost using the BIR (Lffective

Inreresr Rame) medud. Cans and Tosses ave rucugn'l;!ﬂ] n pruﬁr and Jars wheo rhe habihties are dml‘cngni.:ud as well as tho Iu.gll the FIR amodwzaron process.

Amoctized cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount of premium on acquisgition and fees oz costs thar aze an meegeal part of the JR, The KIR
amortzation is included as finance costs in the stavement of peofit and loss.

Derecognition

A financinl linbility is derccognized when the obligation vader the lability is discharged or caneelled or expires, When an existiog, financial Jability is replaced
b:.' another from the same lender on Ru'[}ﬁtmlﬁﬂﬂy differvat ierms, or the terms of an L-xir-ﬁng ]iahility are substm]tiaﬂ}' mudiﬁi:d, such an cxc]mugc ur
madification s treated as che dm‘ect)gﬂiﬁ[m af the uriginzﬂ Iiﬂb'llit_\' gad the Iunlgﬂiﬁun of a new |i:1|3'|]il}'. The difference o the rL'spccﬁw: c;er_\."mg amumnts s
recognized e the smrement of profit and loss

Offsering of fieancial insunments
linancial Avscta and financial liabilines are offsce and the oot amounr 13 tepored in the balance sheecif there s 2 cotrently enforeeable legal nght to offsce the
recognized atounts and there 15 an iatendon o seetle onoa nce basis, w reabize the aszces and serle the Labilines amaudancously,

Reclassification of financial asscts

The Company determines classification of fnancial assets and liabilidics on nitial secognition. Afeer mital recogmition, no weelazaification & made for aancal
assets which are equity instruments and finnacial liakilities. {4t financial assets which are debt insorumenrs, a reclassification is made oaly i there is a chanpe in
the hus;iﬂct;s madel for 1n=|r|:1giug those assots. (:lmngur; to the business madel are cxpu(tud o be infmquunt The fjump:m}"s senior m:magr:rnunt deteromines
change tn the lrwsiness model hecause of exeernal or internal chnﬂ}_‘m:; which are signiﬁmnt to che Company™s npcrﬂﬁuus. Such changes are evident 1o external
partics. .\ change in the business maodel occuts when the Company vither beging or ceases to peeform an activity shar is significant w its opetstions. I she
Company reclassifies financial assets, it applics the reclassification prospoectively from che reclassificanion date whach is the Bigse day of the inmodiately noxe
rt'purriﬂg pudnd t'uum\.'ing the d‘l:mgl‘ in business model, The (:umpﬂng' dues oot restatc any pl‘ﬂ‘iuus]_\' I'L:cugnim*d J sal b BN hms?'g{lndudiug impairmn'n.t gﬂim‘

aor lnssqs] Or nfeTesf.
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vii) Income tax

viii)

—

Tneonme fax expense campriscs current and defuried meome tx. I recognized in net profic in the Statement of profit and loss except to the cxtent that it
relates tooan ftem recopmized directly in equite ot in other comprehwensive income,

Current Tax

Pravizinn for currear s 38 made under the ox pa}'ah]u methad, based oo the ]iabi]i.l’!," cnn'nputcd, after raking credit for allewances and exemptiong as pex the
provisions of [ncome Tux Aer, 1941

Cyprent inpome @y relating to items recopnised vutside profit and loss is teeopnised outside profit and loss (cither 10 other comprehensive mcome or in
cyuiry), Curreat tas frems are recognised in correladun to e vadedving transaction cther in OC] or dircedy 1a eyuity.

Current tax assets aud current tax Habilidies abc offser anly i thure s 2 legally enforeeable nght o sce off the recognized smounts, and it s ineoded to ralize
the asset and settle the ]ia.hﬂit;‘ o a net basis or simultancously.

Deferred tax
eferred tax 35 provided using che liability methad on temporary differences betwoea the tag bases of wssees and Labilies and their earryving amounts for
Einanceal ﬂ_‘pcming putpases at the rL‘purﬁng date.

[dferred tax Kabilitics are recopnised for all taxable temporary differences.
[Peferred rax assets are recognised far all dedeetible temporary differences and the carey furward of any unused tax bosses. Deferred e assets ane recegmised

tor the exeent that i is probable that tasable profit will be available against which the deducuble remporary differences, and the carey forward of voused @x
losses can be uihsed.

Ul eateviag amount of deferred mx assets s reviewed at each reparting date and reduced to the exrent that 10 1 no longer probable thar sufficiens msalile
prcfin will be available e allow a8 or pan af the defered tax asset to be hlised. Uneccopnised deforred tay asscrs are re-assessed ar cach eporting date and
are recagnised to the exent tar it hes hecrme probable thar fuure taxable profits wAll allow the deferred tex asser wr be ooy ered.

Deferred tax asscee and labilivies aee measared at the tax, rates that are expeered to apply in the year whon the asser is realised or the liability is senled, baved on
tax rates (amd tax kbws) that have been enacted or substantvely enacted at the reporting dare.

Dferred tax welatng 1 items recogmised oumside profit and loss is recoprived ourdde peafit and loss father w OCT ot in equiey]. Defersed s items are
recognised in cotrdation to the underlying sransaconn, either in OC] or dizeetly m equity.

eferred rax assets and deferred tax liabilites are offsct if a legally caforceable tiphe exists to set off current tax ausers against current tax labilities and the
Juefereed taxes relace to the same maxahle L'I‘ll'll‘!f and the same tasadon ‘.'ll.l[]'l.tn’itr\ﬁ

Property and cquipmeat

Al itemns of pomerty and cquipment are mawally recorded at eost. Cust of property and equipment comprires purchase price, non-whumdable taxes, kevics, and
any hreetly attalusahle cost of bringing the asset to i working condiion For the intended vse, Mier initial recogaivio, propecty and cquipmeat are measured
at cosr less accomulseed depreciaton and any accumulated impaitment keses. The caerying values of property and equipment ate eeviewed Tor impaimment
when cvents or chasges in decumstances dicate that the carrying, value may not be reeoverable. The cost of an irem of peopurty and cquipment is recognived
ag an asser i, and only if, it & probable thar fure ceonomic benefits associated with the frem will How to the Company and the cosr of the item can be
measured roliable, Phe cost includes the cosr of replacing pant of the property and equipment and borrowing costs that arc Hreetly atrributable o the
acquisitiun, comstruction o production of 3 qualifying peoperty and equepment.

The Company ideatifies and determiaes cost of cach comporent/ past of the assot sepasarely, of the compunent/ pare has & cost which is significant 1o the
total cosr of the asser and has wselal life thar s materally diffecent from that of the remaining asset.

Property and equipment are ciminaced fzom financial seaterwnts, either aa dyposal o whaen tefined from active vse. Losses acising; 1n case of setitement of
property and equipmens amd paing o hisses adsing from disposal of propeny asd cyuipmant soe recogaized in sawmenr of pofit and Toss iy the vear of
GCCUBLCNCL,

apital work in progress is stated at cast, nee of accumulated smpatrment Joss, if any.

Pl arsets’ esidual values, vsebal ey and methods of depreciadon are resiewed ot cach financial vear and adjusted prospectively, if approprate. Kestdual
vabue of peopenty plant amd egquipment is upta 590 of the onginal cost all such assers ¢ disposed. Depredaton s calcalaied oo a straight-hoe basts aver the
esomated uscful lves of the assets, Useful lives used by the Company ane in bae with the sates preseribed under Schedule B of the Companies et 2013,

1Yepreciation on pranerty, plant and cquipment i provided o the steaight e method Tased on eseful e of the wscts estmated Dy e Magjgemont,
Asset clazs Useful Life

l:::mpuwr m{uipm onr 3 pliE]
Office cquipment 3 yeans
lurnimre and fixures 5 years
Oihwr equipenent 10 vears
Nelaeles ¥ years
1ensehold impn wements L0 years
Bruildireys 60 vears

Entangible assets

Intangible asscis are ceeapmized when i 1s probabbe that o anal the crst

of the asset tan be owasared rL'lirll]I}.

R l)cncprhm aeg ateriburable ta the assers will flow o the ©
]




AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED
(formerly known as Aarvee Associates Architects Enginecss & Consultanie Privare Limited)
Summary of significant accountdng policies and other explanatory information

(A1 amonnts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated]
CIN: U74200T' G200 PLCO45491

x)

xi}

Iatangible assets acquired scparately are measurad on wnital recognition At cost Bollwwing initial recognition, intanydble asscrs are cateied at cost less any
accumuliteel amortissrion aod accumulated impaioment losses. Inteenally gencrated intngibles, exchding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and
the relared expendiusy is charged © prafit or loss in the period in which the cqpendingz 14 meuatred.

latsngible assets are amortsed over the uscful ceonomic BEe and assessed for impaitment whenever there is an fndication that the intangdblc asscr may be
impaired. The amorssation perod and the amortisation method for an snengble sset are reviewed af Jeast ot the end of each eeporting pedud. Changes i the
expected useful life or the expecied pattern of eomsumption of future eeonomic benefies embodid in the assct are comzidered to modify the amoxtzanion
period or methied, as appm wriate, and aye treated as chanpes in AcCountay LsimLtey.,

“The amartization expense on intangible assets is necomnized in the stawment of profic and ioss wloss such expenditure forms part of carrviap value of another
asset, Residual value of intangible asscts s upto 5%+ of the etiginal cost vl sueh agsers is disposed.

Chaing or losses anising from, derecognition of an intangible assct zre measured as the diffrence beoveun the net disposal pracecds and the carrying amoumt af
rlie asset and are recapdsed in the sratrement of proficor loss when the asser is dereeopnized,

Impairment of non-financial asscts
The canying amounts of the Company’s tanpble and intangible asscts are reviewed ot cach reporting date to dewcrmine whether there is any indication of
impairmunt. b wny such indication cxises, then the asset's reeoverable amonnt 1s estmated in onder to debermine the oxtent of the kmpatement Joss, of any.

The recoyerable amount of an asser or cash-genertiog enit is the greater of jts vabue 10 use and i faie value less enss 1o sell. In asseysing value in usc, the
entimated future cash flows are discounred 1o their present value using a pre-tax discount eate that reflects currens market assessments of te nme valac of
muney and the gvks speafie w i assee or the cash-generatiog unit for which the cstimates of Furere cash flows ave not been adjosied. For the purpose )
impairmuent testing, asscrs are Companyed together oo the smallest Company of assets that pencrazes €ash mitlows from continuing ese dat are larypel
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or Companys of assers.

\n impaitment logs is recoguised fu the stateraent of profie or less i the estimared recoverable amount of an asset or it cash yenceating vt s Jower than it
carrving amount. 15, ar the sepordng dote theee is an indication that 2 previously assessed smpaiement lnss no longee exists, the recoveable amount iy
reassussed and toversed only 1o the extem that the asset’s carrying amount docs not exceed the careving amount thar would have een durermined, net of
deprociation or amuortisation, iF ao immpairmeet loss had been previnusly reeopnised.

Lease

The Company, evaluates cach contract or arrangement, whether i qualtfics as lease s defined voder [nd A5 1o,

The Company a6 lessee

The Cempany’s leased assets consist of leases for building, The Company assvases whether & conreaer contains lease, at inceptian uf a contract. b conteaer i,
ot coneaing, a lease if the courmer comvers the ripht e control the use of an wlentificd asser for o perind in exchange for coasideration. Lo ossess whether a
confract coavers the rght o conteod the use of an idendificd asset, the Company assesses whether:

a. the cunteact favolves the wse of an idennified asser

1. the Company has substaotialls all the veanoemc aefiee feom use of the zsse diough dhe period of the lease and

€. the Company bas she vghe to direct the use of the asser.

"The Company deteemines the lease tem as the nom-canedllable petiod of 4 lease, together with periods <overed by an aption to exiend the lease, where the

Company i reasonably ceerain o exerase thae nphon.

“The Company at the commencomene of the lease contract eeoppizes a Right-of Use (ROE) asiec a1 cosr anel eorresponding icase lialslity, excepi for Jeases
with teom of feys than neelve mont
Pavments as an cperatingg ospensc on. 4 stzaighe-Ene basis aver the Tease term.

shorr germ Teases] and low—value asscts, For these short toerim and lTow valae leases, the company recopmizes dawe lease

“'he cost of the ROU asstts compeises the amoune af ihe inital measurement of the lease Babilite, any Jease payments made at or before the ingeption date of
the Tease plus any indtial diccer costs, less any kase ingentves weecived. Subsequently, the RO assets are measuted at ¢ost less any aceumulued depreciaton
and accumulured wpainment Josses, if any, ROU asset ate deprociared using the steaight Hae method from the commencement date over the shotter of kase
petmn ok uscful Tife of RO asses. 'The estimated usefal Fres of ROU assers are determined un the same basis as chose of propecy and equipmoent.

For lease liabititics at the commencement of the lease the Company measures the lease liability at the present valoe of the lease payments thag are oot paid af
that date, “The Jease pavments are discounted using the inrerest rare implicit in the Jease, 3F that rate is readily deteemined, aF thar rar 3 nor readily derermined,
the lease payments aze diseounted vang the incremental erroscing rare that the Company would kave ts pav to bortew funds, acoding te conaderasion of
factors such as the nature of the asser and Lecann, eollatezsal, maeket teems and condidons, as applicable in a similar coonommiie envivonment,

\fter the commencement date, the amouwnt of bease liabilities is increased to teflect the acerenon of inrerest and eedoeed for the lease poments mmade

The Company ceoogizes the amount of the ee-measurement of lease liabiline as an adjusmient o the ripht-vfuse assets. Where the carsving amounr uf the
tight-pf-use assers is reduced o aene and e i 2 Further reduenion ia the measurenent of the lease Yabilisy, the Company secopudres any semaiaing amount
of the remcasutement in eonsolidad srrement of income,

1Loase Tabiliy payments are dassified as cash used 1 financing activinies in the siawoens of cash Mows.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cach and cash cquivalenrs i the balanee sheet comprise cag
livpuid assets, which are subjeet to an insygnificant risk of

T'or the purprse of the staement of cush flows, eash
inteygral part of the Cxmpany's cash managemenr,
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xiv)

xv

—

i)

Cash flow statemient

Cash flows are repeewd using e indircer mechod, whereby profic for the pedod v adjusted fur the effects of ransactions of 2 non-cosh oace, any defereals
or accruals of past of future operanng cash receiprs ar pavments and iem of income or expenses wssocared with wvesting or financing cash fows. The cash
flerws from opomting, investing and financiag activities of the Company are seprepated,

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A pravision i recopnised whon the company bas a preseot oblipation as a result of past eveats and it is probable that an outflow of weontees will be roguiced
to setde the ohligation, in respect of which a reliable estdmate can be made. Provisions are measured at the present value of managetnent’s best cattimate of the
expeaditure required o setde the present obligation at the vod of the teportiing perdnd. The discount wate used to determine the prezeni value is 2 pre-fax rate
thar roflects the currene market assessments of dme value of momey and the risks Hpi‘dﬁc ta the Enbi.lit}'. ‘I'he ececase in the prn\'i.rsi{m due to passape of e is
recognised as inrerest expense. The provisuons are reviewed at each Balance Sheet dae and adjusted to reflect the curtent manapement vshionates.

Cootingent Habilitics are disclosad in wspect of possible oblipations that andse from past events, whose existenes would be confiemced by the accuizence or aon
vecureence of one or more uocettain future events not wholly within the control of the Company, O a preseat obligation that asiscs from past eveats but is
0nny rt;[:ugnizml because it is nat pmbab!u that an outflow of resources umbud!’ing veanomic benefits will be zequired 1o setde the obligation; or the amaunt of
the obhigation cannot be measured with sufficicat ru]iability.

€ ontingent assers are not recognised in the finandial statemeats. [owever, it iy disclused anly when an inflow of coonomic benefits is peobable.

Employee benefits

Defined contetbution plan

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is 1 defined contrbuton scheme, The Company has noe obligaton, other tham the contssbunen pavable w
the provideat fund. The Company recoguises contributivs payable to the provident fund scheme as an expenditore, when an employee tenders the celated
CEVICE, Pn,-paid conrributims are recugﬂised as an asset 20 the extent that a cash whimd or a reduction in the futare Payments is available,

Deefined benefit plan

Grﬂtuity

‘T'he liabihy recogoised o the wnder prm-‘ie:‘i[ms nate 1m respect af defined heacfit gr'.ltui‘r)' pl:mH 15 the present vahee of the defned bencfit 1!h|ig:ltirm at the end
of the teporting p-;ri.nd. lewy the fair ealue of pl:m assers, The cost of pnwidiug henefirs onder the defined henefit I\]:i[] 15 deteemined ue;ing the l'lmiuflud e
credit method.

‘Fhe peesent value of dhe definead benefi uh]igﬂﬁ[)n denominated in 3 1s determined by d‘ls(mmﬁng the cstimated fukure cash outilaws h‘t reference to marker
viclds at the eol of the repeenag period oo geovemment boneds that bave terms uppﬂlximnﬁng oy the rerms of the related obligation.

Service cost on the Company’s defined henefit Il]ﬂll 15 wnchuded 1n ump]nyt[- bencfkits expense. Hmph).ﬂ'r comwtributions, all of which are i.l‘llJt‘pL'l]dmll of the
nuenbur af voars of scevice, are meated as a reduction of service cosr. Ner inqerest expense on the net defined bencfit ]iuhili:} 15 incheed in Fnance costs.

Cratns and kesaes thrnugh re-measurements of the defined benefit pl:ms ans ru(ngm'zud in nther E{mprrhunsivr: income, which are not reclassified to Statemcat
of Profit and 1oss 1 3 subsequent ]‘\i_‘ﬁt)d. lfurther, ax rm{uiﬂ:d under [od A8 comphans Schedule 111, che {ompany transfers those amounts mcu*m;ymj n
other compechensive ineomce to forataed carnsigs i the Starement of Jhanpes in Fquiey and i rhe Balanee Sheer.

Other employee beaefits

Leave encashments

The undiseounted amount of short-term L‘mp][}:fu' benefins cx]’ll‘fln‘d ta be p:lid in tifhﬂﬂ;:r far the services cendercd h}‘ l.'mp]u}'(‘u are rrcngnind Ll'IJl'll'lj_: the
year when thy L-mp]t)!‘ucs render the service. These benefits incdhude leave encaslunents which are L'.\;pl:cr&'d to occur within twetve months after the end of the
peried tn which the employee rendecs the selared senviee. The cost of such leave encashmenrs 15 aceounted as undoer :

() in case of accumulaecd kv e encashments, when emplovees render the services thar increase therr entitlement of Fomre leave encashmenrs; ane

(b} in case of non-accemulating leave encashments, when the aliseoges occur.

Foave eacashmenes which are not l"{]’!L‘[‘lL‘d to aceur within bwelve months after the end of the ]’n'riud in whicl the L'mp{(}r\‘ll' readers the reated services arc
n_-.cr:gnjwd as A Iiahil'it.g' ar the prusent value of the deboned benefit nl}lig:]ri{ms ar the Balance Sheet doge Based vn actuadal valuation b}' an indtpvlldcnt actuary
using the Prjected Lo Credic Merhod. The discount rates used for dulunnining the present 1 alue of the nbligaﬁlm under the defined benaefit p]:in arc hased
ua the marker vields on povernment bonds as ar the Balanee Sheet dare.

Short-term employee benefit

All cenplovee benefits pavable wholly within twelve months of terderiog the services are cassified 2y shore-wrm emplayee bepefise. These beavfin nclude
salarivs aned wapes, bonus and cxgrana, The uadisconnted amount of shoreresm conplaves beachies expeceed to e paid in exchange for de serviees rendered
by emplonos is charged o the Statenent of Peofit amd Laess iie e pordod io which such soriees are rendered,

Equity and reserves
- sthare capital represents the nominal {par) valee of shaecs that have beon d#vucd.

Urher componene: of cquity inchide:

Re-measuemnent of net defioed benefit Tability -commpedses the geam@@tosacs from ¢hanges i demographic and faaacial assamphons ant the retues on plan

assts
Rerained camings melndes all current and prior pesiod g

!'ﬂpil;ﬂ reserve due tes €rain o H:Hg;ﬁn ]1u1’f|mu‘
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Segment reporting

{merating segments are reparted in manner consistent with the intcrnal reporting provided o the chiek operanng decision maker. The Managing 1irecror is
rcspmmib]r: fur the ﬁl_lucu,ri.ng resources and ﬂssus:&iﬂg purfurmzm[u of the upc[:llillg SCepments and ﬂ.cc;zrding]}' is identificd ag the chicf upcra.ting decison
maker. The Company is prinapally engaged in 4 single segment husiness {e, services

Earnings per shate

Basic carnings per share arc caleulaed by dividing the net profit or kss {excluding other comprehensive focomd) for the year attributnble to equity
shatehdders by the weighted average namber of cquity shares owrstanding dunng the year. The weighted average aumber of cquity shares voestanding during
the year is adiusted for cvents such as bomus issue, bonus clement 30 a dghe issu, shates splir and ceverve share splits (consolidation of shares) that have
chrmgu:] the number of L'qui.tjr shares vutstanding, without a corresponding chanpe i resouzces.

oz the purpose of ealeulining diluwed camings per share, the net poofit or less for the petiod attributable 6o equits sharcholders after vaking iate aceount the
afrer ncome v ofkeer of interest and other financing costs associated with dilotve potential oguity shaves and the weighted average numbet of additional
equity sharcs that would iave been ovtstanding assuming the conversion uf all dilutive putential equity shares.

Fair value measurement

The Company mensares financial instrunent sech as myestments at fair value ar cach balance sheer dare.

Lair value is the price that would e received to scll an asset ar patd to zaasfer o liabiliey in an ordetly cansnenon between matket participants ar thae
measurernont date. The fir value measurement is based on the peesummton rhat the taansacaon 1o sell the asser ot reaasfoer the Bability mkes place ether:

= In the [u'iﬂcipn] market for the asset ot Hability - or

= In the absence of a principal market, i the most adcantageous market for the asset o liability

The principal of the mast advantageons marker mast be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a Rability 1s measured using the assuraptiony
thar matket participants wouald use when prcing tie asser or labilicy, assaming that market pacticpanes act in their cconomic best mterest. The Company uses
valuation techniques that are appropriste in the citeunistanees and e which sufficient dam are available to measure fair value, maximiving (e use of relevant
nhsf_'rvﬂhic iuputﬂ and mijﬁmi.{iﬂg the use of unobscevalile in]’luts.

AN assers and Kabilities For which far value i measused oz disclosed in the financial starements are cageyorizcd withon the fir value hicrarchy, described as
fillows, based om the lowest levd input that is significant to the fatr value measurement 28 2 whaole:

Taevel 1— Quored (unadjusted) market prices in active matkets for identical assets or liabibidus

Javel 2 Valuaman rechmigues for which the lowest level input that is siymificant to the fair value measwrement is dreetly or indireetly observable

lavel 3 Valuation technigues For which the lowest level inpat that is sigﬂiﬁcanr e the fair value measuement is unobrenvable

Crrrenth the Company cartics those instrements wheee in Jevel 1 inputs of e shove-mentioned fir valoe hierarchy 1 used,

Recent accounting pronouncements

New amendments issued but not effective

Mintstey oF Corporare Aiairs M0MCA") nomfics now standards or amendments to the existing standacds under Companics (Indim Accounting: Standards)
Rules as izsucd from time to time, For the year endied March 31, 2073, A has nut notfies any new standards or amendownts oo the m;ih't'mg staodard

applicable to the company. 'Y
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Al arcwnts 30 2 ey, cueept e Jsia grd uhene o oa e sected)

CIM: U200 TG0 L 0543
3. Twperty and equipmem
Furalmare and Oifice Computar Ol Learcisokd
Briurce quigment equigmant Vehirles oquipcat P—— Bulldings Land Towal
Prerued Cosl
An ac lar April 2023 73.m 172.14 D730 6.5 19152 5.7 .13 SDE3 153,66
Sdddib o dunog; the e 527 L 7R Ho? L] 166 i3 LE] of 38
| 3poralis dneing the vear RL| _ 1) 145
As ak 31 Msuch 2024 B1.18 152.22 16257 &0.04 L1407 I4E .64 JE3 B20.64)
Sudilitseoms durug the wiar bLE 1137 W L33 ELul 45,14 [ 12014
Lyivpuals dunng the vear 22 HY X,
As 2t 31 Mach 2025 %657 20055 19391 5281 216, H 146 117,07 3233 926,91
Accumulated deprecindon,
['p 1o 1ot Aprl1 2023 [TE=] 1004 129 2350 e 255 862 . 392,80
U hacgy lese the yom 5 1% (U] LEL ) 584 180} 045 1M 316
tia diguas s L ) 3
U'p o 31 Mavely 2024 5334 15027 125,21 48 547 5.09 10,10 - HT03
! huge for the scar ENT] ] KNG H04 e 0 - 205 T i T OLBT
L dagpaozabe ¢11 411 14.4i)
Up 1o 31 arch 2025 3753 190812 145,40 3y 5432 5.52 1231 - +%6.20
Net block n
Az a1 51 March 2025 390 40437 4851 383 12042 193 1037 3133 428,940
As an M March 2024 28.82 .95 15 81y 135.60 257 6138 3083 37RST
Ad at 1at Aprll 2023 3060 -4 2400 4144 1M.0¥ 2,15 6251 3093 300.87
4. fnvanglhle nesew
Com paies
sofiware
Deemed Coam
As ap 191 Aps1 2022 L3
wddsion dunmgs the voar 1531
Uinprernaly dumng e vedr
Ay at 31 Mawech N6 Hoe.T1
Al < dugens rie o LRt}
Ly opusals dwnng rhe vear
As ur 31 Maich 2625 " 5255
——
Accmuliied amordzaion
U to 15t Aprik 2023 b
gy tor rhe g 1512
O dispan s
[ p 19 31 Mouch 2024
Churge mecthesia
1oy dverizial
Aa ar 31 March 2025 13LG)
et hlack
Aa at 31 Whiveh 2025 .42
As ar M March 2024 2.2
As al 18t Apal 2028 .07
Muotes:

The Company has ot revalued e properny and equponem dnckedng oght ef use aseers and mounglile dsects
Uhe Compang hae closted to contnug wih dhe carmogr wabue bl ok ks property, plint ond cqepeent od mengble oo o eecopriad o GAAP
tumdadong finad <tfomionms s dueoniod cok e IS teasitino die
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5.

Right-to-use asset

Leasehold

properties Total
Gross hlock
As at 1st April 2023 28249 282.49
Additions during the year 56.37 56.57
Disposals during the year = =
As at 51 March 2024 339.06 339.006
Additions during the year 34.63 34.63
IDisposals during the year (4.58) (4.58)
As at 31 March 2025 365%.11 369.11
Accumulared depreciation
Up te 1sc April 2023 93.13 03.13
Charge for the year G2.05 62.05
On disposals - -
Up to 31 March 2024 155.13 155.13
Charge for the year 59.83 59.83
On disposals - -
Ag at 31 March 2025 215.00 215.00
Net block
As ar 31 March 2025 154.11 184.11
As ar 31 March 2024 183.39 183.89
As ar Ist April 2023 189.36 189.36

»

. W
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G.

10.

G

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 Aprit 2023
Non-Current investments
Investmenis al cost
a. Investment in Equity Instrumenis{Un-quated)
Aarvee Assooaes Pry Limred ol g o
{160 ey shaecs of AU 1 cach, fully /nactly paid.
Aarvee Assodiates Lad i i i
(Heureguity shaces of GBI | each, fully /partly paid.)
NAG Infrastructure Consuling Fopineers Povate Limied 126.356 -
1,580,268 Lyuity Share 1of R 10 cach fully paid]
SR Q83 India Privaie Liouted i1 -
[HLIALT ]iqu‘tly' Share of R 10 cach I‘ul!y raid)
iIyve Globol Enpovering Private Loniied 1.34 - -
LK Fguury Share of Rs.1() cach fully paid)
h. Membmghip ghares in LLP
Unapakshi LLP LIXIk) -
Caggamelvevu Callectve 1LY iK1 - -
127,83 0.02 002
Aggregate amount of uoted investments - -
Agrregrate amount of market value of guoted myesiments - - -
Aggropate acmount of unguoeted myestments 12% B3 (2 [FAY )
\pgropate provision for diminubion i valae of isvesoments - - “
31 March 2025 3 March 2024 1 April 2023
Loans -Non-current
Uneecured, considered good
Lasans and advances o eelared parties frefee nnge 37) 7732 FH.40 5.50
77.32 48.49 2.56
31 March 2025 31 March 2029 1 April 2023
Other financial assels - Non-current
Unsecured, considered good
[2eposits with hank + F16.12 36219 34331
SecvEity depeosrs 2707 26.54 77
Depasaits - Uredit lmpared 15.15 15.15 181l
Less: Prostsien for expected eredit biss (15.15) (¥5.15) {14.1'0
443.20 383.73 F71.28
Hinchudes deposits kepr as margin money deposis against bank guarantecs and deposits marked av lien |
31 March 2023 31 Murch 2024 1 Aprit 2023
. Deferred tax asser/(Lability) (net)
Deferred tax Liability (Gross)
Prisprey and equipment -
Deferred tax asser (Gross)
Proprrty and equipment B3 15.26 K16
Brovpgienn tose wpecred eredic lews on dovlbtful reeeiyables Ti6x R TG
Provisiom for expected cecdic loss on ather assers 2881 804 37.56
Proviskm for conployee benefits o4 TR [CLEES 56.45
179.66 i81.85 16923
Net deferred taz agset/ (liabiliny) 170,66 181.85 169.23
31 March 2025 21 March 2024 1 April 2023
(rther Non-current assets
Balineos wirh government authonms (L 5708 1627
dvance nieome anfia of providens) 13811 GLiY 100408
Capital advances 19.23 4544 6,39
Propaid carenses 12418 LR 17.4%
Chhr asecte Gradil Impaieed 18279 18549 313,94
Lasesr Prosvasten For espegued orvdn loss 18279 TH3AY) (303 04
169.42 188,69 205.66
L



AARVEE ENGINEERING COMSULTANTS LIMITED

(formerly knowh a1 Aarvee Azsoriares Architects Engineers & Consulvancs Privare Limited)
Summary of significam accouming policies and other explzontory information

Al gimunts m 2 b, oxecpt sharc Jat and v hore othenasce stated)

CIN: T 74H0TG2005PLC04529]

11. Trade receivables

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
Umseoured, coosidened good
i oo ered rooad §650.52 135043 1,575 %
Reegoealaes Cregdit Imprcd AnH.47 LT Fo, 17
Tpnst TPoen i e eapeesed erehe ks [RUCEY (300, £ 7} (315,17
1,580.52 135443 137876
‘The mavemnerus in the loss allowsnce for impaeirmenc of wrade receivables are as follows:
Takamce at the by of the vear AT iy HL1z
Alowauce dusuge the var 230 a0l
Lalamee ab b crdd 0E dhe yoar 0847 .17 30617
Tride teecivablca ageing schedule
Ouisiaoding for folloving periods from due date of paym cot
Lzeg than 6
Not Duc ki tha 6 months - Vyear 1-Z years -} yeurs Mere vhan 3 years Tatal
31 March 2025
1,370 THLES 1322 M R0 I 165652
1, Undispueed rrade recenabler - counaalered puod
1 Undipured made recervables  which have spnifenon -
wicrease wi credit ik
1156 11.3% "3 2F0An 30847
e Ustdeputed teads seeemables o evcedit mpaeed
A Dyputed wrode recenables -
v Dspintel wdde recenables  which have apmificane B
woercas o creddd ok
v Dspitted wade recenables  ceedn anpaeed -
Tatal - 1,273.84 192.01 13341 57.41 305.31 1,964.9%
Duesiending for followinge neriods lcona due dase of paymem
Lrss vhan b
Not Duc momths 6 momhs - Lyear 1-Z years 2-3 years More than § yoars Tuoral
31 March 2024
v Umdiapted trade weoenrables - eonadered jrusd HEELTL g 161,00 35400 4363 1,3549.43
i Dedapuoted tracde reeemables - whach have wgmficant -
morea e m ol ek
H.OH .08 fir HEE A Jo. 17
i Usdpaate ] emndie vocens abli- credst uapairad
o Dipmiad teade g ablos -
v, Drwpuared cele eereivebles - wheely have syroficant -
ancreawe ubk Sredi ik
my Dvmies! oanfe meognables  credat amypaad -
Towd - 850,71 271,92 176.01 42.30 319.47 Lot.G 1
Ousinnding for following proods from dwe dare of payment
Less than &
Mot Due 6 raanths - 1 year I-2 years 2.3 years tMore than § vears Toeal
mom hs =
1st Apnil 2023
1 Undepuacd erade eecenables  conrndeged proced 1% L31.3R 13103 H2Ah +1 1.376.Th
e U] brante eceialiles  whigh e agrficant .
ereae us ereditnek
1t U'rdipand ermle ceeenables  credn wapaired A28 t4 31 20 50 14 306.17
o [Depuel e oeeeahlis -
s Uwproed tade recenables - wineh base symufeam -
weverse g evedir sk
ve Depued iraele recenables  creda ampaioed -
Tl A52 406 R TE L6R1 Y3




AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED

(formerly kmown as Aarvee Assoviates Architects Engineers & Consultants Private Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policled and ather cxplanatory informarian

(Al amouats in ¥ millions, except shace daca nad wheee erheessse srand)

CIN: U74200TG2005PLCO45431

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
12. Cash and cash equivalents
Balanees with banks
I curee i accounts 3343 01 17385
- In fised deposits with edginal matedty Tess than 3 months, - -
Cash on hand [3Res) B -
5165 101,71 17513
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
13, Loans - Cutrent
Unsecured, considered good
Loans 1o othergt 51,27 65.15 1011
51.27 65.15 10.01
=] grans 1o others aec amerest bearing inwe corpory deposis beannr ansaterest aod aee onsecured 0 nakure,
51 March 2025 51 March 2024 1 April 2023
14. Other financial assets - Current
Linsecured, considered good
Loons and advances o
emplirous 147 250 in.1s
wihers EEN ) 622 a2
lnterest accursd and ot reecived on deposis 1272 9.79
onteact assets-unbilled revenoe 543,50 20914 351.21
£ ontract assers-works under progress 64,27 - -
G145 375.78 310.70
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
15. Othker assers - Current
Unsecured, considered good
Ralances with govermmuest authonies 14511 115.%) 30
Ifamest money deposit 43.58 3769 17405
Preposl expenses 09.14 17,43 3.4
260.83 200.73 0 12
kY
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AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED

{formerly known as Aarvec Associates Architeets Engineers & Consultants Private Limited)
Summoanry of significant accounting policics and other explanarory information

Al amounes in T milhiong, excepr share data and where otherwise stated)

CING UT4200TG2005PLC045491

17. Other aquity
Reseryes and sorplus
Retained caenings

Otber comprehensive income

Remeasurement of defiaed benefit plans

Farcign qurreney translation resceve
‘Total ather equity

MNature and purpose of regetves

Retained earnings
Retained eamings cmmpiise of the Company’s accumulated undistributed carmngs,

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans

I'he sererve represents the remcasurement gaing/ (losses) ansing from the acmaral valuanon of the defined benefir ubligasions of the Cnmpany. The

31 Maich 2028 3% Maxch 2024 1st April 2023
20I17.86 LRI04 1,386.73
2,017.56 1,805.04 1,386.73

25.83 .22 2167
23.83 38.22 2157
(20RT) (2.14) (234
2,03.82 1,842.12 1,405.06
measurernent

catns/ (Wsses) are recopmeacd in other comprehensive inenme and accomulared under this reserve within eyuity. The amaunts cecopnized wmler this meeceve are not

rechasuifivd o statemant of prodit or oss,

-
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AARVEE EMNGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED
(formerdy knowa as Aasvee Associates Architects Bnginecrs & Consultants Private Limited)
Snmmarf of gigﬂiﬁcnm ag:cm:lnring pnliﬂ'ns and other Eﬂplanalory informarion

(Al

amoonis in ¥ mallioms, excent shage da and where atherwive stated)

CIN: U4Z00TG2005PLC 045490

20.

2L

3Z,

a

31 March 2025 31 Mearch 2124 15t Apeil 2021

Provisions- Noo-curreat
Trevision fue gratuary freler mibe 35) 197.77 14187 13402

7N 141.57 134.92

31 March 2035 31 March 2021 lar April 3023

Borrowings = Cutrent
Scenwed  Ar S Coer

Wirching Captal Loans

[t Banks
Rupee Loans 41 5 1hfn 63 289487
Sosking Capital demand 1o 5554
40215 100.65 280,87
Addd nwrene e of Wen-Coresene llnlmmﬂm (Refer Mot 18) FR.80 7230 74
Total 461.04 22895 3l .07
Carrying amonot
Note Refl Interest Rate 3iMarch 2025 31 March 2024 Lst April 2023
Seate Bank of India fa) o T T4t dn
Yeu Hank ) S LA REIE) 141,83 URGE
1L Bank ] U 350 e 111 44 &
1T Werksng caprtel Term $oan i} P AR 53,560
402115 Mg 65 280.87
1. Niowes

fa) ‘Ihese leans are secured by war of lpotbecaton and first <harge un plant & equapments, sther equipments, cespectne sehiclhes and wnbire custent
avects meluding soean dlsdes | bt prosent and fumsee) and tem Jeposate ol e Companyg

[ssese charge by way of morsmge on immovable propernes owoed by she comnany and fiest charge by way oF immaovable pronperses a5 menooned m
the lorn agrecrnend, ownesd by Ao BV Chakrapam, Mansgng 1iecctor of the Sompam and Smi I Nirmnala, wefe ol RV.Chalorapani.

“Thse lans auy scoured By way of pledpe and first charge oo 30 %0 of shares hold by S0 RV Chak rapani.

e hoann nieg fuethye secured hy nay r)fpchml:ll puarntes EXe RY Chal:rnpanl_ Sme b Niemaln and Su B Venkmoawnea Iluddy

) These hiaas are recured by way of hepnthecation andd seeond chiarge vn entiee cureent assebs inchuding rece 2lles of thy Compary oth preeat
and funec),

Secomd charge by war o morgaee on mmosable peopesies owned a5 menmoned nche bian ageecnens, eeaed by Se R Chakrapane, sl Soe

R Mrmala

"These Joans are secarcd by way of pledpe and secomd ehare ea 300 of shares bdd by 5o R VChakeagane,

{c) These Ioans are secured by way of et para passa charge gn plant & eyuipaicats, olher egupments, wepeense vebicles and catne currem
assets including recemables . (both present and Rutune) and tezng deponits of the Company along with other loas providers

bame pares pagsu charge oo smmaos able propernes owned bu she company and on smmevablle properscs as monned e Dian agreemon,
vwned by de RV Chakoapam, Mansgng et of the Company amd sm B Narmala, wile of R Clabiapam alomg otk other loan provaders,
These loans ace scoured by wiy of frat paest passiehang om 3050 of shazes hold by Se BV Chakeapans along sath other lean pronaders

(d} The Compang has sabsfied all the covenanes prescolesd mowemnes of barrowings

A1 March 2025 31 Macch 2024 1s¢ April 2023

Trade payables*

Aliceer snterprives and sonall entcrpniscs 3577 B4 57.5+
U Mher tham et CAtCEPE g wmal) LY O e TS 134 12487
242,52 169,57 NPG.37

#U'rade pavables moludes accured vepemses and other monthle prissaans relased 0 By branches

Moo arad semall eoteepnises under the Alieea, Small oned Aedsom Vorerpriaes Devclopment e, 2006 e been deteemned v the esrent soeh parries e beew deasficd on the
basis nf infiwmsnn avadable sath the Company and selicd opeon by the sodnaors




AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED

(formeddy known as Anrvee Asgaciates Architects Engincers & Consnlan Private Limited)
Summary of significant accounting pelicies and other explunatory infermation

{.AH amoones 3n & molliens, crcept share data and wbere dtheerise stated)

CIN; U74200T G2005PLCOM451

B) Ageiog echedule:
Trade payahble 28 on 31 March 2025

Outstanding for following pereds o due dute of payment

Fadticulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
YBRIE
G) MILIL .77 35,7
taih {0 bers 2. Th 246,78
suy Diyvpurred dues - KISHIL.
) [Dsputed dues Othows
Trade payable as on 31 March 2024
Quistanding for following pereds from duc daw of payment
Farticulars Less than I year 1-2 yeams 2-3 years More tian 3 Total
y-ca.l‘i
iy LA 5751 165 5014
u} Cthuers 130.29 0z 13141
i) Dinpubes] s — MEMIL
{w) Disputed dues  {lthers - -
Trade payables as on 1si April 2023
Cumtanding for following periods from due dale of paymeni
Particular Leg tham 1 vear 1-2 years 2-3 years Maore than 3 “Total
years
1 MShIL 4218 052 5150
1) Crhers 124.87 124.87
(1) Dispied] dues — MM
vy Dhepuated ducs Others
A1 March 2028 51 Macch 2024 15t Apnl 2023
33, Other financial liabilities
Pavable ts wimplopes 2141 172,05 L3834
Mobiltaton advances from customcrs 149721 317006 A4T7.79
412,02 459,11 6le.12
31 March 2625 31 Masch 2024 1a1 April 2053
24, Oiber curcent liabiliies
Searutorn dues 21053 124,47 18572
218.83 128.47 183,72
3L March 2025 3l Mach 2024 1st April 2022
28, Provisions= Cotrer
Fronrasm B leas s encashiment X 1152 25 44
Provpaom fior wramine {rofer note 183 AR.73 13, M1 3300
7960 61.83 58.50




AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED

(formezly known as Aarvee Associates Architects Engineers & Consoltants Private Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

(A amounts in T millions, cxcept share data and where otherwise stared)

CIN: UT200TG2005 PLC045291

26.

{i)

i)

27,

29,

Revenue from operations

Services income*

Disaggregation of revenne - based on geography

India
Rest of the world

Disagprepation of revenue - hased on timing of revenue recopgnition

Reveaue tucopnized over time
Revenue wecagnized ara poiot in ime
Orhers

Note*

1. Rewenue from opcration inchede wobilled income of Ra. 543.5 Milbon (Previous Year Rs. 209,14 Million)

Other income
Interest income on
- Depasits

- [ncome fax refund

Orther fncomes

Empleyee benefits expense
Salaties, wapcs and bonus
- implovecs

Ky Managerial Pecsanngl (refer note 37)
Comiribution to provident fund and othee funds
Gransity and leave encashmoenr (refer note 35 iv)
Kraff wolfars NpLnERe

FPinance cast
Interest CYHTSC
Orther borrowing: Costs

31 Maxch 2025 31 March 2024
5,545,390 5,068.28
5,548,390 5,068.28
4,862.22 4,784.27

583,17 28401
5,545,319 5,068.28
1.943.101 1,339.53
3,602.33 3,724.33

- 442

3,545.39 5,068.28
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
27.07 2202

- 1.29

4459 19.45

7168 42.76

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

242909 2,085,500

80,10 7402

6377 55.58

63,08 49.79

1267 33.43

2,679.60 2,298.32
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
51.29 S@iEa

BiLo2 51.39

104.52

7



AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED
(farmezly known as Aarvee Associates Archilecs Engineers & Consultants Private Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatoty information

(Al amounats n T millions, excepr shate dara and where otherwise stated)
CIN: UT4200T G2005PLC045491

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
3Hj. Depreciation and amorasarion
Depreciation/amortisation expense vn
Property and cquipment &2 R7 55.15
Intanpible assers 1118 i5.12
gt of use agsets 5983 6205
133.58 132.32
31 March 2028 531 March 2024
31 Consuliancy z2nd technical Charges
Management and consultancy fees 1.143.72 1,25897
Projer munituring and SUTYEY CXpEnses 342,25 261.16
1,435.97 1,520,12
3. March 20238 31 March 2024
32 Odher expenses
Advertisement and business promaotion 828 1049
Crefce mamrenance 4819 36.45
Rient l:l‘li'rEI' noate 4]) 26.71 21.53
Lepal and professional foes 2.88
Rates and raxes 2694 79
Ensurance 17.18 18.60
Power and Facl 19,48 1920
Securin chasprcs 1416 13.33
Printing; and statdoncry 1138 26.01
T'raveliop and accommuodarion 12087 121.89
\uditor's remuneranon
- Statutury and Tax awdit fees 246 1.71
- Certifieations cte. 0.49 1.42
[.6un on u-uch:m}_rr; fluctusnion {net} (.69 n23
Loss on sale of asscts faer) 6.21 1o
Repates and maintenance 9.65 R.58
Bad debrs written of T u 143.35
Preswvistion for corporr: weseral ruspmlsihilir} (refer Note A bElDw} 032 1743
rrewision for uxpur:tud credit Inss- trade recetvables 2.30 -
Privisivm for expeced credit loss- other asscts (Net) 576 (18.63)
Alsecllancous £ao0s 7200
39230 49966
A.  Deiails of Corporate social responsibility expendirure:
31 March 2025 31 Marck 2024
Gitods amouat fequized 1o b speat by the Company duriog the vear 032 726
‘Tatal 9.32 7.26
Movemeni in the balance of Corporate social respﬂnsibiﬁty.’
31 March 2028 M March 2624
Opening Balunce 4.04 1012
\mt)uu[ I'L‘(,Il_li‘[l'd 10 ‘lJL‘ SPL'HI dur'mg II!]L' }'t:lr 9-32 T;EG
Amouat spent duting the vear {(6.82) (12.44)
Closing balance 7.44\ 494




AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED
{formerly known as Aarvee Associates Architects Engineers & Consultants Private Limited)
Summary of sipnifcant accountpg peolicics and other explanatory information

All amoonts 10 $ millions, exeepl share data and where atherwise stared)

CIN: UT4200 T G205 PLC043491

33

Expenditure in forcipn currency

Salarics, wages and boauws

Seaff welfare expensy

Other borrowing costs

Sanagement and eonsultaney foes
]’ﬂli(‘(f munlturmg FH'[(] hl]r\'L'!. L‘SFL’I‘[!’GEH
Advertisement and business promoton
OFffice maintenance

Rent

l.l‘g:ll -!_[ld ]’)I[JfUHE\-i{]T]EkI r['CH

Rates and taxes

'Ilhlll'EI'l'll:L'

Power and fucl

Sctuﬂ't:.' (hﬂigr:ﬁ

Prinonyy and stavonery

'['mvulh‘ng ElTId ﬂ[[llfﬂmlll_l:l['i[]l'l

Ruepaits and maintennece

:\ Hﬁt(’“'ﬂ.l’ll‘{lﬂﬁ

Commitments and ¢ontingent liabilities

Capital Commitments

Contingent Liabilitics
Mooy Suins

Gaoods and Service tax diﬁpulﬂi input tax credit!

Guirantecs outstinding

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
22,78 2452
0.i4 0.0
0.70 0.44
13346 12377
12,75 0.01
0.64 S
106 102
113 143
0,48 1.09
14.68 100
198 (.23
0.09 .02
0,68 0AG
0.09 0.31
19.46 17.43
212 0.28
830 1.30
28106 197.07
3 March 2025 31 March 2024
272 10,50
318 -
67,32 57.65
1,670.20 1.481.77
1,743.41 1,540.95

FIhe Company has availed Iapur Tax Credic (076 ameounting o INI 57,68 which 15 discloscd under ‘Balances with povernment suthositivs | which is disputed
by tax authottivs obsequantly. The Management, baged on kegal advice, bolieres that the PIC §s valid and recoverable, [Mowever, if the claim 1s disallowed, the
Company may be required to settle the disputed amount along with applicable interest and The Company has not collected GSY from the Cusromerns wirich
wote taxable vader GR1 Act and are under di.-;purc with the Cuastomens ﬂmuunﬁng e [N 964 The fjumpaﬂ.v may he rw,]uirmi o venle the disputed amouant

.ﬂ:mg wirh ineerest amld pumﬂn i any_ These bas Been disclosed as a conringent liabiliry.

. Emploves Benelits

Defined conrribution plans

The Company's contahuton @ provident Fand jnad other fueds are congidered 13 defined conmibunion plans. The contabunons arc chakged to the Shoment of
profic and loss as they acerue. Canmburony o provident and other fands ncledud 1 eoploves lrenefit cxpenses are as undes

Comnmbuien e provident and other funds

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
53.77 55.58
6377 55.58

w BE



AARYEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED
(furmerly known as Aarvee Aseocintes Architecss Engineers & Consulants Private Timited)
Summary of significant accountng policies and other explanatory informarion

(Allamounts in 3 millions, excepr share data and where othervise stated)
CIN: U74Z00T G2005PLC045491

TDrefined benefit plaa - gramity

The Company hax provided For pramsey for its emplovees as per acnanial eaboation casicd out by an imdependent actuary on the balanee gheet dare. The
valuation has been carried out using: the Project Uait Credic Mechad ag per Ind A8 19 1o determine the present vilue of Defiacd Benefit Obligations and the
relured current sezvice cost. This s a defined enefit plan as per [nd A% 15, "The gratuity plae s govemed by the provisions of the Payment of Grabniy Act, 1972
tas amanded from time to time). Employews are envitled o all the benefits valisted under this acr.

Valuations are perfatmed on eertan busic ser of pre-detenmined assumpticns and orher regulativey framewaork which may vary onertime. Thos, the Company is
exposed to vasons tsks i providmg the above bengfit which are as follows:
a Interest rate risk

"The plan exposes the Company o the nsk of fall in interest mates. A fall in interest rawes will eesult in an increase in the climare cost of providing the abore
benefit and will thus resulr in an mcrcase e the value of the lability a5 shown in financial statements.

b Liquidity risk
"This is the risk that the Company is not able to meet the shon-resm gratuity pavouts. This may asise due  non availability of enouph cash/ cash equivekents w
mexct the liabilities or holding ufilliquid asyere ot betay sold 0 toe.

< Salary escalation risk

The present value of the defined Lenefit plan is caleulared with the assumption of salary increase of employees in Fumre. Deviation in the eate of interest in
furure for emplovees from the rate of increase in salary vsed W determine the present sahue of obkgatinn will have a beating oo the plan's Kabilit.

d Demographic nsk
The Company has vsed cortain modality and atriinon assumprions in valuation and i expased o risk of acal experience rning out te be wase compacsd w
the assummton.

e Regulatmy risk
Girataity benefits are paid in aceordanc with the roquirements of the Payment of € Srawity \et,1972 (as anwntded from time to Geoe). There s 2 risk of changw in
repulations requiring higher gratuity PATOULS.

(i) Change in projected benefit ohligaron

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Projected henefit ubh‘p_ﬂﬁlm ot the bug'mning of the year 174.88 167.98
Service cost 353.58 2894
Interest cost 11.97 1203
weruural (aing S Tuss 13.63 {1811
Pay ments made 19.57) {15.97)
Projected benefit ll]T]tgﬁﬁrJn ar the end of the yuar *6.49 174.88
{ii} Current / non-current classification of defined benefit obligation
Cutrent beacfit oblipaton 3872 3330
on-cuttent beacfit shlipation 7.7 141,57
216.49 174.88
3H Marck 2025 31 Murch 2024
(iii) Reconcibiador of pregent value of obligation
Peesent vabue of projecwed henefit sbligneion a the and of the vear 21649 174.88
Iunded starus of the plans -
Net liabitity recognised inowe halanee whece 2led9 174,88




AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED
{formerly known a8 Aarvee Associates Architects Engineers & Consultants Private Timated)
Summary of sigrilicant accountiag policies and other explanatory informartion

(Al amonnts in Z milhiens, except share dara and where atherwise smtud)

CIN: UT4200TG2005PLC5491
M} March 2025 31 March 2624
(1iv) Expense recognised in the statement of profic and loss
Service cust 35.58 28.94
Interest cost 11.97 1203
Gratuity expense 47.55 2097
leave encashinent L LY (l:mr;m] . management L'ﬁtimalcs) 15.44 2479
Lrtaruicy payments cazher accounred as eepense - (1597}
Total Gratuity and leave encashment {refer note 28 ) 62.93 42.7%
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
{v} Expense recognised in OC1
Remeasurements due to
[ffect of chanpge in demopraphic assumptions -
Fiffwer oof change in fmancial asssmpaons 1.97 202
liffect f experience adjustonents 11.65 (20.12)
Fffect uf'uxpr:rimec adjustments on leave cacashment (I,DSJ
(B} 12.58 (18.11)
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(vi) Key actuarial assumptions
I Mscount ratc 7.04%, T7.25%
Salary escalation tate 10008 10,0075
31 March 2025 31 Matrch 2024
(vii) Demographic assumprtions to determine change in defined bencefits
Arention mare (Based e age group) 20255 2y-25%¢
Mortaline table Indian Assueed Lives Slurtality (2012-14)
Rerrement age 65 Years 05 Yiars
3 Margeh 2825 31 March 2024
('ui) Sen silivity ﬂmllysis
Impact om defined henefit ablipadon
D¢l effeer of +1%0 chunge in dizeounr raee K742 167.6>
[3cha effeet of 1% chungn: n divcount rate 2644 182,80
[relia effeer of +1%0 change i salaey cecalanon rare 225.65 182,38
[elen effeer of %4 clmngu n .-:ﬂlﬂr}: csealanon rafe 2779 t67. 74
[elta offect of +1%0 change in withdrawal eate 215,00 173.74
[elia offect of 196 change in withdraw] rate 21805 176108
{vil) Matwrity analysis of projected benefit cbligaton
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
1 year 38399 33.55
2§ ears 123.97 98.3%
G o 110 vears 861/ 030
More than 10 rrars 68.55 55.58

The ::1gnil-lmnl actaarial ﬂssumpli[)nﬂ for the dewermination of the defined henefit :lhlij_,."lti(m are the discount rate and wa]ﬂr!. eecalation mate, The ealeulason of

is not ascertncd @0 be macerial by the managemeat

the net defined Tweonefit tabihiny s seasidve to these assumprions, | Towever, the impace of these char e
)




AARYEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED
[farmerdy lnoom as Aarves Associstes Archiscrsy Fngineers & Conseltants Private Limited)

Suommary of significa acconating polivics and otber explanatery info mmaticn

{AD rnwunts in ¥ malhions, except ahare dara and whese otherwste seated)

CIN: UZ4200TG2005PLC04 5491

a6
Al

B.

C

Tacome ras

lacome tax expense iccogniscd in the statement of profit and loss consists of
Curenc meome @

Dicferced tax eapenses fbenelit)

I'ax for carber yoam

Reconciliation of mx expense and the aceconting profie muleiplied by India's 12 sare

Froabw before 1ax

Fraeiod ingeome tax et an Tadia

Fpesied mx expense

Tax effect of amount which are noc deducedhble (muahle) in calculating racable incnee:
Expenscs, [bencht) oot alluwed for tix pucpose R

T'anes tor carber years

Tacome taxcd at speesal mic

Tncome nob commsdored for b purpeose

Artual tax cxpensc

31 March 2023 31 Miarch 2024
2002 180094

5.3 i ]

214 87 135.81

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
TR IO 58411

2517 2517"a

197 26 13087

1761 6.17)

214.87 133.51

v per previvion of secton LLS FAN of Income Tax Act, 1961, the company has upted topay meome s ata me e 23,177 subject 1o comphance with
crmdinns mesnoned by fling o e of Tueo e Tax belore Bhag Tneowme Tax Return for I 0020 The Compangy 7l contimme o Dl e relum
under the Sectrrm 118BA A Aecardhagh, company has provided sncome 1 on che e Le. 2517

Morvem et of deferred tan asset for the pear ended 31 March 2025

Particulars

Deferred tax ssset/ (iiabilicy) (Grose)

Teoperty doed Lgupmem

Trrovrust for expeeeed eoedit Joss on diubn bl eecon ables
Toovasean For expected credit Joas v other asscis

Treowaur s for empsloy re basefits

Net defzerd tax asset/Hahilley)

Movermanr of deferned tax psict for the year ended 31 March 2024

Pariculars

Deferred tax ussed/ (labilicy) (Gross)

Propersy and [igumpment

Prviion for expected credsc bosn i disubefidl secenables
Prevmion foe eapected ¢redit losw o either asacr

Pronsim g empho e benefus

Net deferred tax usset/ (Liability)

. Movement of deferred inx asset for the vear ended Ist April 2023

Paruiculacs

Deferred wx nsset/(linhiliny) (Gross)

I‘mrum aml I,qunpme-nr

PFrosvsman for expeeted ercdi low on doobful recen ables
Btrscsncnn Foort g fureted o it s con tthies awscts

Priaysseon for vmplines bunefi

Net deferned tax assct/ (lahility)

Amount charged 10 Amonnt
1 April 2024 sratement of charged to other 2] March 2025
profut and loss comprehensive
5.4 {6,553 B3
T .58 TT o4
8.6 18 2451
B3R 7.37 (243 64,78
165185 1.2¢ (3.13) 179,66
18183 1.24 (3.43) 179.66
Amoune
Amaount charged to
1 April 2023 statement of “""I:lg"d;”:'f“" 31 March 2024
profit and loss ' i
meorac
%16 T 18.26
106 TN
275 INE he XY
a4 4,40 6l 84
16%.23 12,62 - 18188
169,23 12.62 - 15105
Amount charged m Amount
, statement of charged o odiee .
1 April 2023 profit and lose camaprebeasive 1at April 2023
(Restared) ineame
(-] zl .10
0,30 76 TG
20,35 1.1 1756
HiAW 1630 50,45
128,99 20.24 - 169,23
148,99 20.24 4 169.23
=

%Mﬂm‘




AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULLTANTS LIMITED

[formerky known as Aarvee Associdtes Architects Engineers & Consultanis Private Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policics aad other explanatory informatice

{All arnounts it ¥ milliens, except shace daza and wheee otherwise stated)

CIN: UT4200 T GZ2605PLCM5401

G. Charge of deferved tx assel to siatement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income

.

31 March 2025 31 Maich 2024 1st April 2023
Impact of difference between depreciation /amartisation 157 .10 2.11
Impsst of expenditure charged to statement of profit end loss in the current year -10 252 18.13
bur allowed bor tax puspeses oo payment bass
Deferred tax (benefit) / expenses 4,35 1762 214,724

. The moveracarin current tax abilicy

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 Ist April 2023
Balance 2t the bagianing of the year tnet} 64.69 109.08 194.06
Add: Advance mx paid (including self-assessment tax and mxes dedocied at source) 201.16 16549 168.93
Less: Incomeé taz refund weceived (B.42) 1.2 (45.40)
Less: Frovision for taves {209.52) (15098} (127.78}
Lass: Revsrsals of excess (advance tax)/cucceat tax liability in baoks 7.6 {77.7%)
Balance at the end of the year (net) 138,11 £4.69 109.08
Disclosed as -
Advance tex (net) (2) 13811 64.60 109.08
Current tax liabilities (net} (b)
Total (a-b) 138.11 54.69 105.08
Related party disclogures
a. Wame of related parties and description of relationship
Nmrmes Description of relaticnship

Aamves Agspeiates Pry Lid- Australa Subadises
Aarvee Associates Lid- UK Subsidracies
Hyve Global Engincering Prrvate Limive™ Subsidiarics
SRA 55 India Prvate Linited* Subsdintes
Nzg Infraserucnuze Consulting Enpineers Pyve Lid * Subsidiarics

* Subsidiare with effect from 31-12-2024

Anreee Sofoware Technologies Peivare Limired

Aarvee KPPA
Aarvee TCPL
Aarvee AYESA
Aarree - Vax

AGG- (NFR) Tuonel
Aarvee EINTL- EL
Rites ltd. India
Quapakshi LLP

Eey managerial perspnnel
R. ¥, Chakcapani

B. V. Reddy

M, Kishere Kumar

M. Murthy

I Nirtnala

R Nagarun

R Sncha

VV. Subrshmanyam
Sugandha Khandehwal

sgnificant influeace

Joiot Venkur=
Joint Venrurs
Joint Venture
Joine Veprure
Joint Venture
Joinr Vearure
Jaint Veohire
Aszsociaws with holding lass than 20%

Managing Directos

Whols time Director

Whele fime Dinecron

Whale tire Direckor

Relative of Managing direcror
Divector

Diirector

Chisf Financial Officer
{ompany Secratary

Enrerprses ovee which Key Managerial Personnzl 2ce able t crercise conteol ot




AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED

{formesly Jnown as Aarves Asgociates Architects Boginsers & Consultants Frivate Limited)
Summary of significanr aeconnting policies and other explanatary Information

(All armounts in ¥ millions, except share dam and where otherwise staeed)

CIN: U200 TG2005PLC 045431

b. Transactions during the vear

31 March 2025 31 Masch 2024
Subsidiaries
Agrvee Agsociates Poy Lod- Ausealia
Services rendered 5 {39.95)
Aarvee Agsociares Led- UK
Services rendered = {4.98)
Loans/advarces given (29.49) {47.50)
Interest on loan (2.50) (0.38)
SRA OS5 [udia Povate Limited*
Services received 10.04 4.39
Nag Infrastmicture Consulting Engineers Fer Lod #
Bemaces received 16.16 5
Ren paid (135 (13.20
Loan received along with aterest accrued 1864 B
Loan repaid 370m
Joint Yeniure and other entities
Aarves KI'TA
Services rendezed - {323)
Aarvee AYESA
Servicea sondered - (879
Rires Ivd. India
Other incomes 0.43 3828
Services rendeced {216} {23.21)
Eey managerial personnel
BV, Chakrapani
Remuneration (refer note 28) 42.00) (42.00)
Consideration paid rowasds acquision of subsidiaries {005
Loan receivad 128.00
Loan repaid (133.00) -
Others {4.59) (402
B. V. Reddy
Remunsration (reier not= 28) (10.44) (0.40)
M. Kishoge Eumar
Rerunerstion {refer note 28) (10.69 9.7
M. Murthy
Remuneration {rafer nore 28) {10.48) (9.35)
E Mirmala
Consideration paid townrds acquistion of subsidiades (12638 -
Rerit (366 {3.25)
R.INagarjun
Consideration paid rowards acquasaon of subsidiarics .67) -
R Speha
Consideration paid towards acquistion of subsidiaries 0.67) .
Kemuneration {refer nore 28) {5.98 (3.58)
Sugandha Khaodelvwal
Remunerztion (refer note 28) 1 (152

\Buduwerpre




AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED

(formerly known as Asrvee Associates Architecs Enginecrs & Consultaats Privare Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and ether explanatary informadon

{All aroounts in ¥ millions, except share data and where otherwise steted)

CIN: L74200TG2MSPLCO4549]

c. Balance receivabic/ (payablc)
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

181 April 2023

Subsidiaries
Aarvee Agsociates Py Lii- Australia
“Trade reeceivables 22,43 4421
Anrvee Associates Lid- UK
Tzade zeceivables 4.08 495
loan receivables (refer note.7) 1Az 47.63
Nag [nfrastrncture Consulting Englacers Byt Lid*
Trade receivables -
Loen payable (1.64) %
pryahica 2.54) 417
SRA O35 Idlia Private Limited®
Trade recervables - 0.27
payables (138
* Subusidery with effect fram 31-12-2024 2ad assocdate till 30-12-2024

TJoint Venture and other entities

Harver KPPA

Teade ceceivables - -

Advances (refer note.7) - 0.12
Aarves ATESA

Teade seceivables ' - 2.25

Advances [refer note 7} - -

pzyables - (2.12)
Aarvee Vax

Advances (zefer notwe.7) - 0.3
AGG- (NFR) Tunnet

Advanees {refer note.7) - 073
Aarvee EINTL- EL

Trade recanables 0.04 -
Rites Itd, Tadia

Recaivables 134 15,15

Aarvee Software Technoiogiers Private Limiced
payebles {0.03) 0.0
Eey manaperial personnel
E. V. Chalcapani
payebles f0.3m {0.531)
foan payable . (5.00)
K Nirmala
loan. papable . -
payables ‘ {0.29)

426
003

Y

0.y

.12

20.53
471

0.48
023

119

063,

©0.41)
(5.00)

€43

Rudusras




AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED

{formerly known a3 Aarvec Associares Architects Engincers & Consultants Private Timited)
Semmary of significant acceunting policies and cther explanatory formatdon

(All armounts in ¥ millions, except share dara and where otherwise stated)

CIN: U200 TG2005PLC 45491
38. Eamings per ghare
31 Mazch 2025 21 Match 2024
(2) Mer Proftannbutabls 1o cquity shazcholders 565.84 4220
{b) Weighted average number of Equity shares
shares as at 01 Apdl €0,00,000 40,00,000
E.fTect of Tssue of Bonus Shares on weighted average basis 3,60,00,000 360,090,000
Weiphred avesage nunbec of equity shaves 4.20,00,000 4,20,00,000
(e) EPES (in absolure ¥)
Basic 13.54 10.05
13.54 10.03

Diluted
*MNow: The EPS for all periods presented has been adjusted cetrospectively for the bonus issue of shares made on 20th March 2025, in arcordance with Tad AS 33



AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED

(formerly known as Aarvee Associates Architects Engineers & Consoltanis Private Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and gther explanalory informaiion

(A amounts in T millions, except share data and where otheraise stated)

CIN: 1j74200T G2005PLC045491

3.

i

il

vitl

ix

xi

(=14

xi

xiit

Additianal Disclosures

No procecdings have buen initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding henami property under the Benami Transactions
Prohibition) Acr, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rulkes made thercunder,

The Company docs not consider certain receivables while subwnitting the data regarding acconnts reccivable to the bank. These
reoeivables are prmarily aped more chan 180 days, Due o thiz there s a diffeeence berween the daea submiceed o 4o Dank and the boekes

of acgounts.

The Company have not been dechired wilful defaulter by any ank or financial institution o government or any government authaority.
The company has ne wansactions wich the compandes struck off under Companics Acy, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956.

The Company has complied with the pumber of layers preseribod under the Companes JAcr, 2013

The Company has not entered into any scheme of armamgement which bas an accounting impact on correat or previous financial vear,

There is no income surrendered or disclosed a5 meome during the current or previous year in the fax assessments under the Tncome Tax
Act, 1901, that has not Leen recorded in the books of acecunt.

The Company has nest ioaded or jovestesd m crypto currency o vitiual cureency during the current or previous year.

The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (ncluding rght of use assets) or intangible assets or both duzing the
CULFEnt Or Previous year.

There are no immovable propertics aot held in the name of the Company | other than propertics wheee the Company is the lessee and
the Jease agrevments ate July caeeuted in fvonr of the lessee.

There are no charpes or satisfacrion which are yer to be regdstered with the registaar oF companies beyond the statatory paried,

Purng the vear ended 31 March 20213 and st Apal 2023, no funds bave breeo advanced or loand ar invested (vither from bornowal
funds or share preminm or any other sources o kind of funds) by the Company te or o any other perron o coriry, including; foreign
eatitics (“Iotermediares™ with the understanding, whether recoeded o writiog ot otherwise, that the Intermwdiary shall lend or imvest in
party identificd by or on hehalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries).

During the vear ended 31 March 2024 and 1st April 2023, the Company has not recvived any Tund from any party (Fonding Pacty) with
the vneerstanding thai the Company shall whether, diceetly or indivectly lead or invest in other peesons o entities identified by or on
Behalf of the Company (1 timare Benetictaries™) or provide any guaranree, security or the like on behalf of the Ulimare Bencficiaries.

The balances of rade seceivabiles and trade payables are sulljeer w confirmarion, recaneliation, and consequeatial adjustments, if any.
The Manapement haz seni balance confirmagon requests o cortain pariess however, respomses have nod been recead from oll of them
as of the reporting date, The Manapement docs aor expeet sy marceial discrepancics upon reconciiatdon of receipt of confirmations.

~




AARVEE ENGINEERIMNG CONSULTANTS LIMITED
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

(AL arnaaats in T millons, exoept shase data and where otherwise sited)
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40. Segmen( information
Orperating segments ace reported 10 a mannoer consistent with the interaal reporting provided o the ehief operating decision maker. “The
(Iumpany 15 principa]ly cngﬁgud ina siﬂgk' scgment business i pf[]jett TNAZUIICTIL aml engin,ccriug ct)ﬂsult{:ﬂcy services .

The yeographic information analyses the Coanpany's revenues and non-curzent assers by the counery of domicile and other countsics, Tn
nresenting peopraphic informatinn, segment tevenuc has beon based on the locakion of the customer and segment assets aze based on
geographical location of the assets,

Revenues fram external customers attributed to the Company’s country of domicile and auwtibuted to all foreign countries
(i} fram which the Company derives revenues

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Tndia 496222 4,784.27
Chutside India 583.17 25401
5,545.39 5,068.28

(ii) Non-current assets {other than financial instromnents, tax assets and deferred tax assets) located in the Company's country of
domicile and in all foreign couniries in which the Company holds assets

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 st April 2023

India 1,269.97 1,123.19 11,1211
Olutside India 085 0.88 112
1,270.82 1,124,08 1,122.25




AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED

(formerly known as Aarvee Associates Architects Bngineers & Cousultants Private Limited;
Suminary of sipnificant aceounting policics and other cxplanatory information

OO amounts in € millions, v upr share data and wheoe inherwise r‘.talrd]

CIN: U7420TG2005PLCA43491

41, Lease disclosute
Where the Company is a lessee

'The Company has enteved into lcasing armngements for weating of office premizes. Such leasing armngements awe predominantly renewalsle at mutoal comsent,
Aceardingly, non-cancellably period 38 eestricred 1o lease period withour considering the wenewal optinn. Wherever applicable, only Tock-io petiod is considered an
lease period in case where cither party ¢an teroinate the lease by givinp prioe notce. “The Company has dected not wo apply the requirenents of [nd A8 116
"] eases” 0o shont-term leases of all asscts that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the aadetlying asset is of low value “The bease payments

assaciated with these Jeases ate reeognived as an expense on 2 straighe-line basis over the lease torm execpr infladon adjosement.

i) Set ont below are the carrving amownts of tghe of usc asscts recopadsed and the movemants during the period:
Particulars ;::;:;?2 Total
1st Apnl 2023 189.56 159.36
Additions 56.57 56.57
Deketion - -
Leprocianon exponse (62.05) {62.05)
3 Mazch 2024 183.89 183.89
Addinons el 34.63
IDcletion [4.58) (4.58)
])uprud&ﬁl m CRpense (59.83) (59.35)
31 March 2025 154.11 154,11
i.i) K¢ our belew ate the carr}‘i_ng amounts of lease liabihoes fincluded in e ]9) aad the msvemenis during ihrpcriud:
Farticulars LeaSEht?ld Totat
Properties

1st April 20525 202,22 20222
Ydditions .57 56.57
Aeccreton of mterest X608 2008
Payment 7391 (13.7hy
31 March 2024 215.77 205,77
Ydditons .62 29.62
‘eoretion of nrerest 18.59 18,59
Payement (73001 (73.00)
31 Murch 2025 160.97 186.97
Pardculars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 18t April 2023
Laase paymears

Mot later than ame year 57.28 70.14 73.71

Later than vae vear aid not karce thian five vears 108 3% 158.72 21419

Later thau five venrs 15.36 3157 4623

Less: Fuure Ainance expense Qo {51.06) 131.91
Total 180.97 205,77 202.22
Amount recognised in statcment of profit and loss account 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Diepreeiarions on right of wwe assees 59.83 62405
Interest on kease habilites 18.50 2GS
1:xpensus r;,-]:a,tiug to short rerm leases and 1ow valoue asscts 26.71 31.53
Amount recogriged in statement of caghflow 3 March 2025 38 March 2024
Toral cash vurflow for Jeases - principal 7300 7371
‘Fratal cash ourflom for luases - Interest 1859 268 ™
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AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED
(formesly kagwen ag Aarvge Agpgcintes Architocty Enpimenry f Congulipnly Private Limiied])
Summasy of significam scoouating policees aod other explazatory infooostion

Al ereownes 10 & mallen< escepr shave daca and whese erhorese s

CIN: UH200T G2005P L5491
43.  Finavrial sk manapgement
The Companys bodsries s dchvihes are copoord Yo d vaocty of Arantial tehs, siewcly bopdty fsk, Marker azks and eredie mib The ©ompiag’s s eardgemeal ks e overall sovponsdniity § 0 cobablshing amd g ermrge the

Company's nsk manapemenr rramework Thi Compams's nsk managemen actneny fcuses onwerrely seeunngs e Compans's oo o mednom remme cash floss b manmsing de expomane o wolanle fnanaial matkerss The
Pimmpany’s wek manapement policwe an eurablichod oe dennfy amd amaliec iy neks faced by i tompany, neosen and moomos appropaase nsk bmee ond comemls, peesdicalls res o whe chmges n marier Gomdmons and ceficer the
banges 10 the prdacy g rdematy

The Company diics neat ackely crpape i the teading nf fnancsal auets for specalstive pomoscs oo dhes (£ wike ipbeons. The mist squificant finsmos) naks o which the Compiny 5 oxpeoed ane descnbed below

(&)  Crodit risk
{oedhit mrk 1x e nsks Bt 3 counterparty fails o discbacgg mm eblygation to the (ompang, sesulong m a Bl ks The {omgany i edpreed bo e ol fow v feanesa) memiments e Compam s maxamuam soposae o coedc
Ak w8 Tiosted 0 the carmying, amount it Enancial assets cecogmsed, 15 summansed belivr
S— Fandculae 3 March 2025 31 March 2024 Let A peil 2023
Fiagoglal mers - Mem-cnrgac
Inuesmentes 2T Ry ooz L1
141205 7732 4845 556
1 et Bananasl a9 EALE ] 388 74 a7l H
Finanein] asaess - Curient
Trade cecewaliles - 1656 52 135443 1,375 7%
s and casle coun dhents 3363 1m 3 17313
lomns ) i 15 1001
thes Branaal aesets Bol 45 37375 310674
3.071.23 2.332.28 2.24647
Financial liabilitics = Noa=cu st
Ll ey me 10018 2500
1oea s Wehulines 12368 135 46% 134 51
Financiol ligbilities - Cuesem
Tl v 402 13 166 6% 28n KT
1 it Tuatkties 52 20 EINES FRTL
Trade pavable & 20675 33041 L24 87
4 aher Bananwol leabeliics 412102 ARG L1 blb 172
Total iluancial Hahilites 1,338 & 1,09, 12 _'xﬂ“,f_
The (ompany’s cash and vash «quislents and s ther bank balznes are beld in reputed hanks, whwh mansgement hoicves are af high eredit gquality, i bence no smpaimncent slhosance has been recogoacd. 13hes o ncucoent financ st
st gl compesaes of the remal deposars and fued deposirs, which the mamgemens believes are of lugh credn quahny and heece no impamen alless ance las beon reorpmecd. € 1ther finencial awsers wiuch e compies of
see depears o anballed evcenne are absi moneeed oiean g omg b ses and che Compame's enpsane i bud dehes s e sprfianr | e o mmpanmene Jlsane s oeagmesed on these fineicsl assens
Wuh sespect o Lrade xeccn ables, the Company has construtod rhe erms oo oewies: she receieables on ponndic hans and s rake mecessacy mwpatiins, wlerewes cequired. The Company vreaves allvmance foc weccwsed secovaddgs
bamad oy ustorng al goy it foms cxpeasenn s gond o acdpesrod boe boe e el cthemghes The allim oge of veade noegnoalslo s sl s the g oF the pecgetie ok e chac
Trerrments o zorpios funds doe made oabe an Tuphly macherl e lygued fond snsemmoms wirh aopi pouee MATLAKE: 11 RN e Lk oeueR on nserumones s bile corurog sartoow yodsne eemecn o abibnes The Company
mesey ol m oo sopanties wath b Qi ek,
D) Morkel sl Forrigo cacbhnnge nivk

Thetampam’s losesan aurmoss brasaeions g omadiple coro s onss g nrbe, Wie fompany s capersd 30 tee medk e she eacheege sass of the o Repecs 1 relaneg e sunh curpens os ange whangs moz enenner b
hus 2 narenal effect cn the cepented s duer ob the Cogmpany s sxccr el haliboes wlue b ae densmunoiod m INIE

Torerggn curreni ¢ dememnared ol assers and bBabdine: nankc dgods wlech eapose iwe Compam e cursenwy nshowre deaclnsed belim

J1 March 2035 31 March 2024 Let April 2023
A moum [n foreign Amoontla  Ameunt in forelen Amomat in INR Amonne in foreden Amount s
TRreency 1ME TUIeRLY CHITERTy
Recafvables
Yanesms baBWIT Y20z 13037 13R43 A4 1525H ER! ]
Jrheopan ha INIL 4019 I8 NF Y il iz 1457
ey a v TNR ] 8t ok iRy ZR16 A 132
Mireqmincgae pr %R A3k Tk theh Lk ([t} e
Wisakhsran eI~k RUTS 18 4 a5 88 [[1EK] EER} LEA
Payables
Fanruus 1o IR 141055%; LR 155 iz, W0 51 e,
Urhegug b INR 132 LRt 1L L 2 Y
Rermate ISR ™ 4Y Y, 1935 &0 3049 THAT
b ramibngue 1) IR 144 L9, o I ol T oEY
Racaldn-rin e B 0 oy L L] 56T 120 ARy
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Jiscs Tie Lampany manages e g, rosds by noombomeg, s nfioss and oestlors e o 420 -0y busines: The dara used ke anslng dhese caeh ose s cimsssat with that wced mthe sooma i mstonh, sy brkow
Lagundiny mecds are mmprm el i3 ans bme ands, waaalh on i menth o monds s Ameshon ceem suplus cash gnvmted s and abenc the smemen rqaid e wodang copial management and other peracn:
wyuimenty w erned ax cash and Colh egu aleme o the carene regamedi and ang exoess 3 el i nierest b oom dhresr il e gl macdetahle e bments, such 22 munal fundt, sath appengnate manueics 1
Dtk e Cxth et orcuis Lsements whal casunems sod ot boguadins roome it hablies

apprlueale ) 23 summansacd b

Soatr 30 March 200 she Conpane aonedoasarve fingn al lublities have comiragrsl sutoanes pochedng siree st paymost. wh
Naturities of fimanciul Kabsliles

31 Wanch 2025 Loss dban Dyear  1ycanto 5 yeis hote thon § years Toaal

fhorpwngs Xon dlucoen TArA 477 TTH2
Sz e habsdine s Sen Csgrom amd cureem sTI8 T F RN 1R
Bortownings Curmens 461 ™4 el 1
Lrade pasalde Hzs2 an2
¢ rebw e Bnamcl 3l Jabnfiees 38 11 4811
Tatl 1,249.55 181,38 20.13 1,45146
31 Mauch 2024 Lessthanlyean  Ryear o 5 years Marc thad 5 yean 'Fetal
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AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED

(forracrly known as Aarvce Associates Architects Enginecrs & Consultants Private Limited)

Summapry of gignificany accounring policies and ather explangtary information
{ Al amonnrs in € millinns, exeept share data and where otbensise stated)

CIN: U200 G205 P L5491
45, Fair value measurcments

A Financial instruments by category

The carrying value and Faie value of finaacial instraments by categgories as a8 31 March 2025 were as Followa:

Particulars Amortised cost Financial essets/ EFinancial assets/ Carrying value
liabilities at FY'TPL liakilides at FVTOCI
Financial assets - Noo-corrent
Investments 13783 - - 127.8%
Loans 77.32 - - 77.32
b financial agaets 443.20 - - 4320
Financial assets - Curreny - -
Trade receivables 1,656.52 - 1,656.52
Cash and cash cquvalents 5365 - - 5365
l.oans 31.27 - 51,27
tlie foancial avscts 601,45 - - 061,45
T otal fimancial agscrs 30023 - - 3.071.23
Financial liabilides - Non-current
Buororwings JIR2 FIEH i
Leasc liallitics 12169 - - 122,49
Fimancial Hakilidcs - Corrent - -
Bnr:mvmgj A61.04 - 461,04
Leage liabilities 57.24 R7.3K
Trade payables 200,75 - - 2.5
(ther Graancial liabilitics $12.02 - 412,02
Total financial liabilites 1,338.60 - - 1,538,560
‘The caerving value and fadr value of Boangal instramems by categodes as ac 38 Maech 2024 were as follows:
Pardevkars Amordsed cosr  Financial assers/ Financial assets/ Cartying value
liabilities at FY'TPL liabilites ar FYTOCI
Financia! agsets - Non-current
Iavpstmens [N (] .02
Lsvana 4840 - 45 41
{Ither fnuneial asseis WK 7R - R T
Financial assets - Current - - -
Trade recervablus 135143 1,354.43
(lash and cash cyuivalents 11,71 10871
Tasans 05,15 - 68,15
Other financial asscts 37375 37378
Total financial assets 2,332.28 - - 2,338
Financial liabilivies - Non-current
Bospronatngs 126,148 - 126480
L aag lahibinge 135 3 - 13803
Financial liabilivies - Carrent -
Horrowings 38 08 - 1K U5
Toease Babihnes T34 T4
Teade pavables 1AML41 130,47
Other financial lizinlines 459.11 HA0.11
Tuotal financial liabilities 1,191.12 - - 1,101,12




AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED
(formerly known as Aarvee Associates Architecis Engineers & Conzultanrs Privare Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

All amaunts in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stased)
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The Enm‘ing valoe and Fagr vahie of fnancial inatruments by eategones as at st April 20238 weee ag follows:
Particulars Amaostised cost Financial assets/ Fmancial asses/ Casrving value
liabilities at FYTPL liabilities at FVTOQCI

Hinancial assets - Mon-current

Tnvesiments 0z - [SR1)
Lians 5.50 - 556
Onther finanetal assen 37138 B - 571,28
Financial assets - Current -

Trade weeivables 137876 - 1,375.76
©ash and cash eyuivalents 17313 - - 17313
Loans 10411 - 1
¢ her financial assc1s 3170 : 31071
Total financial assers 2,2465.47 - - 2,246.47

Financial liabilities - Non-cutrent

Boroorwings 17580 - 175,80
Luase habilives 12851 128.51
Financial liabilities - Current - _
Roerowings 6407 - 0T
Lease linbileties 7371 =57
T'rade pavables 12487 - 12447
Other Enancial labilites 610,12 - 61612
Toral financial liabilicies 1,483.08 - - 1,483.0%
Note

linaneiad assets and Habilitics include cash and cash vquivalents, other bank balanevs, emplover and ather advances, eligble current and neo-cureent assees, wade pagaldes, and
cligrible carmenr habilites and non-cornent babilities. The Bir value of eash and caslh equivalents, other bank baiances, trady pa}-ab]-;,, other current financial assets and liabilines
approximate thelr carmving amount laggely dus e the short-term nature of these instrumends,

Tnvestueot 1o eyuity shaes of subsidiary s measered al cost as per bad VS 27, “Separare fnaneinl siaemenes” and aceordingdy are not tegoised o be disehosed here.

The rir vahee oof the fnancial assets and labilities 15 included at the amuat at which the instoument coald be exchangd ia a cureent transaction benecgen wilbhog partics, othee
than in a Foveed or ligudinon sale.

B Fairvalue of financial assets and habilitics measured at amortised cost
The management assessed that For amostised cost mstruments, Faie s aloe sppeoximazes larpely ro the carrying amount.

C Fair value hierarchy
Frnancal assers and financial lubilites measured a Gar valoe in che statermene of fGoaaocial position ane groopeed inter three levels el a faie valog hiceaechy, " theee Loveds ase
dedined basedd on rhe abaervabiliny of dgnibeant mputs oo the measuremett, a3 follows:
Level 15 Quored prices funadjusnd) in acive mackers fur financial iosmrmens,
Leved 20 The fair value of Gnancial insouments that are nor maded inan acove marker is derermined wsinge vahuaion wehmgues which masimise the wee of obscevable markol
daca reky as larde as possible on camty specific citimates. i§ syuficant inputs wquired to fair value an instemend are sbsercalrle, the metrement 15 included 1 Level 2

Tovel 3: 00 oae o moee of the sigmficant jopues s not based on obycereably markey daca, the mstument s meluded in lovel 5,

‘Fhere have been no teansfers beeween Level 1, Level 2 and Leved 3 dunings 1l year
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(formely known as Aarvee Associates Architerts Engineers & Consultants Privare Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatary information

L4 amounts ia T millions, execpr share data and wheee otherwise stated)

CIN: U742 TG2005PLC5451

46,
L

IL

First tige adoption of lod AS

"The geandaline financud statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024 arc the ficst fnancial statements that the Company bas prepared in sccoxdance wath Ind A8, For all
pcionds ap to and including the year ended Alarch 31, 2025 the Coropam prepsoed itz finanoal statememas inaccordaney wirl the accountmy satwlards aotifaed undee
section 133 of the Companics Act. 2013 read wygether wath pamgraph 7 of the Companies {(Accounn) Rubes, 2014 ("Previous GAAP'Y used for its statutory reporting
mguiecnent in Indin iramediately before applying Ind AS a8 mentioned above,

The Company has adopred Indian Aceounting Sandseds (Ind AS) a8 nonficd by the Ministy of Corporate Affues with offect from Apol 1. 203 wath a tanstion daw OF
Apal 1. 2023, Accordingly, the sandzlune foanerl stemems for the year onded Barch 31, 2025 a5 will 15 the comparatve penod vaded March M, 2024 and the opening
Balance Sheet as at pal 1, 2028 have been preparcd a8 per the guidance praseribed i [INIY AS 101, Jast-time tdnpton of Indian Accounting Standaeds.

Thir pote explains the pancpal adiosiments made by the Company io eestaring ies Pecvions GAADR standalone Gaancial statements. including the balance shevk 1s ar April 1,
2023 ard the fnancal waremcents a3 ar and e the year ended Macck 31, 2024, Excmptions avaded on fust Bme adoption of Iod A% W01 Ind AS 101 allows fiescime
adoprers ecctin exeomptions fzotn the strospuctive application of certain requirements under Ind A8, he Compans has applied the Bellowing exempriona:

{a) Property, plant and equipment and inlangiblec asseis

The Campany has elected w0 contioue wil the earrng vahue for all of e properrs, plant and couipmeat and inangible 2ssct as recaprised inits [ skandalome fimanciak
staements a8 deeoned cograr the emnsivon dare,

(b} Estirnates

The cstimates ac Apel 1, 2023 and ar Mareh 31, 2024 arc consistent with these made for the same dates in acoordance with lodian G AAF. The csumaes vl by the
{lompany  preseat these anouats i aceondance with Ind AR wflect conditicns ot Aprl 1, 2023, e date of teansinon o Ind AR and an of hlarch 31,2024,

{c} Clussificetion and measurement of finaneial assceta
The {'ompanr has chssificd and mensured the Baaneinl assets on the basis of the facts and circumstances 1hat exist at the date of teznsition w Ind S,

(d) Defined benefit linbilines

Under Jod ¥, remeasuemunts compessiog o actuanal g and Isscs excluding amounts incuded in netinieseston the oer defined beaefn Babiling and the tetuen on plan
assete fexchudiog amounts inchuded inooetineerest on the net defined beacts lakiling), are secogaised immediaely in the balanes sheet with a corresponding debit or aedit m
remioed easningy cheomgk G0 an the period in which they oceue. Under previeus GAAP the Company s oot accrued defined beoefit liabiitics, however 1o the Ind A8
these kabilitivs were accounted from the date of transition,

(e) Deferced 1axes

Dfueree tax sdjustment inchudes b impact on aceeunt af Biffviences between Ind-AS and previows GAAP.
(I} Other comprehensive incame

Undue Tadian € 4AP, the Campany s oot proscated other compechensive mevme (O sepacaieh . Hence, it bas ceeonailed Todian GAM? peofin or loss ws profit or koss
as per Ind AR, Further, Indian G4 A protit or loss i seconciled o wital comprehensive inoame ay per [nd A%

(g} Classification and measuremcnt of Goancial asscs and abilities

Id A8 100 repuires an entity e assess Sassificanian of Anancial assets o the bosis of facts and cireumsrances vasting as on the dare of ransioen, Murther, the standand
peomit measurement of Brancial asses accounaed ar ameornsed cesr baged ou face and cweumatanecs existing at the date of transition i cetrospective applicaton s
impracueable, ccoedingly, the Company hag determined the classification of Anancial assets based vn facis and ciceumstances that exist oo e dae of ezssition,
M casucenaent of the financial assets accounied at amortised cost has been done cerespuetvely exeept wheee the snony is mapracricable.

Reconcilialion between previous GAAFP and Ind AS

Reconcillation of other equity

Paroculars Amonunt
Swundalonckalance as at 31 March 2023 (as pet previous GAAT) 202234
Adjustments:

Provisson fur Giramsty (196.94)
Impaer of RO puser recapnioen ae part of Ind Ab 192
Preovision Tor Depreciaton (11.23)
Incecise on account of capensc (56,30
Provision for expeeted ceedit loss- other assets (2221%
Provision for expested ceedit loss rade receivables (M7
Defereed tax impact oa above adjusinents 170,05
Closing Balanee at as at 1at April 2023 1,380,723
Add: Profit as per as per previous GAAP HIAR
Adjustents:

Poonsteon for Ciraey {25.(H)
Imyxact of RO asset recogontion s pact «f Ind 48 1077
Increas: en acevonn of cspense 10.53)
Froassion forexpociod credit s ather assee 1862
Provision for Depresition (7.7
Deberrend 1ax impace onoabeove 2 djosrents 1473

Closing Balence at as at 31 March 2024 1L,500.04




AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED

(formerly known as Aarvee Associates Architcets Engincers & Consuleants Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and oiher explanatory information
(Al aments io T millions, except share data and where otherwise smicd)
CIN: U74200TG2H05PLCD45491

h. Reconciliavien of other comprehensive income

Particutars Aragunt
Balance ag at 31 March 2025 (as per previous GAAP) -
Adiustments:

Reclassifoation af actunnal (oss on employee benefu oo oiher compechensive ineame 7495
[3efiered tax impact om above zdjusuments (7.7%)
Closing Balance as ar 197 April 2023 21.66
Adjusiments:

Reclissificamm of wctuarial luss 4+ emplogee benefit i other compreheasive inenme 18.1
I ferrel tax mpact on above adjustments {4.56)
Cloging Balance as ar 31 March 2024 35.21

¢ Reconciliation of the assets and Kabilitier: presented in the balanee sheet prepared as per Previous GAAP und as per Ind AS as ar 13e April 2023 i3 as Follows:

Frevious

CAAP Classifications Adjustments Ind AS
MNon Cucrent assets
Property and cqupocot 39827 (26007) 1138 AT
Inrangble assees - 36407 2607
- 18930 180,348
Figancial asscts
Llavesments 0083 - - oz
Tawmns h.5h 5.56
{iber Ananoal aasers 389 44) (181 37124
Delermal ran assets net) [t - 16876 14923
Uther non-current assets 34616 153,44 (213,94 295.60
74491 54847 124.66 1,418.04
Current assets
Lonancaal assets
Trade reccivables 138204 200, (3[1{!.11) 127576
¢Cah anud eash cquavalents 3215 (355.07) 173,13
Laonns 10,40 i
Other financial ossets . 3050 - 30T
Unbicr cearvent wscts 1,088, 43 (SU8.31) - WLi2
3,003.23 (737,32 {306.17) 1,959.73
Total assets 3,748.14 (188.85) (131.51) 3,377.77
Equity and Hahiliries
[oqusty oo - AL
Orher cquity 3,378 1259 614.35) 1116416
Liabilivics
MNaon-corrent Eahbilitiey
Vunnacal labdines
Borrowmg 240,40 65,01 17580
Lease habihties - - 128.51 13K.51
Prowisiong - - 134,92 13492
2,325.56 (67.54) (350,97, 1,905,29
Curtent iabilities
Finanes] hinfnliggs
Borrowingn 201K [ERL 164117
Lease habafites 7371 I B |
Teade pvables due reo
Acror and small CREPFECS - E 51500 51,51
Other thao micro and small enterprises 11564 iy 1114 17487
Others Tnancial lab s 0612 - a16.12
Cher earreng liabiinies G547 2007 183,72
I istem s 35094 [331.54) 3316 58,50
142458 (i2i.a1) 159.11 1,472.4%
Total equity and lizbilities 37454 (186.85) {181.51) 337771
=

Qv




AARVEE ENGINEERTNG CONSULTANTS LIMITED
{formacrly known as Aarvee Assaciates Architects Enpineers & Consultants Private Limaited)
Summnary of significant accouming policies and ciler explanatory information
(Al amaunts 10 € milkiins, excopt shane data and where atherwisce stated)
CIM: UM200TG2003PLC045401
d. Reconeiliation of the assets and Gabilities presented in the balance sheet prepared as per Previous GAAF and 25 per Ind AS as at 31 March 2024 is 28 follows:

Pa"‘:;’ Classifications  Adjstents Ind AS
MNon Current assets
Praperty and cquipment 454560 [G1LRT) (L 37357
lncangbbe gssees 2027 - 2627
Right-m0-uae assct 18380 15380
Ismancial asscts
Investmeres 1he2 - 0z
[ams - 4849 - 4840
Other financial assets - 41855 (2WHT) 38874
Delerred pax assete (e} 200 17895 181.85
{ Mher non-cureent 255018 427 51k 57 04} (1883 1RE.G
£54.97 373.46 133.07 1,491.51
Current assers
Tinaoncial assuts
T'eade veecivables 145210 20650 (30617 1,354.42
ash and casls cgquivalents 6. H) (304 A4 - 101.71
Tarany 05315 - 65.15
Chihet financial asseis - ITATS 3775
€ Mler current assets 400 {"ﬁll,ﬁl} \2,(3 fn) kT3
5812.50 0791 308,30 2095.77
Total aszcts 369748 134.45) (175.76) 1457.27
Equity and habilities
Liyuity 6N 600
Ulther equiy 240579 (2.1%) {n21.53) 142,12
Liabilities
Non-current liahilities
Financial linbilitics
Boromvings 149,53 6206 126 .88
Liase liabibitics 135.63 135,63
Frowisinms - 14157 141 57
L,71532 G 34,54 2,306.50
Currenc liabilities
[“inateal habtfides
Boroow oy PRKIH 14195 338,05
laasy labdditics T4 0.4
Teade payables due
Miere and smoll erirerprises 5916 59,16
Orther than micoer and semall enterposcs 11048 14401 5.04 131041
Others Bnavcal balahtes 459,11 ELCA N
Cithee ourrent Liabihres 42357 20508 12847
Prosvesnions 15456 ATTAM) 333 G443
98214 3054 168.59 1,151.08
Taotal equity and Liabilities 3,697.48 (3445) (175.7%) 3 A28

. Notes 1o first dme adoption
laplanagon of major impact om adapten oo [ AR e the reported finaocial featesoears af the Company as on il dase of eransson is a5 unders

-

- Btasement of equiry
The mansitom from Indias GAAP b Ind A8 had ne mateds! impact on dhe fotal equiey os per Tnd A8 aod Toial shareboklee funds as per Indina G AAE,

ii, Statement of total comprehensive 1ncome
The mansitiom from Indian GAA w0 1sd A8 had no ouaenal impact on the seement of ol comprehensive income 25 per Ind A4S and Sratemena of pradic and Joss 58 pee
Tndian L2 AAP .y
. Staternent of cash flows
Thy maosition fom [ndizn GLALE w0 Ind AN had g mobeaal impact on the starenent af eosh floms, il

i

“‘_':L:P 1] -"h




AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITEL

(forme

rly known as Aarvee Associales Architects Engineers & Consultants Privare Limired)

Summany of significant accounting policies and other explanawary information
Al agveunes da T mithons, cacept shace data and wheee otherwise statol)
CIN: U742007 G2005PLC045421

47. Revenue from conrtraets with customers
Stguificant changes in eontezet asset and contmacr Hability during the period are as follows:
Imd A8 119 alsn tequites dischmure vof “revenue reoognised dn the repotting potiod that was included da the eenreace Liabiliey balanee at the beginning oF the pested” and
revenue secognised in the reporiog pedid from pedfimmancy Gbligativas satisfied (or pactislly satisficd] in previcus pecods, Same has been disglosed as below
Trade reecivables, contract asseis and eontract liabilities
“Tradde roccivables are reaopdid when the dght o consideragon becimes uneonditional, Tede receivables are non-invteest buadng,
{ onteaet e relate 1o the eevenoe whene the Compang® tghts 40 considomtion e work complesed Dut net Billed at the epowting Jare. The conteact assers arc
teanalereed res teade yegeivables when she rights beoome uneomlitional
Crmuract assets are presented under Other finaneial asseee {Cuerent) o the Nee 14, of the stndaline financrad staremcor,
Conteace liabilines sedate o the company's oblgnbivn #a transfer goods o sercices (o costoaner for which the proup has inveodeed the costomer o seacived advanees
froom the customer For rendesing of seeviees. Conteaen liabilines are secopmired as rovemwe as the growr performs under the ormitrast.
Agsets and liabilities related to contracts with customers
31 March 2025 31 Macch 2024 1st Apuil 2023
Coneract Balances
Trade reesivables 1,006,532 1,354.43 1,375.76
L636.52 135443 1,375.76
Conimact liabilitice atthe beginning afthe year - -
Add: Revere 10 be recosmized Fooms perfosmanee obligations to be satisfied {n suceceding rears - - =
Less: Revunue cecoggived that seas inchuded 1 contract liabilin ar she beginsiog of the vear = =
Contract liahilities at the end of the year - . -
Contract Assets atthe beginning of the year 29%.14 2612t 2814
1285 Conrract assem invoioed during the vear (290.14) 26121 (2B0.34)
Mel: Saasfind purfommance obligations ot nvedecd 1176 ZUN1L 261.21
Coniract asscts at the cnd of the year 6i1.76 299.14 24121
Recanciling the amount of revenus recognised in the stakeoientt of profie and loss with the contracted price
31 March 2025 Sl bfacch 2024 Lst April 2023
Revenug as port @o0lact 5,545,549 506828 4,3 150.84
Audjusomenes - - -
HKevenue from comtract swith cuarmien 5,515,359 5,008.28 4,318.84
48, The Mindery of Gorporate YEFairs (NG A) hat preseribed a new reguiseenenr fer companies vadee the prowise w Rube 3(1) of the Companes {Acerunus) Rules, 2014
mucreedt by the Companics (ecounts) dmendmant Rules 2021 reguinng compaics, which uses aecomating sofrsare for mainmining i boeks of aecount, shall use
snly sl agroonang sofrware which bas o feature of woordiog aedit traik of cack and eveey transaction, ersating an odir Tng of cach change made in the books of
accomd dlong wath the date wheo such ebanges woere made and cosnng: thac the avdic o cannor be disabled.
The Csmpany bas uacd an seouating softwarcs “lallsPoame Ladit Log 21" G cuintaining s baoks of account which has a kearase of eeconding aadit mall (sditlog)
Facthity and the aam bave operared wirh cfiver from 2E415-2024 for all eebevant cansaciions recosded 1o the resprcine s oftnaocs
49,  Subscquent events
There are fus wljussing o signidicant nen adjusting events which have cosureed Terweem 31 March 2028 and the daue o authorisiton of these Graodid stucmunts.
As perour cepeert of cven Jated artached
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED

(formeriy known as Aarvee Associates Architects Engineers & Consultants Private Limited)
Report on the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AARVEE
ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED (formerly known as Aarvee Associates
Architects Engineers & Consultants Private Limited) (the “Parent”) and its
subsidiaries, (the Parent and its subsidiaries together referred to as the
“"Group”) which includes joint ventures of Group accounted on proporticnate
basis and Group’s share of Profit and loss in its associates and joint ventures,
which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the
Consclidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, and based on the consideration of reports of the
other auditors on separate financial statemenits of foreign branches,
Subsidiaries, associates and Joint ventures, referred to in the ‘Other Matters’
section below, the aforesaid consclidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind
AS”} and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its associates and joint ventures
as at March 31, 2025, and their consolidated profit, their consolidated total
comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and their consolidated
changes in equity for the year ended cn that date.

Basis for Opinioh

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance
with the Standards on Auditing ("SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
“Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our rcport. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under th
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfill
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our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us
and the audit evidence obtained by other auditors in terms of their reports
referred to in the ‘Other Matters’ section below is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial

statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in cur audit of the Consclidated Financial Statements of
the current pericd. These matters werc addressed in the context of cur audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters

to be communicated in our report.

S Key Audit Matter Auditor’'s Response

no.

1. | Accuracy of recognition, Our audit approach consisted testing of the
measurement, presentation and design and operating effectiveness of the |

disclosures of revenues and other
related balances in respect of Ind AS
115 “"Revenue from Contracts with

Customers” (revenue accounting
standard).
The  application of the revenue

accounting standard invoives certain key
judgements relating to identification of
distinct performance obligations,
determination of transaction price of the
identified performance obligaticns, the
appropriateness of the basis used to
measLlre revenue recognized at a point in
time or over time. Additionally, revenue
accounting standard contains disclosures
which involves collation of information in
respect of disaggregated revenuc and
periods over which the remaining
performance obligations will be satisfied
subsequent to the balance sheet date.
Refer clause V of note 2 and note 48
to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

internal controls and substantive testing as
follows:

Evaluated the design of internal
controls relating to implementation of
the revenue accounting standard.

Selected a sample of contracts, and |

tested the operating effectiveness of

the internal contrel, relating to
identification of the distinct
performance obligations and
determination of transaction price. We
carried out a combination of
procedures involving enquiry and
observation and inspection  of

evidence in respect of operation of |

these controls.

Selected a sample of contracts and

performed the following procedures:

a. Read, analysed and identified the
distinct performance obligations in
these contracts

b. Compared these performance
obligations with that identified and
recorded by the Company.

¢, Considered the terms
contracts to  determine
transaction price includi
variable consideration to

of the
the
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transaction price used to compute
revenue and to test the basis of
estimation of the variable
consideration.

. Performed analytical procedures

for reasonableness of revenues
disclosed by type and service

offerings.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report
Thereon

The Parent’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the other information. The cther information comprises the
information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's
Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report,
Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but dces not include
the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the consolidate financial statements does not caver the other
informaticn and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information compare with the financial
statements of the subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates audited by the
other auditors, to the extent it relates to these entities and, in doing so, Place
rcliance on the work of the other auditors and consider whether the other
information is materially Inconsistent with the censolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Other Information so far as it
relates to the subsidiaries, joint ventures and asscciates, is traced from their
financial statements audited by the other auditors.

if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance
for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act
that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position,
consalidated financial performance including other comprehensive income,
consolidated cash flows and consclidated changes in equity of the Group
including its Associates and joint ventures in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act,
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The respective Management and Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group and of its associates and joint ventures are respensible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safequarding the assets of the Group and its
associates and its joint ventures and for preventing and detecting frauds and
cther irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policles; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have
been used for the purpose of preparation of the consclidated financial
statements by the Directors of the Parent, as aforesaid .

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective
management and Board of directors of the companies included in the group
and of its associates and Joint ventures are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability te continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to geing concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to
cease aperations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Management and Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group and of its associates and joint ventures are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its associates
and jeint ventures of each Company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consalidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are tc obtain reascnable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and te issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but it is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the ecanomic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for;.;:
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resultingor—
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from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, fargery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
Under section 143(3){i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Parent has
adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements in place and the opcrating effectiveness of such
controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness aof accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by management and beard of directors.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its
associates and joint ventures tc continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consclidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of cur auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group and its associates and joint ventures
to cease to continue as a going congcern.

« FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consclidated financial statements, Including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
statement of the entities or business activities within the Group and its
associates and joint ventures to express an opinien on the consolidated
financial statements. We are respansible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities
or business activities included in the consolidated financial statements
of which we are the independent auditers. For the other entities or
business activities included in the consolidated financial statements,
which have been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors
remain rasponsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audits carried out hy them. We remain solely respensible for our audit
cpinion.
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consclidated financial |
statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the ‘
economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated

financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality |
and gualitative factors in (i) ptanning the scope of cur audit work and in
evaluating the resulis of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the consaolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent and such
other entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we
are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal financial controls that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them alt relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
Ceonsolidated Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in cur report because the adverse consequences of doing sc
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of Such
communication.

Other Matters

a) The Consolidated Financial Statemenls includes total assets of 227.96
Millions as at March 31, 2025 and total revenue of 256.49 Millions and
net profit after tax of 56.08 Millions for the year ended March 31, 2025,
in respect of Five (5) foreign branches, whose financial statements have
not been audited by us. These financial statements have been audited
by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the
management and our opinion on the Consclidated Financial Statements,
in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect
of these foreign branches, are based solely an the reparts of such branch
auditors.

b) The Ceonsolidated Financial Statements includes total assets of 88.23
Millions as at March 31, 2025 and total revenue of 123.97 Millions and
net Loss of 53.40 Millions for the year ended March 31, 2025, in respect
of Two (2) foreign subsidiaries, whose financial statements have not
been audited by us. These financial statements have been audited

RILAS

Y
HED:
" gntants/ «




(7}\ PRDatla&Co E: info@prdatla.com D Hub, Flot No. 1335, Road No, 45,
1HD 1A

Chartered Accountants P : 040-2340 893 Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad, Telangana 500033

other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the parent’s
management and our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements,
in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect
of these subsidiaries, are based solely on the reports of other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the
consideration of the reports of the other auditors on the separate
financial information of the subsidiaries and fereign branches referred
to in the “Other Matters” section above we report, to the extent
applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations
which to the best of gur knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements.

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating
to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements
have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and the reports of the other auditors.

¢) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the consclidated financial statements,

d} In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements
comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133
of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the
directors of the Parent and Indian subsidiary companies as on 01
April, 2025 taken on record by the Management and Board of
Directors, none of the directors of the Group companies, are
disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements of the Group, Its
associate companies and joint ventures and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report |

0:\1 _;4
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(B)

*Annexure A” which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Parent,
subsidiary companies, associatc companies and joint venture
companies incorporated in India. Our report oxpresses an
unmodified opinicn on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of those companies.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report
in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of cur information and
according to the explanations given to us:

. The consolidated financial statemeants disclose the impact of pending
litigations on the consolidated financiai pasition of the Group, except
thase disclosed in financial statements;

The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeabie |losses;

The provisions of the Investor Education and Protection Fund are not
applicable tc the Company.

{(a) The Management of the parent company has represented that,
to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium cr any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign
entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whethear, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b} The Management of the parent company has represented, that,
to the best of its knowledge and belief, nc funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
received by the Company from any person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the unrderstanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimale Beneficiaries”) or
provide any quaranitee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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(¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has
come to our notice that has caused us to belleve that the
representations under sub-clause (i} and (ii) of Rule 11{e), as
provided under (a) and {b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

v. Based on our examination which included test checks, the parent and
Indian subsidiary company has used an accounting softwares
‘TallyPrime Edit Log 2.1 for maintaining its books of account which
has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log) facility and the same
have operated with effect from 21-05-2024 for the Holding
Companies all relevant transactions recorded in the respective
softwares. Subsequently, the same has been implemented in cther
Indian subsidiaries. Further, during the course of our audit we did not
come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.
Further, the audit trail has been preserved by the parent and Indian
subsidiary companies are as per the statutory requirements for record
retentian.

Further, for the period under review, the management of the parent
company has represented, that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief, that they did not come across any instance of the fraud or
material misstatements, where audit trail {edit log)} facility was not
enabled and operated for the period from 01-04-2024 to 20-05-2024
for the respective accounting software.

{C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under
Section 197(16):

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report
in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as
amended, in our opinion and tc the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and based on the auditor's
reports of subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint venture
companies incorporated in India, the remuneration paid by the Parent
and such subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint venture
companies to their respective directors during the year is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V of
the Act and the rules thereunder.

2. With respect to the matters specified in clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 and
paragraph 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Repart) Order, 2020 ("CARQ"/
“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section
143(11) of the Act, according to the information and explanations given
to us, and hased on the CARQO reports issued by us, we report that ther
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are no qualificaticns cor adverse remarks in the CARQ repeorts of the
companies included in the consolidated financial statements except for
the following.

S | Name of the entity CIN Holding Clause number
no Company/ of the CARD
Subsidiary/ report which is
v/ Associate | unfavourable

ar qualified or

adverse
1. | Aarvee Engineering | U74200TGZ005PLCO45491 | Parent Clause il (e)
Consultants Limited Company and {xx}

For P.R. Datla and Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s ReEistration No.: 0060675

V.L. Narasimha Rao
Partner
Membership No: 214251

UDIN: 2 S\ 1y R TE TORRLS

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 26-07-2025
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ANNEXURE “A"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reqguirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
of AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED (formerly known as Aarvee
Associates Architects Engineers & Consultants Private Limited) (“the
Company”) (hereinafter referred to as "Parent”) and its subsidiary companies
as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent and its subsidiary
companieswhich are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements based on the internal centrol with reference
to consolidated financial statements criteria established by the respective
Companies censidering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“"ICAI"}.
These responsibilities Incivude the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is tg express an ¢opinign on the internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Parent and its
subsidiary companies incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted
cur audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing
("SA"), prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls with reference Lo consclidated financial
statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabhl
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assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference
te consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if
such controls aperated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal
financial controls with reference to consalidated financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial contrels with reference to
consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’'s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We belijeve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate tc provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Parent and
its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial
statements is a process designed to pravide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference to
consolidated financial statements includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accerdance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
Management and directors of the company; and (3) provide recasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Repaorting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference
te consolidated financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or
improper Management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, prcjections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidategZ,
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financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial contraol with reference to consclidated financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the Parent and its subsidiary companies which are incorporated
in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to consalidated financial statements and such internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the criteria for internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
established by the respective companies considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financia! Controls Cver Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For P.R. Datla and Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 006067S

W

V.L. Narasimha Rao

Partner

Membership No: 214251
UDIN:252¥¢19 5} I iR TO BB6S

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 26-0/7-2025
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Consolidated Balanee Sheet

M amaaous a2 mallioms, cxeept shave Lt and w o ol gz stated

CIN: U74200TG2005PL.CO45491

Motes 31 March 2028 31 blurch 2024 01 April 2023
A, Assets
1. Non-curreat asscts
(0P roperny andd Lyuipimene 3, ddd 37357 WLET
(M. Jutaglhle assets kN 46,140 26,2 2607
(crRugh-fo-use asser G5 160.0e1 143189 183,30
) Capal waschkoan progzess R T
Wi inmanenl ussers
G Investnenes h BEbEl 3
1§). Leans 14K 0187 554
i, O finneil assers 5. 46777 R 0H 37204
(AL Mbeeecd tax assets (0ot u, 179791 [K1ES 1609.23
(3. OMber nonecurcent asscts 1L 179.62 2iREM WAL
Tatal non-carcent assets (A) 1,484.29 1,357.46 1,420.82
IL.Cucreni assets
{a) Finuneial assets
{1} Trade recemables 11 1,711 1,%76.72 137654
). Coaxh and eash couvalents 2 408 16t L8P
{iii}. Fovatns 17 I R-E] 6515 iom
{ix). Chther Baancial assets 4. T34 AF3a0 AULTG
{0 ther current assets is 26811 XLk P12
Total current asects (B) 2,621.42 219712 1,973.73
Total assets {A+B) 4,305.71 3.534.58 3,304 55
B.Equity and liabilities
L. Equiry
{a), ity shave capital 16, 430,00 G £l i
{4 Other equity 17. 1,963.76 184174 1,414.58
Towl equity {C) 2,381 76 1,901.74 1,479.58
IL. Liubikries
(I}, Noo-zurrene liabilides
{13 FFinancial liabdlitics
(. Bowrrowanggs 1%, Alnd5 126,58 175,60
{ii). Lease linhilities . 136,58 135.03 124.51
{3}, Prowisinng i 12168 1457 15442
Totul non=currenc Jiabilites (D) 404.70 404.08 435,23
(IT}. Current liabilivics
(o) Finuoesl labtlitges
(). Bommwings 21 TN 23815 607
(). Lease liahilities . 57.28 Fi{NE! FrI1
(my Trade pavables doe o
(). Micro and small enterpes 79 35.77 SO.bG 51.50
{123 Onihor tian muceo and small eneeepases 220,34 17516 126,10
av) Others teancial Rabilitics 23, 41403 .15 701
(by. Oyther curcrent liabibioes L g RERN (Y] LMLTL 184796
(). Puvisinns 35 AL fid 83 58500
Total current liabilitics (E ) 1,517.25 ,228.77 1,475.75
Total equity and liabilities (C+D+E) 4,305.71 3,534.58 3,394.55

e aceompanying notes aee an inrepeal pas ol e fnaneial sttements
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AARVEE BNGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED

(formerly known as Aarver Associates Architects Engineers & Consalants Private Limited)
consolidated prafit aad loss

{All amouacs in ¥ millions, except share data and where otheswise stated)

CLN: U74200TG2005PLC045431

Far year ended
Motes 31 Macch 2025 31 March 2024

Incomae
Revenue from operations 26. 567132 517001
Other incomes Zi. 7175 4294
Total imcomes (A) 5,743.08 5,212.95
Expenses
Employee henefils expense 25 2, 76042 234631
Fingnce costs 29 14259 104.55
Depreciation snd amortisation sxpense 30. 136.37 132.31
Consuktaney and techrical Charges 31 1,545.33 1,575.24
Other expenses 32 421.23 520.8¢
Total expenses (B) 5,00}5.94 4,679.32
Profit before 1ax C= {A-B) A o, 73714 533.53
Tax expansc . 36.
Cutrent tax { ok 21072 142.52
Defereed mx sxpense/ (benefit} i 520 (17.1%)
Total tax expease (D) 216.00 125.35
Share of {profit}/loss of joint venture entities (E) . 519 (0.27)
Profitaficr tax F= (C-D-E) T 515.95 408 55
Other comprehensive income
Item that will not be reclassified subsequently ta the statement of profic and Inss
Remeasuzements of posi-ermployment bensfit oblipation (13.14) 1811
Income tax effect on the above iA) (4.36)
Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (G) {0.83) 135.5%
T'otal comprehensive income for the vear aazibuiable to equity sharcholders H=(F+G) Ji N 422.10
Eamings per equity share [EPS] (ia absolwie ¥ terms)
Basic EFS 38 1228 9.73%
Drluted EPS 1228 973
Paz valae per share 1000 10.60

The accompanying notes are an integral part of che financal statements

As per oz report of sven date
For P.R.Dalia & Co., For and on bahalf of the Board of Dicectocs of
Chartered Accountants AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMETED

Fizra’s Registrzeion Na.: DOE05TS Wﬁm Azehirecty Fngineers & Consulunts Povate Limited)
JoUA T

...

V.L. Narasimha Rao R. V. Chakrapani B.¥ Keddy

Pacdner Managing Directer Whale Time Dicector
Membeship Moz 214251 DING0576037 DT 01623401
COINZS 2405 BRI KTURSLS

Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderalkrad

Date: 26-07-2025 Dinge: 26-07-2025 Date: 26-07-202 :

Chief Binanzial Qffices Canmpany Secretacy
M. MNo: 026546 ACS Na: A45323
Place: Hyderzbad Place: Hyderabzd

Drate: 26-07-2025 Date; 26-07-2025




AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED
'(ft)rmerly known a5 Aarvee Associates Architects Enginc:crs & Consultants Privaic l.iﬂ!il':d}

S hamonnes in € eullons, ovcepr share dan and whoe otheowass stand

CIN: U742000G2005FLLAI54%]

Por year ended

Pacticulars 31 Mazch 2025 31 Mareh 2024
Cashilow from aperating activities

TrobE befone tax 737.14 53363
Adjusunent for:

Inrecesy on others (27.10) (23.45)
Depreciatiny oo angible and smmgble s 7391 T
Diepregianoi on RO azsers 62.45 AR5
Operating profit before working capitak chaoges 846,40 G42.50
Working capital adjustments :

Tncrease) nathur non-current 1sscts 92.68 6258
(Incrvase) a loany 4,19 (94T
(nerease), deerease in ather fnanciad assets (381.2¢) {80048
[Decrease/(ineense) in other assers (67.11) (¥ {L.88)
Decresse/ {increase) in trade recetvables (342.40% (0.17}
Lreerease i trade payables 27.13 5742
Deerease i fGnancial labilites {74.93} {128.00)
Docrease/ {inceeasch in ather habihites 03.89 B404h
IDeerens/ (inceease) i Tease Mabihbies {(11..91) 154
(lncreasc) b provistns 4542 26.33
Cash generated (rom sperations 232.13 358.53
IHeect faxcs pasd (nen) (285.23) (Jir1 38
Net cash generated from aperating activitics (A) (53.10) 2015

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of propeere and compmant, including mongble asses (164.63) (B3.17)
Right of use assees (4520} {50.57)
GnmAoss on juint venhues (5.3 0,27
Iixchange Hustuaeion (2410} 07
Infercst reeeived oo fixed dupt Isits 2710 23,45
Net cash used in investing activities (B) {212.02) {115.96]

Cash flow from fnancing activides

Burrawings- Current Z53.50 [i73.7
Borrow myges- Neom- Currend Nate [8) (53.84)} (a01.81)
Net cach Now froin/ (used in) financing activities (C) 199,66 (IF4U3)
MNet increase in cash and cush equivalents (A)+(B)+({C) {65.46) {2584
Oagl and cash oquivalenrs ac the hegouing of the vem 160.44 18628

Cash and cash squivalents at che end of the year (MNote 1) 94.98 160,44

Note 1z

Cash and cash equivalents ss above comprises of foliowing
Cash and cash equivalents {refer note 12)

Halances with baak 94.76 160+
€ash in hand 0.23 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 94.98 16044
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AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED
{formerly known a8 Aarvee Associates Architects Engineers & Consuliuncs Privafe Limniied)
A amouiies m T mithop., eneept shnre data ind w Tawere orlera 1se wl;m'd‘
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Other notes:

(i) Statemeat of Cazl [aws has Been prepured under the indirecs sethad 1a ser ous aehe Todun Scconnting Scandad {lad V507 Saanement of Cash
Ilows™ as specified in the Companes (lndian Aceoumning Sendaedy) Rules, 2015,

b Proviows vears flgures have been segoouped) reciissdied wherever applieable

"The accompanying nustes ace an integral pact of the financal sttanens

L per aur report of even date
For P R.Dalm & Cqg., Ior and on behalf of the Buoard of Divectors of

Chartercd Acconntants AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED
['ena™s Regrsoamon Noo DUGHGTS

U

tlormerly known as Aavver Associates Srehircets Hngineors &

Coosulinnts Pavate Liouted)

Y

V.L. Narasimha Rao R. V. Chakrapani B.V. Reddy

Dattnee Managmng Diecror Whole Time Direckar
Membership No: 213735] DIN0STH0AT 120N: 01623401
DN 25209 Y BRI vro [BLST

Phce: [Hydeahad Places yderabad Tace: Elyderabad
[ages 26-07-2025 Late: 26-07-2025 {3neer 26-07-7075

V.V. Subcahmanyam Sugdndha Khandelwal
Chict [nangial OEfizer {Lompany Secretary

AL R (26046 SO Nen 148323

Place: 1 lyeeralad Place: | fyderabad

[Jare: 26072025 [are; 26072025



AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED

(formerly known as Aanee Associates Architects Enpineers & Consnlaints Privare Litndred)

consolidated changes in egquity

\]1 Jmounts m E [)'Llljl[!tl!i. L‘T-ELTH ‘.‘ihﬂ.’l‘L ltJTJ. ﬂl]l] \-\'I‘lL‘]’L‘ H'[I'\L'l'\\']ﬁl‘ h[-lrL'll)

CIN: UT4200TG20057 LCM5491

A, Equity share capital

Equity Shares of €10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid wp

As at 01 April 2023
Chamge during ghe penod
As at 31 March 2024

Change durmg the penod
As a1 31 March 2025

B. Other equiny

Hegtared Balange ag ar 1 April 223

resfir foae gl i

lisrengn correney sranshoson resence

Crrher comprehensive meomae {"OCE") Bor e year?
Resiated Balance as at 31 Merch 2024

Toofie for the penod

Tssuie 1 Bonus Shares

Forel cosrency Translation wseree

Oher comprehensive mcomme {OC1™ for the year?

Balance as at 31 March 2025
* arising from remeasurement of defined benchit plans

MNumber of shares Amount
50,00,000 40.00
B0, 3,000 50.00
RAC IR TRE T e
4,20,00,000 420,00
Other Foreign currency
Retained earmings Comprehensive ” s Tortak
P trapslation reserve
LANEET 2167 (337]  1,419.57
41IK55 - 40855
LK .07
= i355 13.55
KK 35.72 () 1,841.74
51595 515.95
360,00 {360.00)
- 20 {24.10)
- (9.8 (9.83)
L6577 25,40 27.40)  1,963.76

N per oue eyt of cren dae
For P.R.Dalia & Co.,
Chavrened Acctsatumis

Fren's Reeweralaon Naw: TS

.

V.L. Narasimba Rao
"actner

Moembershap Mo 214251
N>

TMage: Hydeeabad
Date: 26-07-201258

I and s bebalf of the Board of Blireemes ol

AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED

(E;nm, levos s A3 desogintes Avehiteots Pagmicers S EComalrane, Pavnee Dasreal)

Gk o

R. V. Chaleeapani
Managing 1 deveron
DINHETMIRT

DPlaee: Hyderahad
Daee: 2644720125

V. V. Subtabraanyam
Cluel lisantial Offievs
AL o Q260

Plage: 1 Ipdesabad
oot 20-07-20125

B.V. Reddy
Whole Tine Diccguer

I3, BR300

Placy: Pyderabnd

aee: 26417-2025

zandhz Khandehval
{ompany Sutictan
R N A48323

Phace: yelerabad
Date 261072025



AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED

{formerly known as Aarves Associates Architects Engineers & Consultants Private Limiced)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory inforoution

(Al amounts in ¥ millions, except share dam and where otherwise stated)

CIN: UTd200T G205 PLO5491

1. Corporare infgprmation

AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED {formedy known s Aacvee Associams Acchareets Engineess & Consulrants Peivarg
Lirmived) {The Company) i & global leader in infrastructure consultancy, delivering world-class selutions acoess multiphs sectors. Established with
a commaltment to =chmes excelience, smplicity ( engincesdng and innovation Azreee has consistently delivered many eompier and
sransformative projects across the globe. The Company 15 a public hmited domiciled in Endia and is incespozared under the provisions of
Companies Ack, zpphiczhle in India. The registered office of the Company is located ai §-2-5, Ravula Residency, Seinagar Colony ain Read,
Punjagotta, Hyderalad-500082, Teleaganz, India,

The Caneclidated Financial Statsarsats compeise Bxancial staceraens of “Aarves Engineering Consuliant Limired” the “Parent Company” or
the *“Compzny” and its subsidiaries as mentoned in note 37 (collectively cefecred 1025 “the Group”) for the year ended March 31, 2025, All
significant intereompaay balances and transactions have been eliminated in the consalidation,

2. Bacis of preparation

i) Pucpose of Consalidated Snanchal sratements and Pramework
These Consoliiated fnancial setemens {“the Consolidated Bnaneial smeements”) heve beee prepared in sccordance with the provisipns of the
Corapanies Act, 2013 andd the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind A5 23 noufied by Mimsoy of Corporars Affaiss (MCA’) under Section 133 of
the Campanies Act, 2013 (*Act?) read with the Compzoies (Indian Accountng Stardards) Rulss, 2045, 25 amended sod other sélevant provisions
of the Acr

The consolidated $inancials for the year ended Maech 31, 2025 of the company ace the ot financial statzments prepared in compliance with Ind
A8 The date of transition 1o Ind AS is April 1, 2023, The Group prepared it consolidated financial statements up to the year ended 31 March
2024, in accozdance with the requirements of previows Generslly Aceepred Accounting Frndples (‘Indian (GAAPY), which included Accosnting
Standacds (AS) specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thers under. The Group followed the provisions of
lad A3 101 Firgt Time Adopaon of Indian Acconnting Standards” in E:mpnrfng i meing Tnd A5 Balance Sheet as of the datt of transition and
adjustments wars made 1o restate the opening balaneces a5 per Ind AS. The impact of teangition hag been accounted for in the opening reserves a3
at 1st April 2023, The comparative fgores for the balance shest and related notes hawe been peasentrd for 31 March 24, in accordance with the
same accountng principles that are used in preparaton of the Groups’s first Ind AS fmancial siatfements for like w like companson, The fgures
for the previous pedod have been sattuted, ceprouped and reclassificd wherevet cequired to comgply with the requirement of Ind A and Schadule
[IL (sefer note 46 for the explanation of transition to Tod AS)

These Consolidared financial statements were authorized and appraved for issue by the Board of Directors on 26¢h July 2025.
These Corsolidiezd Hnancial stamments have been peepared for the Company as a going concesn on the basie of relevant Tnd AS thar are
elfective as at 31 March 2025,

The Consolidated finanoal statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and accuzl basiz, except for the contain Eaancial assets
and liabilitics thar aee measured at fir vaiue. The Company has uniformiy applied the accounting pofices duning the penods presented.

Monetay amounts are expretsed in Indian Rupee () maliong and are sounded off w rwo decimals |, 'except for share data and earning per share,
Due to wunding off, the oumbers presented throughout the docunent may oot add up presiscdy to the totzls and percenmges may ooy precisely
reflect the abanhste fignres.

All assets and Labilides have been classified 23 curyene or non-cusrent as pes the Company’s normal operating cycle end other criteris ser ouf in
Schedule 1[I of Companies Act, 2013.
The Consohdaed hnaneial starements correspond to the dassifteaton provisions conteined in ind AS 1, “Presentation of Consolidxted Gnancial

statements”, For cladty, various {teos ars aggeegared in the starement of profiv znd loss aod belance sheet These items are disagpregated
separately in the notes o the Consnlidated financial statements, where applicable.

i) Current versug non-current claseification:
The Company presents essets and Hsbilites iu the balance sheet based on current/ non-curcent classification. An agscris trearsd as cusyent whea
iris:
= Expected to be realized or inrended 1o be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
+ Held primarily for the purpose of teadiag
= Expected m be reahzed in narmal operating cyde or within raelve months after the reporting pericd
« Cash or cash equiralents ualess catdeted From being exchaaged oc used o settde 2 labilicy for acleasr reelve months after the reporting perind

All other assets ars clagsified 25 aon-curtent.

A hahiliry is current when:

+ Tt is expecr=d 1o be serded in nommal aperadeg oyele or due to be setded within nwelre months after the repanting period

* Tt is held prinanly for the purpose of trading

» Thees i qo waconditional right w defer the serdement of the babilitg for et least owelve months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax agsers and lisbilides are classified 25 non-cuossent assers and fiabilides.

The upenﬁn ycle is the time between ﬂle Bﬂqmsatmn of assets for processing zod their realization in cash and cash equivalenis. The Campany
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AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED
(fomnerly lnwwn a8 Aarvee Assoclates Acchitecs Engineers & Consultants Private Limited)

Suarmary of significant accounting policics and other esplanatory informarion
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iii)

iv)

Fareign currency transactions

1. Funciignal currengy

The Consulsdared fananl srarcments ary pu.-:"mrl.‘d m [dian ]‘:u]"luce- T 2 wlich is the funcnonal furTency st rhe (jlllllpﬂ‘ll_\.’ and the errrency of rhy ]\ﬂm,u'j
weonumic cnviromment i wlieh e Company opeates.

Z. Lransacticns

Temwactiony m Forap cumences are imeally weoorcded by the Comprny s funenioasl cotseney sput wates at the dae the cansaceion firss ualifics b
translated at the functional cusrency spet rates of exchange ar die weposing

date. Pxchange differenees ansing on settlemenr oy translation of menetary iems an recagnized i peoft oc s with the execpuon of the following:

recopntien. Mosictany assets aod linbilises denommared 1 Forclpn cotrencies an
liachange differences arising on masery tems thar forms part of a FCPOTHLG CARL s ACF v estmoent in o forcign upeeafion are weeoginad i profit or koss m
the Cansehduied finaneid searenents of the wperting entiny,

Noa-mometary items thar ave measured in tcems of histonesl cost i a foreipn cukteney are taeskicd using il eechange s M the dates of the inital
bransactionis, Mos-moaeran siems motsured at faic value inoa Eoueign currcacy are banshted asig the cechange ranes at the dace whee the faiv value s
determined The gaa or luss abdstag on tianslstion of nen-monean iems mossured at faie value 1 treated m Ling wigh the recapmion of the gom or loss on
the change i fair valae of thc item (Lo, translation diffeeenees on teems whose s saloe gnin or loss s recognired i O] o poofit or Joss sre s rectmizal
in CHT ar profir of loss, respectively),

Use of estimates and judgements

‘The prepasation of Sonsalidated fmancint starements m gonfoomite with Tl A3 Tedtes e management w make judgmcats, eatmares and wssenptions dhat
affeet the ceported umimts of revenues, capenses, scts and Babilides and e accompunying disclisures, ind the dischosure of convngenr lisbilides, at the
cadd of the ru|‘1r1rtillg pm"md; The key AssUMPHonE !::mccl.‘ning the fumiee andd oeher kuey #ources of estimabion un[urt;linry at the wepoenng date, that have a
sigmificant dsk of causing a mawesal adjariment to the carrying amounts of asicrs and Habilities within the aext Fnancia) veaz, e described below, The

Company based ins wsumpriony and cstimates oo porameters availalic w the Consolidated finmeial stmmears were pecprred. Ftsting cireusnstances and

aumprinns thowve futate develapments, huwever, may ehnnge duc to marke
Such cliwnges are reflectad in the assnmpins when ey oecas,

L clmﬂ.gm: O CUFCLHMRLANCUS :lLi.*lﬂp; that are h:.'j‘mu] tlie comtral of the [:um[mn].

Ihe areas iny obving significant judgement and estimares are as follows:

* Lsnmation of gseful life of property wnd cqupment and wtangible assct

* Impairrient of non-financial assets

* Jistmation of defined beacfir obligation

*Laxes on lneome

* Estimation of useful life of property and cquipment and intngible asset

The charge m respeer of persdic depresiation i derved afrer dewemining an estmate of an assel's expected vsefol B and die expected residual value st dae
enel of s Jife Alanagement at the time the asse s souined and reviewed pesdodically, including ot cach financial vear end, deeconmes the uselol Tives and

resadual viees of £ lompan’s assets. The Jives awe based on bstorical esperience wirh smiar sssets as well as anticipation of f
their Jife, such as chanpes in technidogy “U'he esmmared useful Bfe is sevieaed af least

e evenrs, which may affeer

nally.

¢ [mpairment of agn-financial asseis

Peoperty and equipment and intagble assots aw tested for wnpaizmenr whencver cvents ocour or changes 10 eircumscanecy sdicate fhat the secoverabke
amunnt 15 less than i careving valve. The aloulscon of vadue in use and faic vabee avolves use of smificant eznmarcs and asrumpdioms, wiich jnchades
SULOVLT, growth fares and net g ssed 1o colealae peojected futare cosh fows, risk adinsted discount fare, future coomomic and macket condiriss.

* Estimation of defined benefit obligation
The cosr of the defined heneit plans, cemponsated abseaces and the present valee of the defined heoohic obligarens are based o actarial valuation vsing the
projected unie credit method. S\ actuarial vahaoon involees moking vafons assumptions that may Bifer from actual developments in the future. These
snclude the dererminzton of the discount mare, fur
narure, & defined bencfin ohligaeion is bighly sens

s salavy inerezses and mortzbity ates. Dae o the complesiies invelved in the valuztion sad s Lop-term
L [y L‘h:mgt.‘i i these :I:iiumpt'um:;. Al H:-‘:-‘\Lllﬂp‘[i_lbﬂ.'{ are revicwed at each L'L']'lll!‘lillg dnt
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(formerly knowa as Aurvee Associates Architests Enpineers & Consultants Private Linited)

Sumunary of significant acconnting policies and other explunatory infarmanos

M amounes w 3 outlhons, LRECE share data and wheee atherwise stated)

CIM: U742 TG2005PLCI45491

v)

» Taxes on Income

Ihe cave my amonng of deferred mx assets i eviewed a8 cach reportiag date amd reduccd 1o the extear that 1013 ne lonper prohable tac sufficaent saxable
profit sl e avartable woallow all e pare of the deferred rax asser @ be walised. Uoeecogmised defored fus aseets e re-asscsrad At each sepurnag dare and an
reenpmized b the eveerat thar it has become poobable chat fomre enable predies wil) allow the deferned tox asset io be eeovered.

* Expected credit losses on financial assets

The impaiment provisions of financink assers ace based on assumpoons aboor nsk of defankt and C'{]’Pl‘[h‘d tming of collection. The Company uses udgment
m malking these dxsvempiony and scleenng the sapuzs o the espeered evedit loss ealeolon Dased o the Companys histore of collections, cusfomet’s
credinocthiness, exizting market ¢otulitions as well ax forvard loakmyg csomages at rhe end of cach reps womy; peaod,

Revenue recogmniticn

Revenue §s wemmized to the extent that iv 15 probable thar the coonumic benefits will flowe e the compoay aad the reveaue can be weiably measured.
rf:;_l,sﬂ'd]cs:; of when tHwe pavmont is being made. 1o detormine whether the Company ghould n:cngni?c revenves, the Compacy fotloms 5~htcp prrcess;

{13 identifving the contract, o comteacrs, with a cuscomer

o) wlenn F.\'iﬁg rite I\urﬂirmﬂﬂcc [Jhli!::itiiznh im cach conteact

4l dereruming the transaction puce

v allogarmy the munsacion price @ the peeformance olilgations in cach contract

v recapmivdng rovenue when, o as, we satisfy pertormanc: oblipanons by mansteering the promesced ds or services
] £ g } g rhep Fd

Revenue is recopmived when 2 promise in 4 customer contract [peckormance obligaton) hag been sarisfivd by ransfering contn] over the promased prods and
serrices to the customee. Comtrod enver a promised pood or serviee wfees to the abiline t diseer the use of, and obtain substantally all 6 e remaining benefits
trom thase goods o seeviees. Conecal i asoally transforred upon transber of Jogal dihe or the goods or 33 services are rendered, in accordance with the s
agrecd with the cusesmers, The ament of sales @ be rcn]gﬂlsud transachon ]11i(u| 15 hased am the consideration the Company cxpects 1o POCvT {E exchange
far its poeods and suvices, exeluding amoants collected on behalf of turd partics sueh as goods and seevices tas o other tases directly Boked to safes 14
contract comtains mare than mme pecformanec wbligition, the tansacion puice i allocared o vach perfomance obligaton based on their relative stand-adone
sl

priw;u,

fncome fram services
[neome From setvices is recognived over the performance pednd in propacion o the overall yuantum of cffores w be expended by the Company for
complettan of the related sorviees or malestones ay :;tipu]ﬂ!ud hy the confracts with costomers.

Revenue i3 measured bazed on she mnsacnion price, which 3¢ the consideration, adpested for vadable consideiations, ib wy, as apeeified 1 the conteaer with
the customct,

Revenne mnchieles un].v the P SRETS mfows of coomemic benefits recelved and reecivable by the Company, on its anwn aceount.

Revenue is measured at the faie value of the eonsideranon rocaved ot receivable, taking inro accooar cuﬂrm(mﬂ]ly defined terms of pavment and cxcloding
tases o durtes collected on lehall of thye evemmeot,

\dvance pavmenes reecived from customers for which ne services have been rendered are preseated ag Robikuation ddvances

Unbilled sevenue epres the value & the cxient of semvices renderad 10 the customees an the balanee sheer date and 15 aust billedd 35 ar the balance sheer
Jare,

Qthier imcome

Other fcomse includes gain on exchanpe factuadan, Liabiliges, provisions ae longer required waitten back ere and is reeagoised in the pedoed in which it has
hewn watren back.

Frterest itcome:

Inierest inceme on deposits with banks is recapnized in o propostion Brsis taking e accovac the smount ancsianding and the e applicable.

Ineezest on meenme tax refund o accomted for upeon receipt of such interest
Contract balances
Contract agset

v econtracr asset - unhilled revenve s the Gphr b considumtion in oxclange fur gomls or rervices mansforred woghe eosromer. [F the Company perfoems by

rransferng gonds o serices de a customer before the customer pavs ¢onsideration or before paymeat i due, 2 contmce asser 18 recnpnised for the earned
x L .

enoddecarmon char s condirenal.

Y coniract aeser - werk wnder prageess is the peecentage of work completed for whoch e revenue will be accoonted once the work wiches st's milestony, The

cost of such propeots has Teen deforral a2 the revenm i nor weognised i the respeedve financial yeac

Trude receivakles

A recesvable represents the Company’s spht o an amunt of consideeation that = uscondinenal (e, ondy e possage of tme sy befose payment of

the consuberanion s dae).
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Contract liahilitics

Yy comacr habilioe i the ablgnnon o mesfer goods or seniees o a costoma for which the Company e reeored cowsderinon {or 50 amoun of
s oF services o the custimes, a conract babili
Contruet limhilities are reeopnised 2 wevenue when the Company

conslelelaton 1f (.Ili;ﬂ Ff(llu l'l'l,(_‘ CUARHTILT ]f:] cusnpner l\lrh‘ El]ll}-lfdl‘l'ilrlllﬂ |1L’I’:ln' IIIL’ { ‘ iml‘!ﬂ.lll\' t[-]ilhi‘k.'fﬁ i

is secopnised when the paymenr iz made or e payment s dee (whicheser s eadier).

pC[Flmﬂ:i uader the conteact

vi) Fisancial insrrument

\ financial instrament is any conteact that gives fac fo 2 financial sasct of one enan and a finanaial Bablicy or eqoizy instromend of asother ouity,
a) Financial assers

Initial recogningn and measurement

11l Enancial asse inlhy at faic value plus, in the case of fancat assets not reeosded ar faie value through profic and Liss, peasoction costs
thar arc artmburable w0 the acawmsinon of the financial asser.

i are n:cngm'.md I

Sulb sequent measurement

[11ar purpOses :1fsubscqucut measurcencnt, financial asscrs are classificd in thive brogd CAtegtalies:

* fnancial assats at amagnzgd ¢t

= financial asser at fan value throogh other compreheasive inceme (FYOET)

* financinl asser zi fair solue thrauph profit and loss (VTP

Financial asset at amotrized cost

v finamcial asset is measured at amormized cost (ner of any write dovwen for impasemeat) the asses is held 1o collect the contractual cash flecs (rather than o sell
the jostrament puiar fo ite contractusf maturiy 1o wealiee s Bair valee changes) and e conteaemial terors of the fimaneal asset gve se oo specified dates 1o
cnsh flowes chat are solcly paymeats of prnapal and fabcrest (SPP17) on the prncipal amouar surstanding,.

Such Bnancinl asscts are subisequently gwasured ar amortzed coust using the effecive weerest rate (TR snethod. Amortieed comt i caleulated by taliog mto
account any discount or premivm on acyuisition and fecs or costs thar aze an wtegeal part of the IR The BTR amorazason s incdded in Boance income
the profit and loss. The losses arising frum impeirment are secognized staement of profic and loss, Thiz earegary gencally applics o trade nod erther
recctyvalles,

Financial asset at fair valve throngh other compreheasive income (FVOCD

% foancial asset thae mecrs the Bolloange sea conditions 15 owasured ar fan valoe t|1nmgh CCT unless e asset 1 desgymated at fur value lhl‘u'l.l]_:h 'pl.'uﬁl: and

loss woder faic valus option,
« The financial asset 15 held both o eollect comtractual cash flows and mo sl

¢ The contractual tenns o the fanenl asser e PS5 ypcciﬁugl dares e cash Aenws thnd are !;U]l']}‘ paymesis o prilldpﬂl and dukerest oa the poncal

ammoant Unlblﬂﬂdillg

lasteaenents ncluded wirhin the IV TOCT careyery are measurcd inikally as well as at cach cepoting Jate at fae value, e value movemenis arc recogatad i
s amd reversals ned forvign exchanpe patn or losz dnthe taremene of profic and
boss. (i dorceognition of the asser, cumubagve gam oc loss previoosly recogaized T O is redlassified fam the cquity to satement of profie and loss, et
eacned whilst holding BV TOCT debt tstroment & reported a5 interest income vsing the TR methund.

O Tewever, the Company seoognizes inteeest meome, impanment losse

Financial asset at fair value throngh profit and loss (FYTPL)
IVTPI, s a residual categiey and any financial asser which do
[IE LI

nor meer the oritenn for (a.tq;u[j"{.:ltim] as ar amortired cost of 1% FYOCK, 15 classified ax

W equiey snvestments included within the FVTTL cuegory are measured at Fair value with all changes weeogntzed in the stasemuat sk probi and loss.

in neldimesy, the Company may ceet to desipnate an instmament, which othervize meers amaorsized cosr oe FVOCT entersn, as o IVl Howerer, such
clection iy alowed onle if doing s teduees wr elimmates 2 measntement of ECogmating mcunsistency (zefurred w as “accounting mismaich’].

Investoacnt in subsidiarics, Associates and Joimt Vendures

The Company has acoounted for its investments in subsddianes, assoctates ane foint vonmres ar cosr less impammene loss G8 any) The et
preference shares wirh the sight of sexphis assees which ace in the naturs of eyuity in accordance with Ind A8 52 are sreaced s separate qacegony of invesimen
aod maasured at Y TOHCL

ront




AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED
([urm[:rlr known as Aarvee Associntes Architects Engineers & Consulpanes Frivare Limited)
Summary of sipntificant accounting policies and other explanateey information

AL zmouars in T millions, excepr share data and wheee othenetse stamed)
CIN: UI74200TG2005PLCM5491

]

—

c,

Ll

Derecognition

\‘1]('" lh! '-’tlllrlpd.‘ll:. }lil.‘? trzm.aﬁ'rn'd s I'Iz_{hfﬁ [ (L En ﬂl“i'.‘? F11111] Elll‘ ASECT G I'LEIH alFHllI]’Il‘d an U‘hlijﬁ'a“fﬂl [1] I'!l'!l ihi.' o EE! Cfl“h ﬂlF“ ©m fl.'l" w HI]EJLH

marertal deday coa shngd pacn wodee a“pass-throueh arrangement; [e evaluares o and 1o whar exreoe i has reminsd the nsks and rowards of lH'l'I‘lL"L'H‘I\‘[‘L
% fiunncta) asset (o, where applicable, a paec of o financat ssset ov pact of a Company of similar financial assets) s prmanly deceeognized when:

¢ The ﬂghtﬁ to receive cash flows from the asset have L'\]ﬁn'd, [F)%
+ Baxed om above evaluation, vither (a) the (:[]TIIPET[} has transfed subhhmtiaﬂ} all the risks and rewards of the asset, oz (b} the Compamy hag acither
transferred nos retnmed :-\I.IIJP\LIIIIECI":' all the rshs and rewnnds of die asser, but has sansfermed control af e asset

Vi'hen 1t has oetther munsfeered not reemned substannalle all of che gsks and rewareds oF the asser, nor transivred eomerol of the asser, the Compaay conhnues
o regopnize thwe reansfoerred asver v e exeenr ofF the Company’s conmawing 1

ement. In thar case, the Company also wengmives an assocared Datitin.
The transferred awser aad rhe associated labiline are measured <o a bases thae reficer the rphes and obliganons g the Company hag serained.

Coatinuing; invobement that takes the form of a guarntee over the iansferred asset 3 mcasaced at the lower of the ongpnal carying amawnt of the asser aod
the maximwn amount of comsideration thnt the Company could be reyuired to renay.

Impeirment of financial assets

In acomdance with [nd A8 109, the Company applies expeored cvedit loss (%1501 moded for mensorement and fecopnidom Ul.impa.irmcm luss on financial

assCes [Ilt‘(l!ﬂ_l]l’d At flﬂ'lll'[[';.‘?L’iJ Lost.

1908 Trade reeeivables, The Company apphes time value of money basts, winch mcans the company constders the preseat vohie of rade weeeivables eliat are
vutstaadisg for more than one year and 3o on constdering the effeetive vate of darerest which the company vaes for irs waorking eapiel borrowingy. The
Company alse considers histodeal defaults of it costomers to determune mparment loss oo the postfolio of tiade recatvables, S overy wporting dare these
historical default and wuﬁdﬂg {apitﬂl ates are reviewed and arml:n:cd.

T all othwr fiancial assers, JCE awe mensured ac an amount cqual to the 12-month 101, unless cheee has been s wgmificann werense meerediv visk funn
imitial recopniton in which ease thuse arc metsurad at Efotime 1H0]

Taoss allowance for fimancml assers measured ar smortised cose are deducted from [ EERT rrngr amount of the assets.
Financial labilitics
Inidal recopnition and measurement

ldnancial liabiktics are dassified, at initial weopgition, as financial labilities at fase value theough prefit and Joss oc ar amartized cost, as apprejpriacc,

W financial lalibiges are eeeogatzed tabally at e sadue and, n the case of lans and boveowiags, not of dieeetly artribuable taosaenon coses.

The €5 mqmn)"n fnnnoal habhnes mchide ceade p:i!.':lmus, anel orcher p:l}'uh]ut..

Subscquent measurement
The meagugement of financial habilioes depends on thedr elnssbicanon, 1 descoibed belom:

Financfal liakilivics at amortized cost

Mier toidal teeognidon, iatctodt-lyanng loang ind bottowings and other avables are subseguenrh measured ar amormieced oo wsing the 1R (K ffeemve
Interest Ratey wcthad, Gaine and losses are recognized in peafis and loss whon the liabilitics aee dereenpnised as well 2: throuph the BIR amorazation process,

vmortized eost 15 calevlated by faking inte account any discount vr prensiom on acquisition and fees or coste that are an dnterl part of the IR, The FIR
mllnrt‘l;’,ﬂﬁu!] i!; ;ﬂ(ll_liiL'Ll l1E9 rlrlElTl(l' Csts ‘“'I ﬂll‘ sratciRent 1]F P[Uﬁ[ '-'l'l][] ](]SS.

Dereccognition

v financial habality is dereengniced when the obligacien under the habilisy 1= dischasged or cancelled or expires. When an eastng Gaancial habibey s replaced
by wnother from the same nder an subsrandally Jifferont reems, o the tams of an eastdnp Bbikey are subsrannall maodificd, such an exchange oe
modification t¢ freated as the dececapnidon of the aviginal Tialilie and de secogndtion of a new lialndice, "The difference i the wapecone Carmiag anmomes =
wergized in the statement of profit and loss.

Cifsetting of financial instruments

Financial asscts and financial fahilities are offset and the et amount is ceported o the balanee sheet i there s a carteatly anforesable el riphe o offser the
n‘[ugﬁih‘d amounks and thore 15 an intenton to settle on o net basis, o realize the assets and settic the babilitic s sinuliaacousl.
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Reclassification of financizl assets

T'he Company deonnines clussification af F , 1o fuclasstficanen s naade for finoncial

scial awsers and Bahilnes on manal recogmioon. ier ndal teeupnii

assets wluch are ety netameents and financeal hablines. 'or fnancial assers which ape debe ssrrumwencs, o wclassificanon s nade only i there i a change i
the Business mende] for managing those assers, Changes to the busiaces model are expected o be fafrequent. The Company's senior mamapement determings
change in the bus

s model because of external or fniemal chanpes which are sippificant to the Compnae’s operations. Such daages ave evident to external

sapties, % change i the business mode] ooours when the Company cither bogins ar cenres to poerforon an aerviey chae s symificant © s operatims, If the
[sLaLs L | b |

i:nmp‘m'\- cevlassifces famnead assers, 1t nm’ﬂicn the reclassficaion pmaptchrcl) Frans the reclassfication date whisch 15 che Bese dﬂ}‘ af the immcdinhc!} next
toporting pentd followmyg the change 1n business model, The Company does not restate am prurinush reoognlided pAns, logses {incluling impn‘irmunt A
b losscs) oF Rterest

Income tax

Income GRS COIMPIMNCS Carrear and defereced income mx. Tt s ﬂ‘(ngﬂidtd 1 net pruﬁt in the Statement of ]'irnﬁl and loss UNCOPH By the extent dhat it
echutce to an swm ecognived direstly in cguiy ovin othiee comprehensive come

Current Tax

Provision fur corcent tax is made under the tas pavalle method, based on the liabiliee esmpated, after mlang oredii for allowances and cxemprions as pee the
provisions of Incame Tax \ct, 1961,

Coveent inceme tas relaing o memy recegnised aurside profie and Inss i recrlgxﬁe:ud ontside profit and hess vither in ather comprehensive mcome or in
equity), Cmirrent tax dems ke cecagatsed 1 enteelanon oo the vaderlying mansacten airhee o OCT or direedy d cquity.

Cuprent % assers and cucrent s hainhices

are offser ulll:.‘ i there s a legmlly enforceahle rght to set off die wenpnived amonns, and o is wrended to realice
the aszer and sctde the kablicy on a nwt basis or simultaneously.

Dl::ferred Tax

Defueral s provided using the Hability muthad on tompsrary Jisforences bosveen the tax bases of wesets and lobilities and ey cazrvinp amounts for
ﬁi]mciﬂj l'V_‘I'HJI.Tlﬂg '['!L]LT]U}-‘[,‘H At []]L‘ I'ETN )‘L'Tiﬂ'rz Ll'-'IEC.

Veforred tax linbilibes ave vecopnised for all taxable emporare differences.

Docferrod rax aesers ave cectapnised for all deductble sempovary differenees and the cary forvard of any mnused tax Jossea. Deferred tax assets are mcugnim-d
tor the extent thar it s probable thar tmable priskic will be available agaiast which the deducnble temporary Jifferences, and the arry forward of unused Ty

IE!HSL‘T\ can IH‘ ll!:li.‘?t‘d.

cable
profit will be available ta allow all or pact of the deferred tax assef to be uilised. Unrecognised defered tax assers are re-asscssed at each reporang daie and
aee rocogiized to the extent thar i has become probahle that fupere taxghle lmlﬁ‘r:; will allemy the deferred rax asscr to be peeovered.

The eatreing amouat of deferred tax assets Is reviewed at cach L‘L:pnrﬁrlp dnte and rodnecd o the exreint that it @ e ]ﬂﬂgﬂ' pl‘[lbﬂbll.' that sufficient t

Iefirmed tas assets and liabilitles arc mozaured a0 the ras eates thar aze cspeered o apphy i ehe vear swhen the asset is realised or the Habilin i@ sertled, based on
ran rares fand e lnsr) that Tiave been enacted or subistantively caacted at the reparmng; dare.

[eferred fax cedanng to items recopmised saiside profit and loss is recapnised outside profit and logs (vither 1 OC] orm cquity} Deferned tax items arc
reenpadsed i correlation to the aaderling ransacton cither i UL or divectly in v

Deferred tax assers and defeored tax Jiabilities are offxet if a fopally enforceable mghr exists 1 s off curcent ox assets aganst current tax babilitics and the
dufereeel mxes relawe o the same taxable entity and the same raxation aathotier,
Property and cquipment

AMitems of property and equipment e initally sezorded ar cose. Cost of p
any directly attributable cost of benging the asect to 1t working condition Bor he inended wse. Aer il recognition, property and equipnicnt A measuied

vty end cquipment compiises pugchase price, non refundahle maxes, levies, and

ar cost ks accumplated depreciaion and any accamulared impaizment lesses, The catrviyg vahis of propesy 1ol equipment are weviesed for jmpairment
when cvents ot chanpes in ecumsmaness mdicare des the carcving value may war be recoverabsle, The cost of an item of properte and cyquipment s recogmieed
as an asser if, and oaly 3€,

is probable that fuwee cconomic beneflis associated with the item will Sow to the Company asul the cost of the iem o be
measutd echinbly. The cosr inchudes the cost of o placing: part of the property and cquipment and borrowing €osts that are diwerly artshuable o the
acquisition, construction ar producton of a qualifving properry and cquipment.

The Cinnpany identifics and determines cost of cach component/ past of e asser separaely, if the composent/ part Jas a cost which is simificant o the
el cost of the asser and has useful life ther s mntcl“'mfl:\ different foom thae of thy rum:uni.ng AR

Propeery and cquipment are cimmated From Consolidaced financia) stntemuats, cither on disposal or whoen wetired from acove wse. dessses arsiog a case o
retirement of properts and equipment and gins or losses acsing from disposal of property aod cquipment are reengdecd 0 starement of prosfic ana loss in the

} chir IIF aeturienc.

Capital work 1 progress 15 srared e cosi, nee of aceumutared impaiment loss, i any.

The assers’ residual vabues, vsefin] Bves and methads of depreciation ate reviewed at each finanaal year and adjusied puospecasehy, if appropriate. Residhual
value of propeer plane and cywpment is upm 3¢ of the ognal cost 1l such assets is disposed. Depreeneen i aaleulared on asmigheline basis over dhe
cstimated veeful hves ol the assere. Dseful Bves used by the Company are m Jine with the rates preserdbed under Schedulc 1) of the Compames Yot 2013

-
l:)upru('l;lm moon property, pl:lllt and cauipmcat 15 pro el 4 " d o wsefol ife of the assets estimategd by MManagemen,
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Asser class Uselul life
Lmn]luiur Cyuygnnuend g veacs
Cfbice cyutpanunt 3 veaes
lurpioure and fincares 5 yoars
Qeher cquipment 19 vears
ehieles bl years
Leaschold mpreyvements 10 vears
Buldiags Gl years

Intangible assets

Tnranghle assets are recopntsed whan it s probable that the future cconomic benobits thar are armuburable 1 the assers will flow i compass aad the oost
llf the asset can l}t‘ fI'IL'FlELI'[l:d Tl‘.‘iah.[‘\]

Inranpble assets acymred sepasagely are measured on initisl wommition st cosc Followdng doital n'cn;.';plirilm, infangible asacts arc curmivd ot cost Juss any
accumulated amonisaton and accumulased inpaiomenr logies Tatgraally generaed inmngibles, excloding capitalised developmanr costs, ate not capdtalised and
the rolated exponditure 2 clarped 1o profiv ov doss snehe porsod inowhich the espenditme i3 incaced.

Tangitle assets are amortised over the usefol economic §ife and asscssed for Impaitment whenevee dhere 35 a0 indication that the intanpible asset mav be
smypaired. The amotisation period and the amsntisation method foran iutangible asset are revivwvd 41 kagt ag the end of each zeposring pesind. Changes in the
L‘\'l'wctl,‘d asefol Tife ov the L‘,\puctmi pattera of rum;um]_wtiun of future cemnnnic henelits cmbodicd in the asser awe consdored 111HLﬁf.h the mpertizanon
punnq,l ne method, as cappmpﬁ:itu, and are treated as (hﬁmgm in ﬂtt[]lmtin;_: cetinmales.

“Ihe amortization expense on inmnghic wssets is recogmised mothe statement of profit and loss wnless such expenditere forms pact of eaerping value of ansthee
asscr. Resdunl value of inngnble assets 15 opeo 550 o the arigea cost il such assets 15 disposed.
Gwns ur kesses atsing from derecapnition of an intangible asser are measured as the difference berween the aer disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of

the asser ond ave [L'I:JIHI'[;SL'{J in the statemont ufpmﬁt or Joss when the assct is dtl‘fcnp;nisud.

Impairment of nen-fingncil assets
The carrving amaunts of the Company™s @aagible and jatanpble assers 2re reviewed e cach reposting date (o dese
impmisment. Fany such fodictiion exists, then the asset’s weoverable amount is cstnared 1n ozdet to dereemine Uie extent of the impaitmenr Iows, f any.

rrine whether there is an indication of

The reoverable amount of an asset or cash-pracrating vnit is the greater of i value i use and s faic value less onses o sell. Ta assessing value in use, the
esrimared futoee cash flows are discounted to their [resent value llsiﬂ[_\; a pre-tan discount watc that reflecrs currene marker assessments of the time valoe of

merLey and rhye risks S]wciﬁc o the asser oc the cnsh—gmwmtiug unit for which the estumztes of futuee cash flows have s beont adjusted. For the PULpaL [

1mpnirmr_‘nt TESTILE, ARNUEY Are (:um!!:um;a' L'ngutlmr wea the smallest
indeprendent of the cash inflows of otwer assets oe Company’s of aasers.

pan: of assers that genemtes cash inflows fromn Contiing wee that are Jaepely

A smpatmment Tass s recapmised mthe statemuent of peafit or boss oF the csimated fecovorable amoune of an gsset or s cash geseranng e os Tower thau its
carryinyg sownmt. 1f, at the reportingg date there is an indication that a previousle asgserecd smpaitaent lass 10 longee exises, the recoveable amooat s
L

sxessed and reversed ::nl_v to the exteat that the asset’s cartying wncunt does oot exceed the carying amcunt thar wonld hare bocn determineed, nec of
;.Ir_pmcm:jrm OF Wnornsrwn, 15 no HnpAEmen levss haxd bevn prrri[:u:ﬂ!‘ rucup,nie:mj.

Lease
The Company cvalvares ¢ach contraer or acmngeinent, whether it qualifies 25 Jease ns defmed voder Ind AS E6.
The Company as lessce

The Company's keased assers constst of kases fox butlding, The Company zssesses whother @ confecr contums lease, af inception of a coutract. Y conrract i,
e compaing, a lease if e contract coaveys the right ro conrmol the ute nf an wentified asser for @ pedod in exelnpge for consderamm. T assess whethe a

conLract ©

s the nght t commol the use of an wWdentefied asset, the Compnny assesses whether:
a_ the conoact involves the use of an ideatificd assct

b. chie Company b
¢ the Company s the apht o diceet the use of the asser.

as subseansally all the ceimomic benefis from asce of the asset thl’uu;:h the p;:rim.l of the lease and

The Company deteomines the lease teem as the non-cancellable potiod of a lease, rogether with pennds covered be an aption 5o exend de lesse, wheee the
(:nm]mn.\‘ 1 1'L—,1::[}|1:1'|)]}' cortaim to exvrcise that [}piiun.

I'he £ompaoy at the cammencement of the Jease contract teengmizes a Right-nf-Lize (ROU) aszer ar cost and eovresponding Jease liabadity, exeepe for leases
with wom of less than teelve months shert teem leases) and Jowrahoe asscts, For these siotr tenm and Tow ealue leases, the cosmpany recogmizes the Tease

I'Iﬁ\‘mL‘ﬂl,“\ aian liIlL'lFlrll'lg L"{]’ll‘l]?‘\L‘ oo Sfﬂligllffli]lt hﬂbi?: oyer thl’ IL'HF\L' teom

The cast of the RUL assets eomprises tae amount of the indaal measiremens of the kage Labiiire, any Tease paymenrs made ar or heboe the meeption date of
ad Subsequently, the ROU assens age measmed ar coss less am accymadaged depreoation
and accomulared impmnnaae Tasses, f aay. RO asser awe dcpm('l:l‘rt‘d us-iﬂ;_( il 5I1‘.‘ti;;ht-|jﬂr methud from the commengement dare LVt the shorer of lease
rersn ot usetul BEe of RO assers, The esamated vscfal Tives of RO assees argtorermmed on

the lease Plllt{ ﬂ'l'h}-' Il'lifi:il dil’l[l ([Jbiﬁ, IL'hE- am IR‘;I‘*IC i1IE['!]Ti\'l‘H I'L'CL'i'\

v same basis ax these of proporh an
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Por Tease Habaitties at the commencement of the lease, the Company measeees fhe lease babaline ar the preseiat vakue of the fease payments

thur are not pad ac
thar duge “The Tease pusmene are disconnra] wsng the tweerest rare impbein in the lease, f thar sare s seadibe dereemaned, of thar e i not resdily deresmined,
the Jease pavments s discounred veing the ineraneinal horrow g taee thar the Company wotthd have to pay o Bovow funds, meluling the sonsidetaon of
factors Al ae tlie ot of e assor and Lacan n, collateral, madket termes and conditioms. as '.lppl‘l(nl)it 11 a shmlar cconmnic covicomwuoeat.

Yrer clie comoveneement dote, the aevount of lease Bobhaliies 12 meeeased e eofleer the secresiont of mperest and redwuced For gy Tease [rav e imade,

The Compay n:cngnin:s the amount of the re-measuremnent of lease Tabilite 24 an afjusmacne o the righr—nf—m:u amsors Woherr e mrr\.inr amount of the
tht—nl’mw assets s redvced to wera and there 15 a fuerher reduerdon i ghie measuremenr of the lease Kohikey, the (fnmpuuv FUCOENLE s ANY u_-nmmiug AL AT
af the remeasorement in comsolidared siremene of meome

[Lcaze abihty payments are elassifiod as cash used 30 financesy aciveies e the skuement of cash flowes.

xii} Cosh and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eyunvalenss 1s the balunee sheet compse eash ar banks and on kand, fised deposits wirh an ongoal mauesn of tiece months ot less and hiph
liguiel assers, which are subjeer we an snwipmificant ik of changes i vaine.

For the puIpsse of the smteowenr ofF cash flowes, cash and eash a:(luivn'l(,-nr:a oo

aist oof cash and fised deposies, ag definced above, e of sustinding kank
wverdrmafts as they ore conmdered an ineegreal part oof they Compaing’s eash managemenr.,

xiii} Cesh fow srarement

xiV)

Casl flow s are rtpulfnl nh‘inp; the fndirect method, » |1L'r¢-h_1,‘ ]n‘uﬁr {tor the punnd s adinsted Fore the offects of repusacnons of a non-cash nneure, oy diferrals

ur arcuals of past or future Uprmtiug cash TUCCiHS DF jYIvm Cand item of meome or expenseg ausaciated witlh 1nves ngr o ﬁﬂaﬁcmg cazh fhnes. the cash

lows from upfmﬁn;;, in l‘usrin;_: and ﬁumciug acovines of the Company an segregaed,

Provisions, contingent lalhities and contingenr assets

b provision i weeognised when rhe company has 1 piesent obigtion ax a result of past cvents and it s probable that an ouflvw o ressarces will Te reguiced
o settle the oblipatan, 1o respeet of which a reliabic catimate can be mode. Paovisions are measured at the prescat value of managment's best estimate of de
tt]‘lundi.tut‘r rcqui!cd o vertle the [‘»rL‘HL'nt 1||)]ig:1titJ|1 at the end of the rupr:rﬁu r I’ll,’f]‘ll[]‘ Tlu: l,lie:fm:n: raier nsend to Jdooeemaag e PL‘C:-‘{,‘H[ vihie 15 9 Pre-tax LAty
rhor assessments of Sine value of meney and the wsks specifie w the talnlin, The merease in the provision due o passage of time i
recoginsed 2w ngerest expense: The provisions ace weviewed at cach Balanee Sheot dare and adjosted to eflcet the cetrent managpement csimates.

Thill l'l'nl:['lﬁ [I]L' carre

toaungent liabilioes are dizclosed s respeer oF possible oblipations that acse from past events, whose cxistence would be confirned by thie occurrence o non-
OCCUTEEN e OF O of Mo UnCertun tutute crents net wholb within the conmol of the Commany, Or a prosent obligaton that arises from past cvents but is
nut reeopmnized bocause it is aof probable that an outflos of resomces Eml](]d;'iﬂ]g coommic benefirs witl be [L’L‘Illifﬂ_’ to seetle the nhligﬂﬁ[m; ot amonmi of
the LJbli;_',atiun canru e measuted with sufficient wlm!ftllt}‘.

(jm]hugﬂut asscts ane nok 11‘[0531'[5“! i the Consolidared finaacial siaemears. Tlowever, i 18 disclosed ondy when an inflow of coonomic Denefin is prisbable.

Emplovee benefits
Defined contribuetion plan )

Revirement Beaehitin the form of provident fund is 2 defined eontrburion scheme. Ve Company bas oo obligarien, other than the contrbution paabic to
the providenr fund, The Company recapaises contabuton pavable o the provident fund scheme as an expenditoee, when o emplovee venders the selaged

setice. Peepaid commnbutions are eeopnizcd Ax an Asset b the extent that a cast efund or a codection in the future pavments is availabl
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x9i)

xvit)

wvild)

Defined benefit pian
Gratuity

I'he Balnliee o

nomsed anthe noder provisions aote meespeer of defined berede praroae plans i she presens valoe of tie defiaed Tencht obhganon ug the vnd
ot she repormng pered less the farvalue of plao assers. The cosr of providing bepenits under the defined lsenehic plan 18 detesmuned wsiog the projeried une

credir method.

I'he present value ot the defined benels l:i!!igllﬁcu:: dencoumied 10 T iy derermned by diseounewy the esomarcd furee cash orflow - Ty referenee i miagkor

}ll‘ldh at tIIL' L‘lld llf t!ll‘ [thKJl'nTIF l]L'ﬂ[id 1 ‘i_:“'\ CTTNIY

nt bonds that have terms APPIONIMEANE [ty the rerms af the relared uhhgﬁ[:rm

Scevice cost on the Company’s defined benefit plan is included i L‘l‘l‘lplll:'t‘t bencfis exprense. ]'jmp]u_\'cu cumtributions, all of which ane indtpvudrnt uf the

meambet of v ab servicy, awe treated a5 8 reduction of serviee cost. Mer wterest UNPCNSE 0N the nei definesd benefit Iml]il{[}‘ is incdladed in fmance cosis.

Granyg and losses theowgh re-measurements of the dobined benefit plans are recopnizad in other compichensive Jncome, which ave noe reclassificd to Satement
of Profir and Loss in 2 subscquent pedod. Further, as sequired under [nd A5 compliant Schedule T, the Company transfers thase amounts secopnized
uthur compchensive income m retained caodops in the Statement of Changes 1o Hgotie and m the Palace shect,

Other employee henefits

Leave encashments

"The unithscounted amouat of shad-feomn Umphlytu benefits u‘(pucmd o he pﬁid n uxclmngc Foar the sermaces rendered by umplm‘uc:: are rr:cmgniaml during the
vear wihen ihe L'!'I]]!III!'L’L‘S render the service. These benefins inchude Teave coeashimenrs which are q\pccwd tis neenr wichan paelee monaths after the ead of the
period in which the eraployee renders the selared service. The eise of such Teace encashments 18 aceounred as wider

) ease of scewmuplared leave encashmeney, when emplovees reoder the serviees thar increase dhwir enrifement of foure leave encashmoenes, and

(b in caze of non-accumulatng leave encaghiments, when the absences vecue.

recogmised as a liabalior at the poeseot vabue of the defined benefit obligntions at the Balmee Sheet date based on actuadal valuation by an independent actuary
usiag the ]’mictkd Ulait Credit Method, The discouat mares nsed for duﬁ‘r‘n]ining the present v ahue of the {]b"igﬂﬁi m ander the defined henefit |1|sm are Tmseel
o the marker J.‘lddf& 9 Eovemiment hawnals k2t the Balance Shoot date.

Short-term cmplu}ree benefita
Al emplover benefi: payable wholly within nvelve monehs of wadering the serviecs are classificd as short-term emplovee bencfits. These bonefins melude

#alavics anel wages, bonud and cx-grata, The wndisconnted amount of short-term emplovee beacfits expected e e pad s exchange for the seevices renderad

]3}‘ k'[!'Ii‘lh LR 1R chm}:ud tor the Maternent of Profitand Loss in the 11“1'["] in which sech services sre weodered.

Equiry and reserves

- =hare Eerit-.ﬂ represents the nominal (part vahse of shares that bave bueen jgsued,

Other components of equite include;

Re-eneasoremest of nor defiaed benefu ]i;lhﬂ'ir\‘{umlmsw the acheennd hsses from, ;;'han!‘ws m e

upraphic and fnancial assumptions aad the reraen on phin

ns5es
- Remained earmngs includes all cnrrent qud prot pensd retiined profics

- Uapdral resorve due w0 Gain on Bargmin purchase
Segment reporting

Uperaung seyments are repoced o manaer consistent wich e mrernnl repornng provided e the chief operatag deesion maler. The dManaggng Divceror is
responsible for the allogaring resourees and assessing poecformaice of the opoeratigs sepmients and  accordingdy 18 iWeatified as the chict operating decision
nmaker, The Compaoy is princdpaly engaped m a sinple seemient business Lo senie

R

Earnings per share

Haric c:u:niugs e share ace caleulated bj‘ di\‘iding the net pml-lt or Joss (L').(]udjng other C(Jmpn‘hr! Ve income) for the vt attribuinble to tquit)'

S]Iﬂﬂ'h{l.[di:[.‘? h} Thl‘ '\\.I‘T‘{_'\h tld :I\'L'l"il!:[‘ IliJlTth’l' IHF L‘llltlf!‘ Ei]'IFlIL'h ﬂll‘fﬂmﬂdl‘ﬂl_’\ lJlll‘!flal‘ Tl'li' YUAT. i1“!4“ wmgljiud hA) Jlllﬂ'lht'l' lﬂc L'R“_lir‘\.' hl]ﬂl‘{,‘ﬂ Ulli.‘;fﬁlﬂdillg dlll'lkllg

the year 15 mbjusted for events such as bonus s, bonps dlement in g vighy ssune, shares slﬁlrr and peserve shawe :.'plir:: Jeonsolidonogy pf ,‘Ir.]_r:_-:a’r thar have

Ehuni-_rcd the sumber of uquin' shares uursmndiﬂg, withiur a C“rl'l,'hl‘llﬂ‘tlliﬂﬂ; [‘IMI!\}_:L‘ AN LOSEMITCe S,

Fae the parpsese of calevlatag dilated carnings per share, the act profit or kess b the period attobuorable to equire shascholders after taking to account the
of mterest and other finaoc

shates that would Bave een :Jutﬁtnuding aAsFUY

(A ﬂlld “il‘ \'\'k‘]_[,d]'t‘d averayge 1, I]'Ih‘l‘ ot ﬂlidlli!lﬂ‘di

Aty mcome b effc »sts assocared wirh dilute pulunlinW L-quir‘r shar

g fl]&' flPﬂ\'R‘IHiiJll {JFHM Lli ‘TL‘ ]1llfl‘1ltiﬂ| i I.]it‘lur Fl]FlTL'S‘
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Fair vaiue measurement

The < ompany meiduges Ananeial insmment such as nvestnents For valoe at vach balance sheer date.

Faw value 1 the price thar would be weetved o sell an usset or pawd o mawsfor a Bibility ju an ordedy mansaction hemween marker pasicipanes as the
measaeesnent date, The fair value metragoment i based on the presamprion that the mansaction w sell the asset or teansfor the liabaliee kes place et

= In the principal market tor the asset or labilit - or

= In the ahsence of g panapad macket, i the miest advancageous macket for the aect or habalie

The prneipal or the mose advantagenos m thet must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asserora liabilisy is masured usiegs the Asgumyrthmns
that warker purticipants would wse whea po

g2 the asser v Babifies, assuming et macket pacticipants 1¢x i their cgonome bust surerese. The Company vser
valuatiom fechniques thar are appeoprisie e the arcumstaoces and for which sufficicat date e available to mcasuge fair value, maximang the use of nelevant
i the use of unobsgreable inputs.

uhservablc inpruts and mnimas

Wl assers and liabilivics for which Ciir value s mveasoed or disclosed in the Consolidared financial siawments are caegorized within the Fatr value hicewchy,
duacribed as follomes, based o e Towest Tevel dnput that s siegnificant e the fair value meazurenenr as o whele:

vl 1= Cuoted unadjosted) mareet l]ri(us i noive mackets for identical assets or labikides

Lavel 2 =es Vahwadon rechoigues fop which the lowest levil inpur that 1s sipnificant b the faie value mcasatoment 1§ Jurecily
Lavel 3 — Valuatian teelhaigues for which the lowest level mpur thae is sigmificans to the fais value measurement & anobsenable
Cuerently the Company carfics thes inscrumenes wheve in leeel 1

indirectly ohservable

uts of the aboye-meatiooed Bair value hicmacchy i wred.

Business combinations and goodwik
Business combinagons are scoounted for usine the acquisiion method, The cost of an acquisinon s measured as the agggrepate of the eonsideranen
fransforred, which i measured ag acgmsidon date faic value, amd the amovat of am mm-c'mm»] g daterests in e acyumree. For vach businuss combhination,

the Group oleess whether 10 measure the non-goneroling jnweests in the acguiree at fade valae or at the proportonate <have of the acquirees ieatifioble net

assers, veguisttionerelated costs ate expensed 33 inourred and inchuded moadministmamoe expenkes.

The Gronp deemmimes this 1t has sequined a business whoa the tequited see of aetivites andd assers melude ae input and a sabsrantive process that i
sprubicanty conmibure o the ability to create outputs, The acquieed process 8 consideced substnve if iv s coneal to the ability to continue productag
vetputs, and the inpurs acyuited inchule an organised workforce with the necessary skills, kaowledge, or expericnce w perfuen that process or it significandy
cantributes o the abdity o coptnee prm_{ucmjr LTS anel i consideoed umquc o scaree ar cannt be replacad wittow ﬂlgﬂ'lﬁt’ull cost, effor, ac l,ldﬂ} in
the abiliny to comtinee producing autpots,

Whn the Group neguises = business, it assesses the Eaandal assets and lalsbiries assumcd for appropriate classificition and desippation in accordance with the

canfeierual wems, economic circumsoances and ]‘wrt]‘nunr condihons as at the acuuisaron dace.

wny contingent comsideraton o be ttangferted by the acqueer will be secogmiscd ae fair vohue of the acyaisition Jaee. Contgagent consideranon classificd ss
equity w nut emeasured and s subsequent setdoment s 2ecouated For within equity. Comtingene consideration classificd as an asect at liabihty thar s 1
financial ingrrument and within the scope of [nd AS 103 Faaacial fnstouments, 1w ncaseed o fiz value with the changes in fair value weopnised 0 the
statement of profit or Joss 1 accorduoee with Tsud A8 103 . Other eostingens consideration that 12 aet within the scope of Tmf Ax 103§ measoced at far
value ar cach seporting dare with changes in far valoe recs J;J_m::ud m profit or Joss,

Crommdwil] ds initiully measueed ar cost (bemg the exeess of the apprepate of the considetanon transferred and the amount reeognised fur nom-contralling
s aned any previous intercst held over the aer idendifinble assets acquited and Habilitics assumedi. 1f the fair value of dhe ner assets acyuited 15 u excess
of the it gl ol 1 considetanon mansfersed, the Lirnnp re-assesses whether o has (un’ucﬂy identified all of the asseez ncquiwd snd all of the Tabilities assmned
andd reviews the procedures ased b measure the ansus w be reoomised at e acquisition date. TE the reassessment still roalts 10 a0 excess of rhe foir value
of ner asscts acyuired over the aypresate comsideration transferred, then the i i seeognised in profit or loss.

ks

\feer inatial resogmirion, goodwill s mcasured at eost less amy accumulated impaizment Josses. For the purpose ol impaioment testing, poodwil] acquired inoa
husinuss comisnanion i, from e zeqoeation date, allncawd 10 cach 6€ the Group's cagh-genceating unirs g awe expeeied o henefit from the combination,
irrcspoctive of whether acher assets or liabilioes of the acyuiree are assigned to those units,

Where goodwill s heen allocated o a eash-gencrazing s (CGL) and pare of che operarion wishin that voit ts disposcd of, the goadwall assacmeed wich the
dizposed operaton i included 0 the carsving amount of the opcrtion when dereemintog the gim o loss om dispersal, Groodwlll disposed s these
cirewmutances is measured bascd om the wlathee values of the disposed opetanon and the povaan of the cash-pencrating unit ceained.

Recent Hcccunli‘ng I.‘TOI’DUTICEITIEH'ZE

New smendments issued huet not effective
\[!l!tSTf;' of Corporute Ariairs WA monfics new standards or amendments to the existog stamdacds aoder Compames Indian Aceounnog seandands
Rule issued Fremn et time, Por the vear eanded Maech 31, 2025, MO hs
APplicnblu o the company.

i nomfics any new standards or anendmaenrs o The exisong saneasd

P
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3. Peopeory ant equipricne

Fumiwre and Oilfice Compures Vemieles Qbier Lrschold Buildings Yand Towl
- fiztnres e e U [ LeTIR fguipiuca IOLPEG C OB
Tieemed Cost
A atil Apeil 2023 .53 17244 137.90 L] 9132 639 715% ME3  T5E 0
Wldtons ahiroeg e e g LTy 20T 2w " 53 [ENI 1+ 48 [EE
o= 1 gz the sem il FR . | 4 . i4%
As ai 31 Milwch 2024 83462 1822 w287 Gt U0 146 Tt JRl 82304
A i Hie e 1594 o LIt 17073 LRl 45 4 Lve 1249
Real e D S LK b Tkt T [ 1 nn I nrs 1330 15 %
Do ila e the s = - 133K - 5 - | 22 Hé
As at 30 March 2025 pLE:] 0.5 18,82 2.1 216.29 T.A0 130 57 3253 W24
o —— e — . —— - — S—
Accusmalated deprecialion
Up o 81 April 2023 2847 136,04 L2 Z1.52 5.4 468 B.02 - 0023
[l S0 e s 515 | (2] xR 2Rl o LIEE] L3 15
30 oo (LN MmN - - - - i
U 1o 30 Mlanch 2024 5350 13027 13521 RAb i1 508 .15 - 448.40
Ehampe for the yon 323 RS L Aink th¥3 4% el 0274
LI al o oy 11l #0 AL
Up ro 36 March 10256 59,05 16 42 14530 M 8792 5 5% £2.30 - 4
——— e —— e — —
Net block
As at 3 March 2075 39.85 1085 442 28.51 13537 193 114,18 333 A4
A ar M Masch M2 |82 169% 3736 8.0 13500 iy oL inE3  37A57
As 4101 Aprdl 2N2S .68 EPR1 200 4144 13408 i 2.5l 383 60T
+ Tmnngihle agsets
Compuses Gaodwil  Towl
anivwarg
Ogomet] Enst
Az ac Ol Apol 2043 L3143 - L340
bl e donng the s
U npuiab dummgs A vear 15 51 - 14 11
Ax 20 31 Mareh 2024 14 7L - 146 31
[SER A W S T - EE]
gl oo of gt 2308 I
Dyoparmals durng e year = -
As ut M March 2025 - 153 05 568 17333
Acenm ukieed a crdzwion
U sa il April 2403 105 35 - 1533
Chg for the yasr [EXE 1512
Eln disprle
Uip o 31 Mol 2084 20.1% - 12045
¢ e £ e yer 1144 1) I
Qg dh-parls
Up 1o 3L Murch 2025 — Blad._ w ok
Mex bigck
Asan 3 Barch 2025 m.as 2568 41l
Ax w31 March 2021 20,26 - %20
A 2t 0L April 2023 e Ai¥) - 07
Mores:

Tl Comyvam bos nee eevalied s paecpery and egoposgn inglalmg nghe el woe secrg umd mtagbib ey,
Lhc Comapamy Teis clocked b evthram b the Corme sdie for i of ms poopory and aepmese md mnapide s s rcgpeed s [$EVP sanddon fnged )
staremunr o deenmd comb o il INER AR 1o din

Lhe Conpany e aegamed nes suleadswne duonp Qe e w and 3o Masseament e oof the vees that than anoimg il b seh g il s ndmgh, nee
ulpsimenes lve been mode moee ecend, f! F-
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5.  Right-to-use asset

Leasehold

properties ot
Gross block
As at 01 Apzil 2023 282.49 282.49
Additions during the vear 56.57 86.57
Deletions during the vear E
As ar 31 Mareh 2024 335.06 339.06
Additons dunng the vear 48.55 48.55
Assers on account of acquistion 1.23 1.23
Dreletions durmag the vear (+.58) (4.58)
As at 51 March 2025 384.26 384.26
Accumulated depreciation
Up to 0! April 2023 93.13 93.13
Charge for the year 62.05 62.05
U disposals - -
p o 31 March 2024 155.18 155.18
Chatpe for the vear 62.45 62.45
On dispasals - -
Up to 31 March 2025 217.63 217.63
Met block
As at 3 March 2025 166.64 166.64
As at 31 March 2024 183.3% 183.89

As at 01 April 2024 189.36 189.3¢6 .
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o
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9.

10

Mon-Current investmeats
Invesiments at cost
a, Invesumend in Equity Ineouments{{Un-quoted)

b. Membership Share in LEP
Chanpaksin 1AF
Dumpameheryu Colleetive LLP

Loans -Non-currem
Unseaured, considered good
Jaaas and advanees ko sareel pactics (refer nate 37)

Odher financial asscts - Non-curment
Unsecured, considered good
Depesits widh baok *

Sr;cunq LIL‘T\(MIM

Depeasits - Crechic Imapained

Taess: Promvisieny for espuoted erealit loss

" neludes slopists kopt 15 margin money deposits aganst bank puarinees aad deposics marked s fien

Drelerred tax usset/(liability} (net)

Dreferred tax labilicy (Gross)
Premerty and equipment

Delerred tox asset {Gross)

Property and eyupenent

Prevision fouvxpested erdit [oas oo doegbtful reoon ables
Prewceston fere eapoeted oredu [oss oo othed assers

Tyrvegmow fein cmp]nycc Twenchies

Ner deferved rax apsci/(liailioy)

Qcher Mon-curent assets

Ralwces wirls proverarment suilsorices (refer note 34)
YAv o dncone :.wfm,‘rnfpm\'isium]

Capioal advioces

Prepaid espuonses

Orthee assers- Coedit Tnpaired

Leas: Frowviatens foe vapeored coedin loss

31 blorch 2025 31 Maxch 2024 0L Apcil 2023
e 5 s
ot . 3
0.02 - -
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 Ol April 2623
100 087 5.54
{.00 087 3.3
31 March 2025 31 AMarch 2034 01 April 2023
43664 In1A2 S
LIAE | 2720 jut e}
E5 LG £5.15 2
(15,15 1515 2T
467.77 390,08 372,64
31 March 2025 21 March 2024 1 Apnl 2023
AR 1520 .16
S04 76 7T
300K ALl 3002
340 S8.27 530
173,50 151.85 160.23
179.70 181.85 165,23
31 March 2025 31 Morch 2024 01 Apail 2023
HX{h} 37404 16201l
148.30 w695 1 Lik54
19.2% 45,41 [ Y]
120 2LHE [ 1
15279 183,48 hUER-
Ry (LE34% (203,54}
179.62 200,34 297,11
1
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LURTIER T TR A TS pt e dienand shere oo s e
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1. Trude recemablcn

M March 2025 EL March 2024 1L A prd 2023
Uwsecured, eansidered good
nmnrdo e sd (AR LS |18 o el [ R T]
Tocom sbdes 0 rodit b e d Lo Wi £ WiH 17
Toee Prociepem fiw woporind onoadit Tose WIRAT 06 1T e 1
1 2 L376.56
The movements in1he Joss allowance for (epairment of tratle feecaables are us followa:
18 1ty e vhe brynrumng oF s veac 17 Mk 17 15
Wl e o Jiormg fhe o xin sz
Alanie artheamb e o 308.47 2617 6. 17
—
Trade reeeimbker ageing scheduic
Onisnding [ox followiog perlods from doe daic of payment
Mot Due bewdmnd 500 Lygar 12 yeac 2-3yean hoee shan Iyeors Toul
montha *
31 Wiarch 2025
1776 52 i RE | 2440 4871 347 719,12
e L v, J b scom il = ceeudiod med
Iy R iddgire d beade socomalleon < w bl e st .
HCICAST 0 L ok
1% 1135 35 Tl 347
[t Cacspored hode vecon 1l = ot wp wned .
ae Emspueed ke secen il .
) Prspueed made neenaldes - which e wpnh -
MLECasE 0 eress b
vy Duspored mrade reccaablos — crelt impand - - - -
Tatak - . L270.52
Cho i3 b ndamyg Low following periods (om dee daic of paymenc
M. Lok dian é
ot Dme manths Gmuonds = Lycar 12 yerm 2¢3 yeam Klore han 3 rear Toial
31 Maowed 2024
i L ndieputed bade acon shles —cenmidesed pread 304 S]] 6111} L] A 1,376.72
i Undispured rrade rewon ables —wlweh b e < embuane - -
WGF s 1 aradn sk
L 1HIR aRl e 306,17
tie U vidiprked #eide o et < ol o d
i) Dnepureal reade e sl -
Ieb Duepured oade i gumahles - whade s semificdng - -
awnaq sy m pagehe rich
T Dhnpredd i o dlrige = Cridnn song oagd = -
Towul — - - 37304 Z7Le8 17¢.01 4L30 3967 1,682,850
Omtsianding ior folpwing periods from due doit of paymment
Mo Due feta than b G wvritha - 1 veas 1-2yrurs 2-3 years e 1an 3 yrams Toul
manthe b k ¥
91 dpril 2023
i+ Unibspaned 1etde tecens dbibes — eemie weacd prasd LIA{E] 134 3H 134 77 w2an I3 1,37%.50
Ty L ittt e e alshes o sbogh b ctn, i £
win s gt nisl .
an Uridispited vrade maciables - ciodt mpid Wi3 1410 2.3l 14 306.17
I ) Pepuiriad rrade eecowa hles .
suk Bpuireal rradh regumaldes - schale liae sigmin e .
wicay e m g der ek .
o Dhsputod trade i eomaTdes — crodt impn . . .
Taotal - —

169.12
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31 March 2025 31 March 2021 B1 April 2023
12. Cash and cash equivalents
Balaneus with baaks
- [n clrrent aecounts g [TEIES 1hn.2t
In fixed deposes sicth orgnoal mamon meee than 3 months bu bess than |2 months - -
[ Zagh vm hand [ [k = O
34.93 164 41 186.28
31 Mareh 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
13, Loans ~ Curtent
Unseeured, considersd good
1unny 1 ither ™ G145 5. L5 lonl
61.83 £5.15 H.aol
i ane w othen e iterest bearmg intee cowporate depeits beadng an intercst and aec unsceneed in nasee.
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
14. Other finuncizl usses - Current
Unsecured, considered good
Loans and advasces 1o
emphnees 208 250 HLTA
el LL I 6247 35K
Taterest pecrued and noatdue on Jeposits 16 46 9.7 7
Comteach assets-unbifled wyenue 553 0 2914 0121
Comteack assetsawovks undee progocas 0827 - -
677.38 375.80 0,76
3 March 2025 31 darch 2024 08 April 2023
15, Orher assers - Currene .
L'nszeured, congidered good
Balanges with guvemment authorioes L5005 11521k d
Partese ey deposits 4354 276U 1703
Prepaid e xperses TA.B4 4411 4306
268.11 20000 . HL12

’.—\‘ [ .
%MM
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AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LAMITED
{Ermerly known ax Aurvee Associates Architects Engincers & Consultants Private Limiged}
Summary of significant aceounting policies and other explanatory [nformation
Al aenounts in 3 millions, wxeept shaee da ad whoeee otherass sgareif)
CIN: U200 T4G2005 PLCO45491

31 March 2025 31 Murch 2024 01 April 2023

17, Orher equity

Reserves apd surplns

Retnined carnings [Un5 TS 1,8IAE1 | A0E27
1,965.75 1,809.81 1.301.27
Other comprehengive income
Remuasarement of deftocd boachit plans 25 K) 1522 2467
25,10 35.22 21.67
Foroyen cureency wnasalaton resene 127,39} 30 {2.30)
Tatal ather equity 1,963.76 1L,B41T4 1,419.56

Mature and pueposc of reserves

Retuined earnings
Rutalned ¢aenings eomprase of the Conpany’s accomulated undistbered carnimgs,

Remesagurement of defined henefit plans
The eesere rpresens de wemeasuwment guns (osses) ansmyg fum e achinal valuanion of the dufined beactic obligitions el the Company. The
remasurenient pains, Jossce) are ceeegieed moother empechnsrey sgome and aeeumutaed srer des reserve withm eyuity, The amirums reeogmrd

Q«QWW'W

vnder thia reserve are oo reelassifed w simement of podlt or Joss.
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AARVEE ENGINEEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITEDR

{formerly known as Aarvee Associates Architects Enpineers & Consultans Private Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and gther explznascry informaticn
Al amonnts 1 3 oullions, veeept share da and where otheowsse 2iaed

CIN: U74200TG2005P LC045491

31 March 2025 3t March 2024 01 April 2023
19 Lease Labilities

Mon-current lease Dabihitcs (refes noete 41) 136,58 13563 128.51
136.58 135.63 128.51

Curvent beage iabaiees (vefer nore 41 3708 014 FaTk
57.28 70,14 7371

Hollzwing 38 the mewemear in lease bibafines:

© Amounc

Balance ag at 1 Apsil 2023 202.22

Addisons/ (Leletions) Juting the vear 56.37
Financy cost acoryed durmg the veae 0,68
Payancat of lease Wabihioes (1371,

Bakance as at 3 Maech 2024 20577

©ddittons/ {Delenons) dunng the year $2.51

Iynnce cost accrued dunng thie year 18.59
Payment of lease habiboey (7300

Balance as at 31 March 2025 193.86




AARYEE ENGINEERENG CONSULTANTS LIMITED
{formerdy lown us Aarvee Associates Arcluteots Enginesos 8 Consultans Frivate kdmaied)
Summary of significant a¢eounting polieies und acher explonatory infamatinn

LW aments w0 F amllts, eveept share da and nohere s ovese seated)

CIN: UP200T G2005PLOCO45491

20, Mrovisions- Moo-curient
PBrowinwn for granay (Refer Note 33)

2[. Barrowings — Correor
Secneed - A Snertegd Cais
ks Caguial ] waans

Team Bauks

M March 2025 31 hlareh 2034

I A pril 2023

187,68 14137

18168 14157

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

01 April 2023

Rugce Lanae LY pIEES 28987
Worhanys capitak wwam luams 55 8
420.15 11663 280.87
sl urren oo e s oF Mo Ciorent Bogeow ings {Rafee MNoae 18) LUE.0] T2 A 742
Totd B E2 L 25805 16407
Carrving smount
Mote Ref Interest Rare 3] March 2025 31 March 2024 0 April 2023
Arane Hank ol Dcia () wh 1404k
Tes Bk 1) Y3 346,50 1485 UH.0Y
[116 ] Bank @ 03E Z4.HI JLAN
BOTEY W orhamy capatal S Losau ) ma 5550
Utchant Hankh )] L G =
420,15 166 63 269,87
1 Metes
() Thes ks e seeweed By way afhypaheeome amd e chorpe an plam Bcequpmenars, oohoer cqummuaes, respecese s ehicles and enee cment
soaels melulimg recen abfes | (barh present amsl Intuec) and feen depsits o the Conppany,
Lseat elizrge By wny of inerigie e o ble peoperoes omened b the company and fiest chagpe Ty way GEwusnyidble peopurdes 0s goom] w
the lan agreciment, nwimesl by B ]’{,‘\’_(jjulquamq Managng F¥irceter of the (fusnpm!- Aatl St R Maivada, woie of B Chabeapaia
Uhesae Teamuw are seented By way of pledee and Best chagge oo 300" e ntsluses held by 5o RA W Chakoapan,
Lhese lomrs ave Ruether sevured by way ot persmal goeantees of Sa 1V Chakeapai, S b homobosad Sn B Venkatesam Reddy.
1) Thyee lans aze secieed by way of bypotheeatnm o seecned shavge in ondiee euerene 2950 inehichigg recenaliles of the Compane (bud prosem
2 fuere). '
Second E!IM‘QH By wap ol mae g on mvisnowsble poopeetes eowined s menesned wrhe lon agreement owned by Sec R V.Chakmpan. amd S
K. Nirmala
Ul Yomms are weruned by sway of pledpe a0l secomd ehange oo 3170 af shames held Iy 8o BALClhakenpam
) Dhene Bonte awe secured By wa ofF fiest paa passa ehaiee on plisr S egunwars, cehes egupmenis respecme el nud enpre conent
aesers iachidmr recenablos | (thith present and futoee) 40d teem deposies of e Company along warte adier s protders
Triest prarry pramau eharee om mmovable properties owned by the compraay aud va romseable propechys s ool w e o agreemont,
avaed by Sn 1Y Clakeapam, blawaging Diecetoe of tie Company and Sm K Niemak, wte of RV Chakeypan along sk eidber keaan prossdes,
Ulaeve ke are secieesd by way of G para passa chagge w30 e of shages Brekd by S0 18V U halaop s alowsg wath othee Joan pumdtﬂ
Gy Ibese boans are secuved By wav of bypothecanm i fised depusst o Hie Company
i) Ve Comnpany as <atefaed all the crvensubs preszabed wt enms o E bratiow s
31 March 2025 3 Bfazch 2024 O Aqpril 2023
iz, Trade payables
Othee han oticvo snerpenes nnd sl enteoposes (1) ey L 17586 1200
hbserer cruerpraes nid sl entegases T 3010 3t 3
26215 235,02 17760

.



AARVER EMGINEERING CONMSLU LTANTS LIMITED
(formcrhy known w8 Ask oo Assocines Archireers Engiueces & Cansubanty Pos e Linaited)

Summan of sigailicant avcownbing pobicies and other explinatory infonimdoe
Cullamnamgs e ®owlhons s e dara ad w e oo e ey

CIN: U200 T G2005PLCM 5191

A) Mo and somdl ennoprases ader e Micen, Sl aisl Bldaina Earprees Dovideprwens oo 2006 aye been detorsmied e the estesd suge parses hane Bees whnidbnd oo thy Daseoaot

bz s nbable wath the Congaoy amd celed uponn by the anduimes

B} Ageing schedule:
Trade payable as on 31 March 2025

Cutstanding for {ollomiag peciods fram due dure of pay ment
Mg than >

Partivulats
Less than 1 year I-2 yoars 23 years ; Toeal
years
AR KM | 35 7 I
1w Chimrs 22634 236,
1) Erapuned dhues - R IShi3 .
(] Paspantaal dues - Othyes N
Teade pavable as on 38 Murch 2024
Qutslqnd'lng for Ealluu'{ngpu}mis fiorn doe date nfpn!'mtnt
Fucsiotlas Legs than [ pear 1-2 years 23 years Morj: than 3 Tatal
yeurs
fup MISIL 3731 1.3 516
() Odaers 172,88 - 17586
tem) Prapuaty ] doed — KISKID R
) Drepuiidd aiues - Ol -
Trade F;;yahles ag on 01 Apeil 202%
Crustaoding for fllewing periods from due date of puyment
Eurdculan Less than Lycar 1«2 year 2-5 ycdn el ;gt:l:" L Toeal
f ANl 4213 932 al.sn
(n) Cothers o - 126 Lit
o) Eepaneil dues = RIS
(v Ispoed dues - reheres R
S0 Morch 2025 5L March 2024 01 Apeil 2023
23, Other Goancial liabilitcs
Fayable tremphoyees 21602 17205 134
Rleshelisaeavin aelvnaees de s ctsbinmees 197N TN $TRT?
4i4.13 4R 1L a1in
31 March 2025 3F Macch 2024 01 April 2023
24, Other currenc liabilitics
statatery dhics 224 6o 13171 18176
224, 0k 1371 18470
31 March 2025 31 Muasch 2024 O} April 2023
23, Provisionis- Cumemt
Prev s for Jeave pngashinwnt 4103 1] 52 REE]
Prosvisum bor graonn (Refer Note 35) U8 3550 336
B0.04 6483 58.50
T




AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTAMNTS LIMITED
{Tormecly known a8 Aarvee Associaes Architeets Engineers & Consultaris Privare Limiwed)
Sunmuny of significant accounting policics and other explanatory information

A ours s 7 oallons, exeept share dagn and s hese cthemwse staed)

CIN: UTQ200TG2005 PLCU45401

26. Reveave from operatuons

servires meome!

{3 Disagpregztion of revenue - based on geography
Indm
Rest of the socdd

(i)  Disaggregation of revenue - based on timing of revenues recogrition.
Tevenue femircd oves [mne
Revenue I'L'C(]};ﬂl;‘L'lJ ata ksl nat mn lpme

{thers

Note*

1. Reveone from oporation include unbilled ingome of Ra 553,90 Million {(Provious Y car Re 29814 Mlbon)

27. Other income
'EI[L‘I'L’ST iI]CE}ITIL' LB, a8
Others
- Ingome s cefund

Oviher incomes

28, Employce benelits expense
Snlanes, wages anc honus
- I-)m]ﬂ{]_tuw
- ky
Conrrihuton o PO readent Tund aind other funds

Managenal Personadd {refer note 37)

Gratwtr and Jeave encashniens (refer note 35 iv)
Staff weelfave cepease

29, Finance cost
Terest expease
Orther boreowing cosrs

31 Marck 2025 2 Masch 2024
567132 5, L7061
567152 5,170.01
496222 4,784,027

U0 38574
367132 5,170.01
2068 M 14120
360238 3.724.33

- 143

5,671.32 5.170.01

31 March 2025 1 March 2024
2710 a3

1.29

A4E5 19,40

75 72,04

31 Masch 2025 31 Macch 2024

2,489.48 2,18.70

9230 8474

6193 55.58

6T 5340

4377 3388

276042 2,546.31

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
61.88 £3.20

80.73 5133

59 104.53




AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED
{furmerly known 6 Aarvee Associates Architects Bngiveers & Consulius Puivute Limited)
Summary of signifieant acconnting policies and ather explenaiery information
M amounez i $oulliong, cxcept shace daaand where otheswiee stated)
CIN: UT4200TG2005T LC045491

21 March 2025 31 March 2024
3. Depreciation and amortisation

1)lT|fCCIH[![}[|, anHmtsaton E\FEI‘SU 1H1
T2 urry agl sygupent 6273 5315
Intamghle assets 168 1512
Right of use asacts 245 G205
136,37 152,51
31 Manch 2025 3T March 2024

1 Cangullancy and technical Charges
Alanagemcene andd consuliney foes 113730 1,314.00
Peupect monitoang aod survey expenses 408.03 26l.1e
1,545.33 1,575.24

31 Macch 2023

31 March 2024

32. Orherexpenscs

Vihepeasement ang busmiess pmmrjtir:rl 1703 11 3%
(Mfice maintcnance 48.34 3603
Reut {refer note 41) 3.4 846 1817
l.qjml anul ]‘nufuﬁburnnl Tews 0% 515
Rares and caxes 36.64 797
[nsurance 231 242
TPowerand fuel 19,48 19.20
Scevry chasges 1416 1223
Prm['mg and staponery 1352 7501
'J'm\'tuiﬂg and accommaodation 129.26 126,92
Suditor’s cemuneration
- Smbutery aad Tas audit e 246 171
- Ueenbeations ote. 049 1.42
sz on exchange flucrnuanon (ner 142 0.28
Vass o sl af assets (el 6.21 .19
Repares and matnienance (3ERCE] 898
Bad dcbes watten «ff 1-03.35
I iom for comporde socil ttapt)mﬂ}i'\'ﬂy refer Noke 8 licbow) 2.52 1244
Proswizion for expected eredit loss- rrade receables 230
Proviston boc cipeeted ercdit loss ather assets 5.76 (18.62)
hsecllancous 61,50 75,01

421.23 520.89




AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED
{furmactly known us Aarvee Associates Architccts Engineces & Coosultanes Private Limited)
Summrany of significant acceunting palicies and ather explunatory infummation

W amoonts m F ovlhoas, vxcept shave daca and where othwowse stared

CIN: UZ2MTG2005PLC045401

A, Details of Corporate social esponsibility expenditure:

Ciross ammaumt roguved to be spent by the Company damngs the vear
Total

Mavemcnt in the lalance of Carparate social responsihility:

Opening Balance

Amoual resuired o be spent dasing the vear
Sincunt sk during the vear

Cloging halance

33. Expeaditure in foreign currency

Nalames, wages anel onos

Granagy and leave encashmene

Staff welfaze expuonse

Other borm m'iﬂg Ccosts

AMamagemene aned comsulonney fres
Projeer monttormyg and suover cupensas
\hvertiscrrent and business roost i
OWfRce momiynancy

LY

J nL'g'ﬂl FLlld ]’)f[lfl'htilll Iflil] !FL‘L‘E

Rates and Laxes

[nwurance

PPonwer amd focl

Secuury chaspus

]’[mtmg ansl Ht.'iiinm'r!'

Trivelling and accommdanon

Repairs and myantcnance

AGsccdlaneoas

31 March 2023 31 March 2024
9373 7.20
9.32 7.26

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

4.M 10.12
9.32 7.7
(6.8 124
7.44 4.94
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
154.95 88 24
187 362
0.2% 0.76
.80 048
2610 178.80
2071 oa.m
439 0.84
1.21 1.20
961 BT
048 337
14.68 406
516 106
0.0% (AN Fhd
.68 i [L]
033 0.31
2785 345
374 068
180,33 4.22
155.05 32140




AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED
(fonmcrly known s Aarvee Associates Architcets Engincers & Consultaney Privare Limited)
Summan of significant aceounting policics and other explanatory information

W amounts m T mdlions, excepr shane dat and where otheowrse stated

CIN: U74200TG2005PLC0549L

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
34, Commitments and contingent linbilities
Capital Commitments 272 1050
Convingeny Liabilities
Muney Stz 118
Crinds aml Servsce g disputed aput tan escdic® 07.32 57.08
Gmranbees oulstandmy, 167020 1 A8177
1,743.41 1,549.95

TS ‘EIUII'IE!["\F“IL'H .l ‘.'L'l'li(h ‘lﬁ tlihriu[ﬁ‘l h'\' tan

"The company bas availed Taput Tax Credie (1O amonasing o (NR 5768 which i disclosed vonder Bakances with gover
authoriticy sub:--;qu-;ucly, T'he management, Dosedd om lugal advree, bokeves char che 710 5w vabid amd cecowerable, Tlowever if the cleim is disallowed, the COMpAnY nay
b reepuired 1o sk the dispured unonae alongg wrh applcabic mivrest and The compaoy has not collected GET trom the supplcs which are taxable supplics under

GET e and are omder dspote worh the ients amounting fa TINR 964 The Conmpany may be requized to settle the dizpuced amoune along with interest and penaliy

any. These las been discloged 18 a comtmgent habality,

35. Emplovec Benefits

A. Defined contribution plang
The Company's eontributon to provident food and other funds are considered as defimed comtnbobim plans, The comtributions are charged o the SMatemenr ol

profic and Ioss s they accroe Contcbations wo provident and other inds mchided memplayee benefie capenscs ace as vader:

31 March 2015 21 March 2024
Conteibution o provident and other funds 6493 55.58
64.93 55.58

Defined benefit plan = grauity

The Company has prosided for graiaiiy for s cmployees as per acanial valuation canded out by an indepeadent actusy on the balanece sheer dace, The valuation has
been carviel oot using the Tropect Unit Credit Sethod as pee Tnd 48 19 o determine thic presens vabue of Defined Benclic Obligadons and die relwed cueres serddee
cost. *Phis is 1 defined beacfi plan as pee Ind A8 19, The peamioe plan iz govesnod by the provisiuns of the Papment of Gramity e, 1977 (a9 amended frewn bme b
time]. Panplovees aw ennded to all the beacties calisted wnder this act.

Vabuationa are performed on cermin basic ser of pre-detesnuned assumppoos snd other e mlasory Tamework which may vane overime. 1lous, the Company

exposid o vanous mskes in providing rthe pbove henchit winch are as fillows:

a Interest rate nek
The plan exposses the Compaay o the osk of fall 1 mnterest cates. A fal] 1o miterest ces will resadt n an meccase in the ultimae cost of preoviding the alyove benefin

ani] will thass result i an mnerease w the value of dwe h;lhl]ity a5 shomen 11 financial shuemonrs,

b Liguidity sk
‘g s the dsk thae che Compaoy 5s not able e meet the short-tenm pratuite pavouts, This may anse due oo aon epilalibiy of cosugh cash/ eash egyivakents toomeer
the halaliies o |m|ﬂ'lng Ul.ﬂlliqult! assets oot hemp sobd 0 ime,




AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED
(formerly koovwn as Aurvee Associates Architects Engineers & Consultanes Deivac Linited)
Summary of significant acevunting policies und other explanaiory informatiom
wiounts 1 2 miliions, exeept =hase data wud where viheoasse staeds
CIN: 17742007 G2005PL.C045491
< Salary escalation rish

The presunt value of the debined beactit plao @ caleulated with the assumpooa of satary merease of smployees in fonure. 1evizien By the e of fatecest in Qutore for
cinpleyecs [eom the sace of increase 10 #alay used o derermine the present value of olligation will havea Bearng on the plan's lahibio.

d Demogtaphic risk

Pl Campans has used certam morrabey snd acason tssamprons i vakaciog and i osposed o ek of nchual expedonee furning o i be worse compared o ehe

assumItin,

e Repulator nisk

Gratutty beneBits are prad m accondance with the reguirements of the Paynaent of Geatwly 3t 1972 (a5 amended from tne to amed There s a dsk of chinge m

regulations cogquining higher pratuite pavouts.
(i) Chunge in projecied benefic oblipation

Propcred heafu obhganon ar the begnmng of the year
Projected hencfit oblimton ar dhe time of acyuisirion
Service cost

Interest cost

Aeruavial (gain) / Toss

Payments madv

Prajected beachit U|:J|igaﬁ| m at the end of the vear

(i) Coucrent / non-current clssificaticn of defined benefit obligation
Lurcent benefie obligaeon

Non-current benefii 1:h|ig:1! iem

(iii} Reconciliation of present value of obligation

Present value of pmi.cclcd bunchit oblimton at the ond of the year
Tundex! status of the ]‘rl:lm

N liabiliey secopnized i the hakuee shoet

{i¥) Expense recognised in rhe statement of profit and loss

Sericy st
nrerest cost

Gratuily expense

Laave cozashment copense (based on Aapagenienr sstimalos)
Ciratuity expenses in Eovogn subsadinrecs

(Fmtuif}' [ay ments varher accountad as [y LI BT

Total Gransity and legve encashment (refer note 28)

31 March 2025 3L March 2024
17488 167,98
360

3506 2894

1303 1703

1273 18.11]

(1957 {15.97;

22032 i74.8%

36,00 33.30

161.39 141.57

220,39 174,88

31 March 2025 31 Msareh 2024
220.39 1788

220,39 174.88

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
3546 25.94

1203 1203

47.69 40.97

1543 24,78

£.82 3.62

- {397)

67.94 5341




AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED
(fomuerly known as Aurvee Associates Architects Engineers & Consultants Peivate Limited)
Summary of significant aceounting policies und other explanatory information
W amannts m € nullions, ovedprt thare dara and where otheestse stated)
CIN: U?4200TG2005P1.C015491

3% March 20125 31 March 2124
(v) Expense recagnised in (OC]
Remeasurements due o
[Heet of chanpe 1y demopraphac assumpuons
Liffect of clmape 7 fmaucid assinplions 1.97 202
Ittect of espenence sdpsiments 1176 {212y
[tfect of ciprrence ndpstmenns on leave eneasbment (1.8 -
(B) 12.65 {(12.11)
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(vi) Key actoarial assumptions
Discount rate 7.25% 7.25%,
Salary crcalation sate 10.00% 10.007
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(vii) Demographic assomptions w determing change i debned benefitg
Ltiettion ate (hased on ape peoup) 20-28% 20-25%,
Muortaliy ralile Indian Azsueed Taves Mostakin (200 2-14)
Retiremuent apee 65 Years 65 Yyears
I March 2025 3] March 2024
{vi) Sensitivity anulysis
Trapaer oa defined bencit abhmiiom,
12cka effect of +1%0 change in discouat taie 211.22 167.65
Ddea effect of <176 ch:mi_;c i diseount cane 2308 18280
Dclta offeet of +1%e change in salacy cecalation rare 21008 18238
el effect af -1%e chanpe in sabawy crcalabon wte 211.83 167.74
Lddra effect of + 17« change i wathudruwal rare 21919 17374
Daelta effect of - 1% change o withdraw] eate a3 176.08
{vil} Mawrity analysis of projecied benefit obhigation
31 Murch 2023 31 Match 2024
I yuaz 37.26 33.58
2t 5 veacs 123.094 08,39
G w 1l yoars R7.30 L5460
Aore than LU years 7655 55.58

The si;‘m%ﬁ(nnl actuacial nsstl1n|1lic][]s fiwr the detenmimation of the defined benefit f]b“g&ﬂi}[l are the disconnt raie and :;:1'!0.1'}‘ excalation mte The aalanlaton of the net
defioed Beocfu lalnline s sensitive to these assempoomes, Floweser, the impact of these changes 15 not ascertamed to e materal by the maoagement, 1
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sumuraey b significont aceduming pelicies and othes cxpla

z EMGINEERING COMNSLLTANTS LAMIT EIX
I kwa ax Anrvee Assocares Arclnicets Fngmecrs & Coognlwnis Ponae Limioed)

o0y anferoeslen
WA s en T el oucepd s data il s b otheraase statalb
CIN: TVH200T G205PLCo45401

3. Jogome ax
A, loweie (s cape e secognised in ihe staeement of profit and Juss consiste of.
ey g gy B
Deturd v enpense ) beaghit
Law bor caebicr we A

B. Reconcibation of mx expense und the recounting profic muhiplied by India's tax rane
Treshig g cs

Lamctod weeom ko g 1 Indin

Fapeetol tan o2 possy

Tax effect of amounis which are not deductibbe ftaxable] in calculating taxabhe ingomc:

s d (heretn noeallom ed Ve e puspro e
Cases por eadues vear-

Incirme mend ae specal e

Yllecy ol differcnmal was e wmler acher uosdicoon
Tiic s it emsaderd boe e e

Acwial sax evpensc

Vs e peovesion af scchom 1T BAL oF hwenge T2 e, 1001, e compang bas opiod e pay meoms 1o at g sate of 2

M March 2028 31 March 2084
) { Dol 1422
am {1713
216.00 2534
31 March 2025 31 Masch 2024
el LRAEN ]
A DT
157 1431
24.30 el
E
2.3% k)
216.00 125.35

o mbyret (e cumphance

with sembinems menuoned By tlmp Jorm e ot

Inconme Tan bedowe blmp lncame ey Rewne Gog (8 2000 200Ul Company 9 conmmuc @ Ol e wemems endee the Scenan F138 4 Y Sconadmghe, campany las peovsdod meerme siscon e aee e

25T

C. Wotemen of deferied tax asset for the yoar ended 31 March 225

Paeticulary

Defereed ian asserf (labiiln) (Groaa)

Progreny, mod Eympmem

Promicwnn Breexpected crech loes on dobril recen abiles
Fropmiemn dirr expected credit foss o other arcis
Fronvon ficemployee benvhies

Anvount charged Amount

¥ Apedl 2022 watement of charged 10 M'htl 1 March 2075
paclil and lous <o prclicmgite

mcoime
15330 3} A
T30 kil 10l
3115 L% L 31404
af 3y LI {331 o
181 85 116 13.31) 179,70

[




AATVET ENGINENRING CONSULTANES LIMYTEI
ormeriv kniwa as Anevee Assoernes Archiniecs lnginocs & Comgliams Prisaee Liniud)

sammucy of spnificanc aceoumiag policies wnd ot cxplanawer infermation

skamonne 1 4 milhoms, eeept i dii and n hore othene s s lads
CIN: U T T GRS PLCHEE

. bloiemont of deferred tax asact for thie year coded 30K ascle 2024

Iuepnicnlace

Delerred tax aseet/(linbiling )y {Gross)

Doapucky aml [apnpegaot

[roen sseen oo enpecival ercali loss on demhdul recenables
["eanaaan berespesisal cooalic Bems o alhor aveh
gk bt cenplen el beeems

et deferncd tax asaer/ (habblity)

. Charge of defecred x asee to sinwement of profit and loss and siher coomprehensine incéme

[FRREARE BU 1S T S PR i T L A C 2y
Impart of cxpendi e chaged o saiement oF profs and ke m e conent yoar but allowed tor tre
puepon s e pavmesnr bass

Dreferred wx (bencli} f sapsnecs
The mevement an enrgal tax liabilivy

Habnre ac e begmming of e var v

Sl b amcr 1 pand ymcluding wlE ass csment tosoand Eacs dedueted stsoueee
Lass Tepewmy 1w tosid feeen od

Lin Peovrainn Hig tees

Less: Reversals 1 0weess 1ach ance @8 “ourecil tas Labnbty an bock
Larssi Ovchier ouljustaents

Balanca at the endd of the yeor (nei)

Iheclosed as =

s amcy kax fack §p)

Cupeunt tac bghihibees e B

Toi.l{a-h)

Amanne chorged © Amouni
) alaterneni of charged 1 othes
1 Agpril 2023 profit and koss comprehensh & 3t Marel 2024
N1 C0 g
LA L Fan 12,20
700 = TR
JIniig b LIAR]
B3 by J aHAT
163,23 1262 - 15L.85
169,23 12.62 - 18
31 Mazch 2025 3L Masech 024 OF Apeil 2023
LA T a2l
a7 3.5 1H13
ila 12.62 2024
34 Marcch 2035 3L March 2024 1 April 2623
TN [Jlisal 19175
RIIRY T et 172237
{201 AN TASEE £ Ml
(LT L2 1320
53 1 oby
3T - .
J4E30 70.95 1i0.53
1H.30 ) [RUEXY
145 5k 76,95 . 11053

o
I\.Mmpm




AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED

(formacrly known as Aarvee Asgoctates Architcers Engincers & Consultants Privare Limited)
Summmary of significant accounting policies and othet explanatory information

(AN amiounes in T millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

CIN: UT200TG2M5PLCE15191

37, Reluted pany disclosures
a. Name of relared partes and dzscription of relationship

Mames

Deseription ef relationship

Aarvee Associates Pty Led- Ansrralia

Aarvee Associates Lid- UK

SRA 083 India Private Limited*

Mag Infmasrrucre Consaling Engineers Pyt Lid®
Hywe Global Engincering Prvare Lamated®

Aarvee KFFPA
Aarvee TCPL
Azrvee AYESA
Harvee - Vix

AGG- (WFR) Turnael
Aarvee TINTIL- EI
Rites lid, Todia -TV
Onapakshi LLP

Aarvee Software Techoologes Private Limited

* Subsidiary with effeer from 31-12-2024

Subsidizries
Suksidisries
Subsidianes
Subsidiasics
Subzidiartes

Joint Venture
Joing Venturs
Joint Venrure
Joint Ventuse
Joint Ventuss
Jeint Venrure
Jeinr Venmure
Associates with holding lesr than 20%:

Enterprizes aver which Key Managerizl Personnel ate able o exercise conteol or
signifizant infuencs

Koy managerial personnel

R. V. Chakrapani Managing Director

B. V. Reddy Who'le tme Direcor

M. Kishore Kumar Whole dme Dizector

M. Murthy Whale time Divector

K Nirmnala Retative of Mansging director
R.Nagacjun Director

R Saeha Dizector

V.V, Subrahmanyam Chief Financial officer and Directo: in Subsidiary
Segandhe Khendelwal Company Secratary

Stidling Kimkeran Diecror of UK Subsidizry
Ramesh Venkatachalam Director of Australia Subsidiary




AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED

{formszrly khown 23 Aarvee Associsres Architecis Engineers & Cansultants Privawe Licaited)
Summary of eignificanr accounting policies and other explanatary infomyation

{All ameunts in 2 mniflions, exeepr share datn and where ctherwise stated)

CIN: U74200TG2003PL 0045491

b. Transactiens during the year

Joint Venture and other earirien
Aarvec KPPA
Sepvices rendered

Aarvee AYESA

Secvices rendexcd

SRA 055 India Private Lirieed
Secvices reclved

Rites ltd. India -J¥
Other ineomes
Serices rendered

Nag Infrastructne Consulting Enginzers Prr Lad
Services rendeced

Secwices ceceived

Rent paid

Lo receued

Key managerial personnel

R V. Chakrapani

Remuncration {refer note 28)

Comsideration paid towards acquistica of subsidianiey
Loan rsceived

Loax repaid

Othicts

B. ¥. Reddy

Remuneration (vefes note 28)

M. Kishore Eumar
Rernunezation {kefr note 28)

M. Murthy
Remuneration (refer note 25)

K Nizmah

Congideration paid mwards acquistion of subsihazies
Rermuneration (refec nuie 28)

Remunesation priox bo asquiziion

Rent

R MNagarjun
Conmideration paid towands acquistion of subsidiagks

B’ Socha

Consideration paid towards acquistion of subsidixces
Remuneration {mefer note 20}

V.V.Suhrahmanyam

Coosultancy Ssrvices paid

Sugamdha Ehandelwal

Rermuneration (oefes nor 28)

Surding Kimkeraa

Remunevition (refez note 28)

Ramesh Venkatachilam
Retrunerstion (refer note 28)

11 Masch 2025 31 Mareh 2024
- 325
- B.75}
- 489
043 1528
216 (28.20)
11.52 1320
oy -
i
(42.00) (4200}
{0.08)
128.00
(123.00) L,
(@59 @03
(1049 (9.4
(1065) .1}
(1048} 033
£126.38) -
(360) -
7.20) E
@.66) (.25
07 -
D67y .
598 (.5%)
.00 G.00)
©.52) .
{10.36) 10,13
.8 -




AARVEE ENGINEERING COMNAULTANTS LIMITED

{formerly lmown as Aarvee Associates Architerts Engineers & Conanlmnes Privare Limited)
Summary of tignifizant accounting policies and other sxplanatory informarion

(Al amcunts in T mill:ons, except share dars and where otherwise stazed)

CIN: UT4200T G200 PLCMS4

¢. Balance recelvable /{payable)

31 March 2023 3 March 2024 01 April 2023

Taint Verinore and athet cntides
Aarvee KFFA

Trade receivbles - - -

Advances (refer note. T} - a12 012
Aarvee AYESA

Trade receivables - 28 20,53

Advaoec {refee note.T) 471

mayables e @13 -
Aarvee Vax

Advances {refer nore. 7) . 0.52 0.48
AGG- (NFR) Tunnel

Adwances (refernge.7) - 0.23 0.21
Aarvee EINTL- EI

receivables D.04 - 1.19
Rites Itd. Endia

Receinables 13.40 1515 -
SRA 85 India Private Limited

“Tade receivables - 027 Q.27

parables = - -
Nag Infrastructure Consuliing Enginecrs Pri Lad

Tzade veceivables . - L

Loam peyable - - -

payables - nan (LI
Aarvee Software Technologies Private Limired

payrbles (0.0%) (.03} [0.03)
Eey managerial pergoone]
R. V. Chakrapani

payables 035 031 [0.47)

Ioan payahle (25.57) (3.57) (30.57)
K Nirmala

loan payable (7709 709 (7709

payables G0 {12.02) 0.43)
V.¥V.Subrahmanyam

payables 0.45) 0.45) -

33, Eamings pershere
31 Mdareh 2025 31 Macch 2024

(8 Net Probt ataibutable to equity shamboldecy 51593 408,55
{b) Weighted average nurket of equity shacey in caleulating EPS
Isued shawes 25 at 02 Apel 24 50,00,000 6G.00,000
Effect of limz of Boous Shares during the year 2,50,00,000 3,60,00,000
Weightmd averags nutiber of equiry shares 4,20,00.000 4,20,00,000
{c) EPS (in absohie

Basic 1228 73

Diuted 1228 a3

Motz The EPS fo ol perinds presented hae been adjusted cecrospertively for dha bonus itsue of shates made on 20t March 2025, in pcenadancageith 1nd AS 33




AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED
(formerdy known as Aarvee Associates Architecrs Enpinccrs & Consultants Private Limited)

Summany of significant nceounling policies and other explﬂlm[m':. informution

Al

amount: € e, eveepr e davs aod wheee others se siaged)

CIN: U74200TG2005 P LCO45491

39

ii

=l

vi

xi

xiii

Eh

Additional Disclozures

Mo peiceedings have been mimared on ar ace ponding againse the Company for holdisg benami peopeen ander the Benami Transsonens (Probibiwn) A,
1982 (45 5[ 1928} andl Roles made thereunder.

The Company docs ot eonsider cerm secereables while subusmiap the dara regarding accounts receivnble so gl bank. These recorvablos e peonmanly aped
mewe clian 180 aays, Dhac o e thaee 1 acdifference berween the dar submiced 1o v bank and the books of tecounts

The Company lave ne been declared willub defaales by any Eank or (nncia) iasGenon o governmant of a0y fuvesnment auilusaty.
The Coxmpany Tins no transactions with the o mnpAnes struck off e Compaaws ok, 2013 ot Compmnes ek, 19500

The Company has complied with the numbere of favees prescrbed under the Companies Ve, 20135,

The Company iing aor enteecd it any schieme of arangenienr which has an acconnnog MIpact on current Of provisus Aagncal year

There s ne weome sureenelercd or diselosed os oo durng the cuceent or previons yese m the 1as asscssinenes wuler the Tncome Tax Ack, 1961, thad las
not been recorded o the books of account,

Tle Company has et teaded oz vesred in cevpts currtney o viswal curwney duzing the cusrent of previous year.
The Company hiny met revealuaced a9 prosperty, pluﬂt Al CyUDInen ('mcludmg tl!.:ill ad s 'u;w(_w} ne Iﬂ[ﬂ,ﬂgﬂbh,‘ Asserd o both duang ehe curreni or pruvimis

Fhiere are nos smimovable propertics nor beld in tw name af the Company |, other than praperties whee the Company is the lezsee and dhe lease ageeements
arc doly executed i Bavour of the lesse,

Vlere are no charges or vansfeaon wiuch are yoet to be regraered wich the regiserar oF compames beyond the sty perisd.

During the year endaod 31 MMarch 2075 andd 31 darch 2024, ne funds bave been advaneed or loangd or 1 thoer feom boeeowed funds oc sh

prt,‘l]"lilllﬂ nr ‘.'lﬂ}«‘ {][]’Il‘!' SIHUCES 0 lilfllJ nf fund:c) Wl:. Thl‘ (jl!lﬂp@lﬂ:' ey 0 ﬂl].\' [)[IIL'[' 1

westod o

e

n or oy, mcleding fowegm eatioies Clateanediades"y with the

undurs.mndmg.j whether recorded in writing or othenwse, that the fﬂrtm]rdlm}' shall Iend or myvest m pazty 1deatfial b e oo Buhall vl the Company
{Ultimate Benclicianivs).

Durdng the year onded 31 hMarch 2025 and 31 Masch 2024, die Compang lax nor ceecved any fund feom any pacy (Ivading Paces) with the urdersianding
thas ehe Company shall whether, divcesly o indireetly kend oz neest 0 other peesons o enories ieatibed by o on el of the Company (“Ulpmare
Benefeomries”) o poovale any puacsoe, secuny o the like on behalf of the Ulomae Benefigaoes.

The balances of wade weeneables and seade payakles ace subjeer o confirmacion, secondliadon, and consequenoal adjusrments, if any. The Management has
scnt balinge connmamon peueses Ter corimmn paros; Tumvever, TOSTRINSES Tave not beew geceived From all of them as of dthe wpuThng date "Lhe Aanagemeal

le,,'S neil L'}{pl‘fl ﬂll_ﬂ‘ II'HIFL'I'IHI Ll[h'(i‘L‘lﬁ{ll'l(!L‘S Lli'll m lL‘E(lI'l[‘IIIIﬂli[HI e ﬂ‘[’L‘il’“ IIIr C[}I]rjl'l]'lilfil me, ™~




AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED

{formerhy known as Aarvee Associares Architects Engineers & Conguluaus Private Limnieee)
Suramary of significant accounting policies and other explanatery information

{4l amonats m T amllhoas, cveepr shane daca mud wheee eahenwsse staced

CIN: U74200TG 20050 LC(4542)

H. Segment infornation

Opperaiing sepmoenes awe seposted oo manner consstent with the intcenal soporeing, poovided 19 the chiet eporatmg dectsion maker. The Company s
prncipally engaged e a single segment busmess 1 Projecr Aauagement and Pagineesng Advison Services,

Uhe geographe miommanos analyses the Companys evenoes aod son-current assely by the country of domicle and other countnies, i presoutmy;
geographic mfommbon, segment revenmue has been based on the locagon of the costwomer aud segmoni assees anc baeed on peoggaphical location of the assce.

Revenues from external customers awtributed to the Company’s country of domicile and attributed to all foreign countries from which the
{1} Compsny darives revenues

3 March 2025 31 March 2024

Indit 4962.22 4,784.27
Ohuside [nha 709.10 38574
5,671.32 5,170.01

{il) Non-current assets (other than financial instruments, tax assets 2nd deferred tax assets) located in the Company's conmtry of domicile and in all
fereign covnties in which the Company holds asszets

31 March 2025 3L March 2024 01 April 2023

India 1,14783 1,076.90 1,122.45
COuiside Indin 1.37 (.58 1.12
1,144.20 1,077.70 1,123.57

T

Mm‘




AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED
{formerly known as Aurvee Assaciates Arcluiects Enginecrs & Consultants Privaie Limited)

Summary of significunt aceonnung policies and cther explanatary informartion

[ A amernetts me 2 arilons, weept share date and where othermese stared)

CIN: L4200T G205 PLCI454M

41

=

R

Leuwse disclosure
Where the Company is 2 lessec

The Compamy, bas eotered mro leasing arrangemenis e renttngr of office prensises, Such kasing arrmpements are predmainantly renewable 2t naotal coasent,
Aecordingly, posn-caneellible peed 15 sestuered o b podod without cousideningt the rencwal nptiu[l‘ Wliwwever :Ipp]‘tc.ﬂ:]u, Ulﬂ) bock-tn I‘Il‘!’il al s consdered as
lease pottod w0 <ise where ather parte can fermonate the lease by v poor ronce. Ve Campany s elecred noc e apph the regmuements of Tad A8 116

"leascs” to shoveretnt leases of all assets thar bave a fease tenn of 12 ;s or less aod leases for which the vnderlysng asser sx of low vahie: The lease paymenrs

associated with these lenses ane recopmised as no cxprense unwstraghi-lime basis over the bgse eem cxcepr nflanon adjusnment.

Ser out beliw: are dw carrviag anonnes of sght of vse assers recopnised and thy movoments durag the period:

Leaschold

Particulars y Total
Properdes
01 April 2023 180.30 189.36
Sdditons 5657 56.57
Deledon -
Depreciation expense {62.03) {62.08)
31 March 2024 183.89 183.89
Addidions 4078 49,78
elerian (-h58) (4.58)
Lpuceiammon expensy (62.45) {6245}
31 Ma:zch 2025 166.64 166,54
Seeour below ate the eavvying amounts of fease habiliics gacladed in oo ) and Bre neovements durings the period:
Particulars Teas thld Total
Properiies

01 April 2023 202,22 202.23
Ldditions 56.57 56.57
Arccrerion of mterest M 68 20.68
Payment (73,71} {73.71)
31 March 2024 205.77 20577
Additions 4251 42,51
\rerenon of interest 1854 18.59
Payment (7300 {73.00)
31 March 2025 195.80G 195.86
Paniculats 31 March 2025 5% March 2024 0 April 2023
FLJSL‘ Pﬂ!'!“L‘ﬂlTS

Paot Jares than one vear 5T.28 T4 737t

Later than one year and not laer thao fine T 120080 158,72 21419

Latce than five veaus 18.78 3157 16723

Less: Purure finance expense (3.00) (54,65 (131.91)
Total 193.86 208,77 202.23
Amgimi recognised in siatement of profit and loss account 3 March 2025 31 March 2024
Dreprechation «m right of use asscts 6245 62005
[nrerest on lease abihoes 1859 6B
liapenscs relatings to shoct tevm leases agd Jow valae assets 34.86 W17
Ampami recognised in statement of cashilow 31 March 2025 3§ March 2024
Total cash cotBow for leases - prncipal 7300 73,71

Townl caxly ouefiow for lepses - ineekcsr 18.59 268
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AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED
fformerly known as Aarvee Associates Architects Engineers & Consultants Private Limited)
Summary of sigaificant accounting policies and other explioatary information

Alamouots in T millions, escept share Jdata amd wheee othenwise stated)

CIN: U74200TG2005 P LCH =8

45, Fair value measurements

A Financial instrumenes by caegory
Vhe carrving calue amd faar value of inoncud wosmaments by cokgroees as ac 31 & acel 2025 were as olhwess
Particulars Ameortised cost  Financial assces/ Financial agsers/ Carrying value
linbifities at FVTPL Kabilities at FVTOCT

Financiul assers - Noa-cogeent

Lwesomanes o 41
[ amans 100 eR ]
Okher financtal axscts 6777 447,77

Financial assers - Current

Teade reeevcables 171812 1,719.13

[ ash and cash cquiralunts 2498 0488
| 4rans G145 LB
Oither finangial assctd 67738 Ny
Total Enancial assets 3,021.09 3,021.09
Financiul labilities - Mon-eurrent

Borrowms R ELT &t 15
Lease bubdities 136,58 13658
Fimancial liabilities - Cucrent

Horrownips R LIl LRIz
Lase lahilitics 57.28 57.28
“Teade pavables 2638 226,
Cheher funancel Balairees 414.13 414.1%
Fotal financiel liubilites 1,399.86 1,399.56

The eavrping value and Bue walug of Grancial mstaments by eaegordes 15 28 31 Mareh 2004 were ay Follenwa:

Particulars Amnrtised enst Finaneial nssets/ Financial assets/ Carrying value
Liabilitzs 2t FVTPL Habilhles at FYTOCI

Financial assets - Mon-current

Imestmicnts

(LR

Lopos &7

COither financial asscts NG 390,08
Finzneial asscts »~ Curren ]
Trade reerivalbilos 1,376,732 137672
tlash and casb cquanvalents 160034 16d) 44
Loans 65.15 0515
Chiher fmanaal assets 273U a7Tim
Total firaozial agsers Z,307.08 2,507.00
Finaneial Jinbilities - Non-cucrent

Bowrowsngs 126,88 124 RR
Lease labilisics 135,63 135103
Finarcial liabilities - Curcent

Bocamings 23895 AT AH]
Lease habilites i INES T4
Trade payablus 17386 17580
{nher fnanesnl liabslioses 489,11 811
Total financial linhilities 1,236.57 1,236.57

Nuboagau



AARVEERE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED

{fanimerly kieewn as Aarvee Assaciates Architeets Engiucers & Consultants Private Limited)
Summarcy of significant accounting policies and orher explanarory information

[All amounes in T midlions, cieept shiee dae nad where othens s staned)

CIM: U74200T G205 FLCB45401

“Ihe enerving value and fne value of fnuncial imsiomenss be entegonies 35 00 01 A pid 2033 wer as foliows:

Farticulars Amortised cost Financial assets/ Financial assers/ Carrving value
liabilities at FYTFL habiiities at FyYTOCI

Finznecial assecrs - Non-current

Invesomenos = - -
Faxis 5.54 5.5
(Other financal aszcts TGt - 3T
Finoneial assces - Cursene - - -
Leade receis alilis 13750 - " 1.376.56
Cash am!t casly vquinakents 180,28 - 186 78
Loans PR - [ELEf |
Other fmancial assety 31076 = - LT
Toral financial assets 226199 - - LRl

Financial Eabillties - Non-curreac

Boveowing: 175.8i - - 17500
Lease adhaboes LZ8.510 13451
Financial lizbilities = Current -

Porvonvings 30 117 . 64017
Toasy labiitics a7 EEN
Tracke payables 126.10 - 126,00
g Bamesal ol s 0171 - - 41711
Total finuneial iabilities 1,488,530 - - 148530
MNare

Pianesl asdes and Dabilnies anelode gl and eash cgqunealens, oher bank balanees, cmplover and oter advioces, clighle cacrent and son-curnent assek, trade payablos, and
elibte corrent Balslites amd mon-curcent Takilites, The Far vaiue of cush and cash cquinalents, orhee Bank balanecs, reade pavabley, ather eozrens Dinanoial assecs und labilnees
approsinae e caerymy sonount Jugely due e ibe sbore-teem sawee of these sostouments.

ToveslInent in ety shases af subsidia is miensared a0 cost as per Tod A8 27, “Sepamie finaocal aintemeas”™ @l accordmpgh ace oo requarad fo by disclosed here,
<Lty } M oo ' j

The fair value of the Goanaal asscis amd Babihites 15 included at the anwint ar which the instrumont could be exehanped dna careent pansacuon berween wiliuny parngs, other
than m 2 forced oy lwusdain sate.

B Fair value of financial assets und Liabilities measured at amortised cost

The management asseased that for amortised cost insuments, i valae approsimates Taxgely to the curying amount,
€ Fair value hieratchy
Trnancial asects and fintacnd

bifils measurnd ar Bie viluc i che sirement of Buangsl posisn ace gruoped sao three levels of a fur value lvcaech, The thee Tevels ane
defined based na the observainbty of sipmbcant pots 1o the meisurement, as fellows:

Taved 1: Ouoted praces (unadjusted; w aenwe mackues far baancol marramens.

Tovel 307l fair salue of fnangial wstramems thar are sor rradedd 0 an aetve marler o determoed ostng valuateo tecbuyues = lich musinise the we of olsenable market
dara rely as liede 0s possble on entily spectfie csamates. IF sgoificant inputs requiced to faie valoe an nstramcnt are obscrvable, che ingtoment sancluded sn Livel 2

vl 30 1F ol o5r st of i sepuhieant mpursos ton based om obscrvable maeker doca, ehe sasieusnent s nchided level 3,
“Ihere have been noeemnsters beoween Lavel 1 Level 2 umd Pevel ¥ deeing the vean <




AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS EIMITED
[formely lrnwvn as Aanee Associdies Architeets Engincers & Consultants Prvase Limied)

Summiary of significant accounting policics and vther explanatory infermatinn

Csltameunts m 3 nallians, caepr et and wlie othom e o)
CIMN: UTH200TG2005FLCO5401

46,
I.

II.

Fisst time adoption of Ind AS

T e comscdndated fimancal sawmenrs e seas ended Sarch 310 2024 are e Bt Bnanoal scoomams thae the Compam s prepaged aacomdaoce wod bod S5 Porcalb pornads ap eeand
vididing: e tear cwded Macch 3, 2023 de Ui prcpaccd s Rmancab staecemo e maccordance @ th the accoustiog standands nonficd oadee aeenen 137 08 dae £ mpanies oo 2010 ead
together with pargmaph 7 of the Companies (Cveomme) Ralo. 208 Poesions G E" veed for us statetnn weporemys requosemenm m ndi immediately bebewe appd ing Tl A8 o monoonsd

almne,

The Lonmpy fan adeptad lodian Secomnting Slandaeds (loed W) v wondind by e Mmool Comquante Whars with wffeer freme Apal 1 3024 with 2 wanvion daie of Apad L 2025,
Sevordinghy, the conselidated Bnacal statenients for the year ended Blaceh 311, 20025 a0 ool as the comparative poed caded Sarch 31, 2024 and the opening Balance Sheet asoat Spol 1, 2023
have been propased as por e guiddance proserbel in TN 35 101 Tt time sdoptin of Jodian Aecountng Standasds,

I hun e cxpligs the prmcgad asdjusmenes made s the Company o sestammgs ws Proviowse G %A consodidated nmamein] staremuiws, mebodige the babiee shoer as an Spesd 1 2023 and the
froacial siatemenis a0 a and for the sear ended March 31, 028 Txempooas svnled om St tune sdepoon of Jod 5% 1010 Ind vs 100 llow s Siee-ome adoprers cooam esormprons fom dee
retresspetive apphcancn of cemam regwrements under Twd A5 L Conpany Bos applod dae Gellom g esempuims

[ Properr, planeamd cquapimene i el ssicess

e Compae s cleered © eorunuoe wib the cacnsyg value for all of s peoperey, plane and cquipmene and meaagble asers as sceogmsed o g IGA A comsoldaned oancial starements as
deemed cost @i the teansicnn dage.

(b} Estdnates

The comnates ar spnl 1, 2073 ol ae Marel 3], %024 are conssrene with thosse mnde foc the wme dices in accordanee with Indian GAAD e csimaes used by che Compame o paseot 1luse
amoumes waccoomee with Tnd AS eflect condifioms ac Spmil b, 2023, ghe date of oansiona o Ind A8 wd s of Rlaseh 31, 2004

o) Clagsification pnd measurcmeny of financial assers
py™ ifnmp.mu has olassified amd measuned ehe Minancial awets o el Bases of e et and coaemmeEaaees ot cxnt an the Jare of teansnon pe Tnd A8

{d) Defined benefic liabilities

Uader foud A5, eemeasuremonas compesing of acanat fuos nad osses exeluding amousms @cloded mooen maerest om the nee defused beoefin kabiier and the cerum on plan assers {escluedmgs
amounis melusfed wn oo meerest oo the ner Selfined Bonedic Tinbabee), ane seeopgsed ammuedsach w e bakance sheet wardy @ carsespondmgg delne ue cosdic e eetanmed caomngs fioouph <6 1T m the
penesd g whiehn they omeur, Under prevo s 63,337 the Commnpany has ok aserved defined bunefie abdies, however moche Tl 4 daese halbdines wers accmnted Fom the dave of tramston.

fey Deferrmd vaxes

DPefomed my adjsement sicludes e uepace snoseesane of differcices Beoreen hisd WS and pressoars 8508000
{f) Gcher compreliensive income

L'mdee Indaan Cos AT, the Company has not presented odher comprelonsne sneomie (0817 separanedy, Dlenee, srbas seconeled Indas GOAUAF peoBto loss rs profe oc protn oc Joss as pee Ind
AN Pusmher, Tadien GAAT poofir or Toss 15 peconaled i wyml compechensne wenme as per Jod AN

{g) Classification and mensurement of finuncial agscts and Jia

Ted A5 0T reguiees am entity Bo axsess Cossification of fnaneial asers oo the boas of Gicls and arcumsinnces esastge 55 on the date of tansiton, Fusthen, e stadard permsts measuenent of
fnancial assets accounbed at amertiwed cost based on facts andd croumskmces existmg al thw date of tamsibon f weospeetive applsation s impeacticalle. Seerrdingly, the Company has
detuormined the hasalicatan of fmaneial aswets Bawd on ficts and eisumstances that evisf o tie daw of fananan Sleasurement of the fnancinl asscts accounted al amostised gost has been done
el v exeurt whyre Hhe swme o dmprackgalile.

Reconciliation between previous GAAT and Tnd AS

Reconciliation of other equicy

Farticulate Amoumi
Chosing balunce as at 31 Mareh 2023 {ue por previcus GAAT) SN3T.30
Aﬂinstmenu:

Pronwisiomn For Crana (14640
Empaceof ROIL assop woogmbin as part ol Jnd AS {1220y
Brawum for Beprecianon {11.53)
Inerase v accenot of exprn I
Brovisim for expeomed credi Tins- arher naers [hal kY
Frvisiom for expecoed coedst s roade seceivalilos {HInLT)
Other adjustments L
P Ferued gax I ET 591 abrwe adsrments 176 5y
Closing Balance at ns at 0F April 2023 140027
Add; Profit ns per as poc previaus GAAF AN017
Adjustrnents:

Feovmwom for Gracan: (23408
Tmpact of RO assct regopmuton ax pact of Tad A8 1037
Provesiom for eapeeoed eoedu Inse achee assers 1816
Prossioon for Diepreciabon (8
Ineyense on necouar nf oxpense {11133
Chthwr andjus b 973

-1 8%

Pcferad tas enpace o abios e adjesionenes,
~ 1,309.82

Closing Balance ac as at 30 Murch 2034




AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED
{fomerly known as Aancce Assuoutes Archiecs Engmeers & Consuliénis Privaie Liteired)
Srmmury of significant aceounnng policies and ather explanariey inforrion

HEoumts i Lmllons, caeept shane elatt and wheee athom e dateds

CIN: U71200TG2065PLCO4391

Reconciliauon of other comprchensive income

Dardeulars Amount
Bulanee us ac 31 Muorch 2023 (us per pre'l'ir}ug GAAP) &
Adjustacats:
RuxlasssBication of wceunnal [oss on enyplivee enelo o oier comprchensive wicome 3846
Pefvered tax wmpact vo above adjustments )]
Closing Balunce a5 at ¢1 Apnl 2023 2067
Adjustiencs:
Reslverficaton of actunmal [ony enemplisves beneht to other comprehema ¢ inceme 181
Prederrid ms anwpaee om alaove wdjusomen s '4-.5h!
Cloming Balanee g an 31 March 2024 35.2_2 !
<. Reconeiliation of the asseis amd iiabilities presenwed in the balunce sheet prepaccd us per Previons GAAP and us per Ind AS 2s ar 00 Apsil 2023 is 2. Enllows:
Previgus GAAP Classifications Adjusmnents Trad AS
Non Currcnt osscts
TP amd eyupment T K {25070y (11 5% Wl KT
Tangm e assein R 0T
189,30 18030
mancial asees
[nvestmenis
lLaam 254 554
COther flimancsal e - 380128 At 1] ko]
Trelemred 1as amsers (e n47 [tid14, |6 Ha 169,23
Crhe e Curtear dvts A U 111 LN 29711
4. 349,32 26,11 1,320.82
Current agscts
Timancial assves
I'mde recereables 1,7 70 205013 w1t 1370 .56
Uah and cash cupivalents 545,03 5945) 180 28
Laans - i - 1
Ul frnctal auaoes . 3074 3076
Cthur cuprom assets 1.0 43 071y (LD W1y
S22 {710.56) @) 197373
Total assets 376507 (190.74) (868 3,39L38
Hquiry and liab#ices
Fapty AL Lo
Otht wguity 25700 [hA (@150 14457
Linbilities
MNeon-currens lizhilities
Fowagreial Tiatalinios
Buesaw ings TR ) {adHy 17580
[ Jiablit e 12851 178 34
Prow ey 15,112 1M.02
2,355.06 {(56.19) (33107) 1,918.80
Cusrent linbilisies
I'waancial hiabilitics
[Bmow gy el GRAN w7
Jease ladslries T2 T 73,71
Teade payables due o
Alicna Ao simall enterpneg,
hher than imcen and sonall encerpas e 1137 (5305 63 .red 1760
et fneesn) leadlites o vl [IEA Ll
Oiher cuercnt liablitics RIS 107 - 184,70
Puosisions 35504 {A28.30 RERD 550
1LA2890 (122.57) 69 4} 147875
Tom! equity and Nubilides 3,765.97 (190.76) {181.65) 3,394.55

k]



AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED

{Roomiserly o oren gk Alfved Astociates Anchitécts Engincers & Consultants Private Linated)
Swomany of significant secounting policies and other caplanaton infonmeoon

arcd whew sthom e s

SlEamenums w &l cacepre showe dan
CIN: GT4200TC2005PLO0E5401

e. Reconcilintion of the assers and habiites presented in the bolanee sheet prepared as pey Previoos GAAP and as pcrlnd AS gz ar 3 Mareh 2034 is aa Mllpms

Previous GAAT Classificutions Adjusimenta Ind AS
Moo Cucrent assets
I‘mpun ind Ly mene 5377 |G 19,574 57157
lananable desrs B i a2
Rapghu-te-use asst (B RN LK%,
el assers
Tdstine EILHT IEAT
COthee fnaneial 2wk 41K 20 .21 RN
Defirred fax derls (et ) L1y (AT LH1L85
Uxther non-cammenr assers 42K 27 (40513 { L8183 240k
884.04 33818 134.33 1,357.46
Current assets
I'maneial aosers
Leade recevabled 14790 25 6Ty 1,376,752
Casbeand cash eyun alents 4057 (H15.32) - 160033
B LELN B fa1s
COlther fmancm] assrs i ERE ATy 37180
Orhuer cuoment 24501s OTAT aian [43T) RN
2,913 54 (435.77) {306.65) 213712
Toral asaets 3,798,458 {97.57) [N, 32} 3,534,539
Equity and lahilitics
Tiaquainy GILIN LA
CHher cgquity 348717 a4 (A21 &%) I R4L.74
Liabihtes
MNon-current liabilities
I'inancial liabdifwes
Boarm g ER 53 N2 o) 12658
Toase Trlnlimes 11501 135803
Peowvinaony - - 141.57 141.57
1,706.71 {70.2.3) [(Hd.67) 2,305.82
Current liabilities
Fioancl Tinlntes
Boamwivanngs DDA 144,95 L5805
Lo Jiabdidcs T4 T4
Irade pusables de
hlwers noal simall enoerprses
Other than magre ao unnllenterpmenes 21744 47 42 23002
Othees fmancad kil . A8 11 + 48011
&hther caraent Tialnlies XL U] LHILGT) 172
Treonasti s 25404 {32349 il [ 8
LO2LT7 41,36) 17837 1,228.76
Total equity and liabilitics 3,798.48 (97.59) (166.30) 3,531.58

C. Mutes to fust tine adapticn

Toplanncs of magormpace on adapton an ol 85 ae the ceporeed financil searcmienes of the Company as an the dare of emosason s 2. ondes

i, Statemeat of equity

e eraeranen foon Tiwan S0 o fnd v had no naarenal anpact on the ol equiy as per Ind 38 and o) shareheddes funds as pes ndian GASP

i, Sraternent of mral compre hensive income

The trmatien foom Teian Ge3AT 0 [nd A5 bad no mareral impset enthe staremert of tanl compreheisive menme as pec Tnd A8 and Staemene of prof and s as per Jodian (AP

iil, Starerazar of pash flows
Th teaosaen from Twbian GAAP tr lod S had ne ateoal nnpact on the sarement of cash Qowes




AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED
{formerly known as Aureee Assocines Arehiteets Engincers & Consultnts Private Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and ather explanatory information
W amemne: e T aullions, excepr shase dat and where othernase stated,
CIMN: U74200TG2005PLC0O45491

A47. Business combination
1). Asquisition of Nag Infrastructure Consulting Engineers Private Limited
Ty 31 [eeember 2024, T]'l(.‘ (“n'oup :ICqulrt:d 100%, oof the \'[lling shares of [\.:1!' qurn:m'ucmn: ¢:nn:;u][§ug !':.ngi.uu-r:: Pervare ].ir_r]i(r_'d_ 1 101
lsted company based in Telangana and specialising in the area of consultancy and allicd serviees related to the holding, Compans, in
chhangu For chy (:()ﬂlp:l.i'l"‘."F shares. Tiwe (qup ;lcquircd the said f:(}l'npﬁn_v leennse i Sig“iﬁ(ﬂl‘lﬂ:,' IJ["[T[!T‘ 5:.‘nur§:i¢;; can be offored e i
clicues.

There are o non (uutmlling 1aterests 0 the ACyuIsttinon.

Assets acquired and Nabilides assnomed
The fair ealues of e identifiable assers and kabikitics of Mag Infrastucure Consulting Vingineers Private Limited as ot the dare of valuation
i 20 Seprember 3024 weas

Partculars As at 30 September 2024

Assets

Mon-current assets

Propecny, plant and cyuipment 209

Immovabis properiics 13.50

Other nem current assees 0.54
16.13

Current assets

Himncial asscts

1) Trade reecivables 49,56

(1] Cash anel cash cyuivalenis 14.32

Chther curpent assets 50.03

113.91

Tatal assets 130.04
Liabilities

Nl:m-mlrrent ﬁahﬂ;lics

Tatal nen-current liakilities r

Current liﬂbiﬁties
Fmancial Bnluhies
Trnede payaizley
Crutstandimg dues of micoo citerprises and smndl entemrises -

Ourstanding dues of ceditoss other dun micr enmeeprises and small entemizses [ 41

Ochier curcenc Lalyibisies 1.29
Provisions 317
3.67

Total liabilities 3.67
Net Assers (C= A-E) 126,37
Puarchase Consideration (D) 126.37

Bargain Gain (C-D) -

Note: The differeoce between the earring ealue of assets and lialshaes after the dare of valuadon fll the date of acquistion liag been acornted
-

as "Cioodwall on ;chuisit'u Wt

S




AARVEE ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LIMITED
{formerly kaown s Aaree Associates Architects Engineers 8 Consultanis Private Limited)
Suminary of signilicant wceonnting policies and other explanatory infomation

S unounts 10 2 millions, exeept share dara and wheee otherwse sagedd)

CIN: U74200TGZ005PLE)45491
i} Acguisition of Hyve Global Engineering Private Limited
Gia 31 Degember 2024, the Crroupr sequiced 100% of the voring sharcs of | Tvee Global ]‘fngjuum’jng Private 1imiied, 1 nem-Hsted comngany
bared in Telanpana and spectabising in the aeea of consuttavcy and allicd serviees celared s the holding Company, in exelnnge fur che
Company’s shuwes. The Group acyuired the smd Compaiy because it sipniticantly bring synergivs can be offeced to s divots.
lll'!i.'rl‘ AU N 1eon (Uﬂll’[}l]irﬁg 1‘|‘|ll'fl‘ﬁl“‘- i!l Tl'll ‘ll['lllli!:.lf;l (1A

Assels acqnired and habilities assumed

Vhe fr wilues of tae identiflable assers and labiliies of yve Glabal Hagineering Private Limited as af the date of valuntion i 30
Seprember 2024 were

Particulars A at 30 Septemher 2024

Agscls

MNon-current agsets

Propecty, plans and cguipment (.01
.01

Current assets

I‘li!'lill"l(W‘ fl] HEC-U I

:i} JI‘THEJ[‘ fﬂ‘fl‘ll\.'ﬂlbll‘ﬁ ] -30

fify Cash and cash cepiealents 1.64

(rther current assets 0.07

n

Tatal assets 2092
Liabilities

Non-current labilities

Tata! non-current liabilites -

Carrrent liﬂbifiﬁcs
Piracial liphiliies
made payables
Outstanding dues of micro enteryises and small enteeprises

Uutﬁhmding dues of creditoss other than micen LRUCTPrIses aind =mali L'ﬂT(‘r[W'ia!L‘S 23

Other currens habiliges 0.1
IPeovisions 1.7
1.58

Totl Irabilitdes 1.58
Met Agsets (C+ A-B) 1.34
Purchase Consideration (D) 124

Bargain Gain (C-D) -

Mate: Fhe difference heemeeen he !,‘:ll.'l.‘:.'ing valug of aescts and Babiditics afrer the date of valuation 1l the dare i}FEI(L]lljhtI!lﬂ Tias heen accounted
as Crowsbedll on Jc:.Ju[sinir:n", v

i B




AARVEE ENGINEZRING CONSULTANTS LIMITED
(formeriy known as Awrvee Associates Architees Engineers & Coasullaots Private Limited)
Suminary of simificant accounting policics and ather explunatery information

Wl amownts v Tmlheny, exeepe share dara and where othorwise stared)

CIN: U74200TG2005PLCO45491

i}, Acquisition of SRA OS88 India Privare Linited
On 31 Deeembee 2024, the Group acquiced 100 of the votiog shares of SR OS8 India Privare Limired, 2 aon-listed company bazed n
Telapana and specialising in e ane of softwares relased 1o the Company e exchaage foc the Compang’s shaces. The Graop acguical (he
sitid Compuny because it sipaificantly ssergics that can be offered 1o 1 clienrs,

Uhare are nor non controlling inteeests in the acquisition.

Assete acquired and liabilities assumed

The fair values of the identifiable assets and Habilittes of SRA QRS indin Privace Tamiced a5 st the dage of valuatdon w2 30 Seprenber 2024

W

Particulars As at 30 Seprernber 2024

Assets

MNon-current agsets

Property, plant and equipment 0.28
0.28

Current assets
Iinancind asscrs

i} Trade seceivables 647
i) ¢ash and cash eguivalens i il
€ Ither currcot assets 240
11.64
Total assets .92
Liabilities
Non-carrent iabilities
Borrowings 10.27
Total non-current labilitics 1627

Cuzrent liabilitics
Iseancial Liabilites
I'zade pavables
Crutstunding ducs of maceo entecpriscs and small enterprises

- Ourstudiag dues of credines nther tian idcre eoterprises and soall eaterprises .53
Oither current bnbalitics

PProvvivnons 1.02

1.58

Total liabilitics i1.82

MNet Asscts (C= A-B) 0.10

Purchase Considerntion (D) 0.10

Bargain Gain {C-D) -

MNoge: The ditference betvooa the C.‘lrn‘in_g sahie of avsers ond Hahilines after the dage of valuanon el the dare of .1{,'L||ai5riu|1 has bean accovneed
as "Goodwill en acyuisition”.




AARVEE ENGINEEFRING CONSLULTANTS LIMITED
{formerly known as Aarsee Associates Archaeets Engineces & Consultunts Prisate Limited)
Summary of significan daeconnung policier amd othes explanaiory informauon

Al womsoge 0 ol ereept share dare il wheee oo s snedd

CEN: U74200T°G 2005 PLCOAS 491

48,

49,

50,

Resenue fiovm coriracts with costomers

Signifieant ehanges in contreer usserand coruract liabilin during the pesiod are as follows:
Eridd 48 13 abas tequives dielosuee of ‘ovvuue tecegumsed mthe sopereige pesod duay was mcluded moche comoact labiday Dalaoge a1 the begumig o thie peoed” and “sovenue suenptiagd n
the seperine perek] Froem pueemance oblemams sansfied [erpacnally soosfed) s peey s peocds. Same has been doedosad as bokow

Tradle reccivables, coniract asse and conact liabilidies

| e roceerahlys aoe regoded whon e meht 1o commudemton Becomes wieondiemal ude woron ables 300 aon-mrescsr beasog.

Conreet assers i oo the revenue where the Companys ophits 10 conmdenton for work completed hut not billed ar rhe eepornng date The eememer ssets wre raosicened s omde
wucenables whgn e opbne beeoome vivenwhtsenal

Clomtrch assets ave presented onder Uther frueal aswis (0 osewer i the Moee L of e samdalone Branesl sacmenes,

Contract babilibes velate 1o the eompang's olhgation o wmisfer goods or services 10 custemer e whieh dhe groun has mvoced te cosiomes o secewed wdvances Tom the casdouner for
rendy g of serices. Canraet halulities ave recogiused 25 ros enue & rhe geoup performs uader e contrict.

Agscis and Habilitics related (o contracts with cugtomces

31 March 2025 31 Mucch 2024 91 April 2023
Consract Balences
Tele recevables 1712 137672 1,376.30
1,712.12 1.376.72 1.376.56
Contract liabilitics at 1w heginning of the year
Wl Revonue 4 by vecopgn-od fiom performance obhganons oo b sarsticd sn sacceedig ears
T.ess: Revemiue recognered that noat mefuded wt eonteact habihey a1 the hegponae of the vear -
Contract Hakilitics at the cnd of the year _ B -
Contract Assats af the begimning of the year 20014 266,21 28134
Taws: Corasact assers smvencced dunnge the year PR 4y {761 21 (28115
Add: Sansfied perfsomanee obliganens s mvosced ¢ 622,17 29014 2612)
Caorndract 25se1a ar the end af the year 022,17 2¥9.14 26121
fishidimg wiicks l\lllil.‘l:]"l.‘l)g‘l'l:!‘
Reconciling he amgunt of cevenue recogniscd in the statcment of proft and loss with the tontracked price
31 March 2035 31 Muech 2024 01 April 2023
[bevenis 2n wee centmee AnTLiz 35,1714 4,381 42
Adustmunts
Tovenue frona comteact with duskorrtoes §,071.52 570,00 1,581.42

Tlw Nhnsin ol Camepaarats Abfes TN bae prescobod 4 nen requaremcenr fear EE T ED RN wider ehe peorsey w Rule 300 ol the Compawes ¢ Secounsy Ruabes, 2004 meenwd Dy the
Crmpanies gty Smoogdneene Roles 2001 segoeang toom ey, whicl vses secoonengg ssfosnee foe nsasn e o5 books of account, shall wse onks soch ncconnbimg b wluch lus
3 Feapure of teeondig awdic emil of cacl and every ornsactem, creaunyg an ed g of cach change made m the books of accoun: along with the Jare when such changer were made and
s thae rhe avdu eend cannon be deabled.

e Comysaey maimbins an cedil By fetmm s recouming sofrware Tor i Ddson sabsadianes in eomplsiiee wish appleabie wpulaten equsenwnts, Hoween the edat [og Bunctonahity, -
ruecontlt i smpdemented an the accouney suerems of the foreen subscianes, as such egonments ae not mandaed wnder the sespectove local lwe applicable e thowe cante. The
mangemen 15 8 e process of evahearig the need and feawlwiey of simplmsning 3 suoalar mechamsm for forengm opeeations

Ul Company s wacd anaceountoy s efluunes “Lally Prioe tdi Log 21 for svanttaming ws benbs of aeee i which has 2 feauee of recording aude ea! (edu g Gweshiy e ghe v hoave
operated with offeet Fram 2003 2024 for the Holdmg £ ompames all releennr imosaceons secorded mdhe eespeeave soliwaces. Sulregquenily, the <ame has heen wnplemeatedm other Tndian
aubafoing s

Subgrquent cyents
Ty are oo tho ity o g izmr acneaduseng evcones which hare coourred beaeen 37 Alasch 2033 snd e daw obauthooan m of thewe {igancial statenicon

A per o epoet of anen dared avached

Toc PR Daltn & Co., Foocand on bebad§ af the Boaed of Diesrors of

ihacreend Sgcimantants
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